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Times Neighborhood Renovation Strategy Summit
2022 was held: Gathering Energy in Times and Making
Great Achievement Together

On 5 January 2022, the “Times Neighborhood Renovation
Strategy Summit 2022" was held in the Guangzhou Baiyun
International Unit. Neighborhood Renovation redefined the
cooperation model of “Property+Home Furnishing Enterprise”,
and actively deepened the cooperation in various aspects from
residence to public buildings and from home decoration to
project decoration, with the sales exceeding RMB100 million
after two years of establishment. Nearly 200 representatives of
core merchants from all over the country were invited to attend
the summit with the theme of “Gathering Energy in Times and
Making Great Achievement Together”, so as to jointly create a
new cooperation model and draw a new development blueprint.
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Conference of Times Neighborhood for corporate
culture publicity and creator oath-taking was held
successfully, and the Culture of the Creators, the first
corporate culture e-book, was published

Times Neighborhood held the 2022 conference for corporate
culture publicity and creator oath-taking, and published the
first corporate culture e-book, “The Culture of the Creators”.
Through strengthening the Times Neighborhood employees’ sense
of identity and execution abilities with the corporate culture,
the cohesiveness of the team and core competitiveness of the
enterprise were enhanced, which would boost the long-term
sustainable development of the Company.
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The signing ceremony for cooperation in Guangdong
Times Hongtai City Operation Management Co., Ltd.
(BEREREEETELEEBRATF) was successfully
held

The signing ceremony for cooperation between Times
Neighborhood on the one hand and Xinji Group Company
Limited ((EE&£B AR A7), Hongtai Technology Group Co.,
Ltd. (BHEEHZEBEAFRAFR]) and Guangzhou Chugin Culture
Communication Co., Ltd. (BMWREZEX(LEEBREEAF) on
the other hand was held in Guangzhou. The parties will make
capital contributions to establish Guangdong Times Hongtai City
Operation Management Co., Ltd., a cooperative company, so as
to open up a new era of operation of the branded park property
ecosystem through a new model of mutual complementation and
resource integration.
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¢ Times Neighborhood launched the Creation of Poetry = ol P
Anthology to solicit people to create the poetry of life .'li B L/
] I

Times Neighborhood solicited property owners and employees to f\mm%//
create a poetry anthology about the 24 solar terms, so that they

turned life into poetry with creative words, adding a touch of
poetry to the beautiful daily life.
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Times Neighborhood ranked 11th in Top 100 Property & T T SRS T
Management Companies in China % Na. %

On 26 April 2022, in the “Research Results Conference of China
Top 100 Property Service Enterprises 2022 and 15th Summit of
China Top 100 Property Service Entrepreneurs” organized by
the Beijing China Index Information Technology Academy and
the Research Group for the Top 10 Real Estate Enterprises in
China, Times Neighborhood ranked 11th in top 100 property
management companies in China, and improved its ranking by
one place in terms of comprehensive strength in China.
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Times Neighborhood published its ESG report

In May 2022, Times Neighborhood published its ESG report,
which analyzed in detail, the new room for the ESG development
of the Company in 6 dimensions: responsible governance, quality
service, employee development, responsible supply, green service
and social responsibility, and demonstrated the philosophy of
sustainable development and the strategic focus of high-quality
development. In the future, Times Neighborhood will continue
to deepen the organic integration of corporate governance
with society and the environment, continuously consolidate its
operation strength, product strength, organization strength and
service strength, and strive to let more people enjoy a better life.

2 0 2 1 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Exceeding RMB7.6 billion! The brand value of Times % @n &

Neighborhood hit a record high

On 15 September 2022, the China Real Estate Brand Value
Research Conference and the 19th China Real Estate Brand
Development Summit Forum were held in Beijing. Times
Neighborhood was awarded three honors, namely “China’s
Leading Brand Enterprise in Terms of Professional Operation of
Property Management in 2022", “China’s Excellent Brand in
Terms of Property Service Satisfaction in 2022" and “Excellent
Brand Enterprise in Guangdong Province in Terms of Property
Services in 2022", with brand value reaching a record high of
RMB7.6 billion, once again demonstrating its excellent service
capability and strong and comprehensive brand strength.
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* The second festival for Creating a Better Life was
successfully held

From 9 September to 12 September 2022, the second festival of
Times Neighborhood for Creating a Better Life was successfully
held. Times communities all over China created surprises and
beauty, through seven events, namely the Mid-Autumn garden
party, building a low-carbon community, super service day,
services for convenience of the public, Neighborhood sweet soup
store, cultural and arts performance, and “miles apart, our hearts
i share tonight, anti-epidemic care”, so that property owners can
i enjoy themselves.
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Times Neighborhood creator photography contest:
Discover beauties with lens

In September 2022, Times Neighborhood launched the creator
photography contest for property owners and employees, with
“people, matters, objects and scenes” as the theme of creation,
so as to capture the time with the camera and freeze every happy
moment.
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Carbon reduction activities of Times Neighborhood to
promote a green and low-carbon life

Times Neighborhood thoroughly implemented the philosophy of
green and low-carbon development. With “Carbon Reduction Life
Season of Times Neighborhood” as the theme, it actively carried out
the energy saving and consumption reduction actions of projects
under management and publicized the construction of a low-
carbon and environment-friendly Times community by holding a
series of activities including “Better Recycling Plan”, the World No
Tobacco Day with the theme of “Caring for Family and Protecting
Environment”, and the “Earth Hour” jointly organized by Times
Neighborhood, Guangzhou Daily and Himalaya.

DREAELE
CORPORATE MILESTONES

Myghies

AgA RIIX

BHUSBE 202285 E H K E

Qe

EFOUEH

W 2022HRBRAHEEE

R BERER AR /2022 FFH,




REABLE
CORPORATE MILESTONES

' 4202212 F |
DECENMBER 2022 [ e

F_ERERABRBREE XREERENR

2022912238 £248 - BlEE X EBERARE [HAMEE_ER
RKIRFBGEIEE KRB ABEEMN - KBMAESEIRET  NESH
E-AZREISHER  RoBBTEART BHRBEHAIH AR
BN RAIERS  EEZANARULRTHBREFRE - EERHME
—EZRETHEEBRMEN M - ALET  BERARRENEIESE -
EESLANZZEGEE -

e T 3

The second Modern Service Creator Contest was held
successfully

EEEREEEEET TR

From 23 December to 24 December 2022, the finals of the
 second Modern Service Creator Contest of Times Neighborhood
were successfully held in Guangzhou and Chengdu, stirring up a
i spree in creator culture again. The event was participated by more
than 300 employees for the debate and attracted the attention
i of more than 100,000 people. Times Neighborhood originated
i the creation of services in the form of debating contests, allowing
i more people to take part in the feast of cultural discussion,
i enabling more than 10,000 employees of Times Neighborhood to
understand and see the direction, and work together as creators
of modern services, and letting more people enjoy a better life.
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Times Neighborhood adhered to its mission at the
front line of the fight against the epidemic

In face of the complicated epidemic outbreak in 2022, the front-
line employees of Times Neighborhood stood firm at the front
line of the fight against the epidemic, actively cooperated with
relevant government departments in implementing epidemic
prevention measures, provided good service and logistic support
for property owners, and formed an “anti-epidemic vanguard” to
provide assistance in various regions, so as to contribute to the
smooth and orderly implementation of the epidemic prevention
and control work, and to build a solid protective wall for the
property owners and residents.
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¢ “Little Property Theatre” of Times Neighborhood was

i launched and became widely known, with quality
Service rov HoRs HHERAURBENR, RAKET? ! ATRER || sy

In 2022, a "Little Property Theatre” series of short videos were
published on the video account of Times Neighborhood, with
a focus on ten hot topics in community life, including garbage
classification, keeping pets in a civilized manner, safety at height,
¢ fire safety, and civilized decoration. Through the interpretation by
' property owners and employees of Times Neighborhood, and in a
¢ form full of warmth and interest, the videos inspired the people
to jointly build, manage and share a harmonious and civilized
i Times community, thus winning warm praise from property
i owners and the people inside and outside the industry.
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Awarding Institution

1, 2022948 2022 B IR B SR B ETOP11
April 2022 2022 Top 11 Property Management Companies in China
2. 2022F 4R 2022 B ERB B REFERRMEBLRLE
April 2022 2022 Leading Companies in the Top 100 Property
Management Companies in Growth in China
3. 2022F 4R 2022 R B R RIB AR
April 2022 2022 Leading Companies in Internet Community Operation
in China
4. 2022454 A 2022 E B TIRBELLE
April 2022 2022 Leading Companies in Intelligent City Services in China
5. 2022548 2022 BEEMERB HEF L%
April 2022 2022 Outstanding Companies in Residential Property
Management in China
6. 2022548 2022 B EIRIFESGERBEF L
April 2022 2022 China Excellent Property Management Companies

in ESG Development
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Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng
Mr. Yao Xusheng
Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
Dr. Wong Kong Tin
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang
Dr. Wong Kong Tin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Chairman)
Mr. Bai Xihong
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Meng

Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Sau Mei (FCG, HKFCG)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zhou Rui
Ms. Ng Sau Mei

REGISTERED OFFICE

71 Fort Street
PO Box 500
George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND REGISTERED OFFICE
IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE
IIPRC")

1103, 11th Floor

410 Dongfeng Middle Road
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Suites 3905-3908, 39th Floor
Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street

PO Box 500

George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. laws:

Sidley Austin

39th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law:

Appleby

Suites 4201-03 & 12, 42/F

One Island East, Taikoo Place
18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong
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www.shidaiwuye.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Ping An Bank, Guangzhou Sinopec Building Branch
1st Floor, Sinopec Building, Tower B

191 Tiyu Xi Road

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

China Construction Bank, Zhongshan Longdu Branch
3 Xijiao Yunhan Road

Qijiang Highway

Zhongshan

Guangdong Province

PRC

Guangdong Huaxing Bank, Guangzhou Branch
Room 109, 1st Floor

Qiaoxin International Finance Centre

62 Jinsui Road

Zhujiang New Town

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

STOCK CODE

9928

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.shidaiwuye.com
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contracted projects management property management
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* All of the data above are the data as of 31 December 2022.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “we"or
“Times Neighborhood”), | am pleased to present the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or the “Reporting
Period”).

2022 was a challenging year for the Group.

The recurring flare-ups of the COVID-19 pandemic in China and the
spread of Omicron in many regional central cities including Shanghai
and Guangzhou seriously hindered the flow of people and logistics
and resulted in the weak consumption of goods and services, thus
greatly affecting the social and economic development in China as
a whole. Meanwhile, the real estate industry in China bottomed
out with difficulties, including the continuous sluggish real estate
investment and sale and spread of the liquidity crisis of real estate
enterprises in the downward cycle, posing significant challenges to
the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue was approximately
RMB2,606.0 million and its gross profit was approximately RMB555.9
million, with the loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounting to approximately RMB213.6 million and the core net profit
amounting to approximately RMB162.1 million. Despite difficulties
and pressure from the macro economy and industry cycle, Times
Neighborhood adhered to the philosophy of “long-termism”, chose
a balanced development path with consideration to both scale and
quality, actively adjusted its business structure and withdrew from
some projects with poor quality, as well as suspended some value-
added services to non-property owners with high book margins but
poor payment collection performance. Simultaneously, the Group
took various measures to collect payments, thus improving the net
operating cash flow.
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CONTINUOUSLY STEADY DEVELOPMENT OF
TWO CORE BUSINESSES

Guided by the “4321" core strategy, the Group continued to be
deeply engaged in four core urban agglomerations, with a focus on
areas with high economic growth.

In 2022, due to the unremitting efforts of the market development
team and the in-depth review by the operation team, the property
management scale of the Group grew steadily, and the concentration
of project arrangements was further enhanced. In the process of
marketization and independence, we constantly developed our
ability to expand independently. During the Reporting Period, the
contracted area secured by Times Neighborhood through third parties
was approximately 19.85 million sg.m.. Meanwhile, we continuously
replaced old projects with new ones, and the management scale of
the Group in first- and second-tier cities accounted for 75.0% of total
gross floor area (the “"GFA").

In terms of business layout, we achieved collaborative development
by integrating brand resources in various business forms and
enabling three core business forms. In terms of residential business,
we continuously improved the management density of core
urban agglomerations. In terms of the industrial park business,
we continuously deepened our cooperation with major property
owners and established cooperative relationships with six new major
property owners in the Year. In terms of the public building business,
we actively broaden the service scope, and on the basis of the
existing public building management scale, we acquired segmental
representative projects, including Guangzhou Nansha Matsu Temple,
and Chaozhou Power Supply Bureau.

With the “technology+service” platform for the whole life cycle, Times
Neighborhood further tapped into the value of the communities under
management. With various matrices including the Neighborhood
Services (#EFB) APP and mini program, we carried out user
management, improved user profiling, constantly upgraded business
development models and enriched service product matrices. In respect
of renovation business, we opened brand image stores to connect
offline and online spending scenarios and promote traffic conversion.
Active responses were made in light of the downturn in the real estate
market, including surmounting the existing market and exploring our
self-operated business, and having developed the first 10-million-level
self-operated overall decoration store. We actively gained insights
into the needs of property owners, gave full play to the advantages
of property companies that are close to property owners, carried out
community group buying, provided various paid home-based services,
and targeting at various daily life scenarios, designed and matched
product sets, so as to provide rich quality goods and resident services
for property owners and customers. During the Reporting Period, the
revenue from the community value-added services was RMB378.6
million.
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FOCUS ON SERVICE QUALITY AND
CONSOLIDATION ON THE FOUNDATION OF
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

With the business philosophy of “providing customers with quality
and caring services”, Times Neighborhood has always prioritized
quality and promoted service innovation. In 2022, we launched the
“Initial Plan 2.0", focusing on four key modules: service, environment,
engineering and safety, so as to comprehensively improve the quality
of community life. We created community brand IP activities “Lehuo
Festival (24)E%7)” and “Happy Creation Festival (Eif8I&EET)" to
provide rich and diverse community activities for property owners,
strengthened the connection between Times Neighborhood and
property owners, and strove to “enable more people to enjoy a better
life”. Despite the pandemic in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Chengdu and
other places, the frontline employees of Times Neighborhood actively
participated in the pandemic prevention and control work, assisted
in the completion of tens of thousands of nucleic acid tests, thus
building a protective wall for life safety in communities.

Due to its good brand reputation and market-tested service quality,
the Group was ranked 11th in the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China, and awarded for the “Leading Companies in
the Top 100 Property Management Companies in Growth in China”,
the “Outstanding Companies in Residential Property Management in
China” and the “China Excellent Property Management Companies
in ESG Development” by CIA in 2022. Meanwhile, the Group won
many awards granted by many authoritative organizations in the
industry, such as: the “Top 8 among Top 100 Property Management
Enterprises in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in
2022", the "2022 Leading Companies of China in Industrial Park
Property Service”, the “2022 China Leading Brand Enterprises in
Terms of Professional Operation of Property Management” and the
“China’s Excellent Brand in Terms of Property Service Satisfaction in
2022", reflecting the full recognition of its professionalism and service
strength by the market and the industry.
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CONTINUOUS UPGRADE OF INTERNAL
OPERATION AND IMPROVEMENT IN QUALITY
AND EFFICIENCY

The Group continuously carried out internal reforms to promote
efficient and delicacy management. In terms of management
efficiency improvement, the Group improved the efficiency of
information-based systems, with a focus on the systematization of
internal management, the platformization of external services and the
integration of data middle offices, and completed the development of
106 efficiency improvement functions, thus improving the efficiency
by 140 thousand persons per day. In terms of delicacy management,
the Group continuously promoted data governance, tapped into
the value of data assets, drove the continuous improvement in the
operation control system, and supported business diagnosis and
efficient decision-making.

PERSISTENCE IN GREEN MANAGEMENT AND
PERFORMANCE OF SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Times Neighborhood has actively made breakthroughs in
environmental, social and governance (the "ESG") governance and
deepened the organic integration of corporate governance, social
responsibility and environmental protection. During the Year, the
Group earned an ESG rating from S&P Global Ratings, an international
rating agency, becoming the first property company in China to
obtain the S&P ESG rating. The Group also actively promoted carbon
reduction actions in communities, issued the first “carbon reduction
practice” for communities, and carried out carbon reduction seasonal
activities such as intelligent and energy-saving transformation actions
and Better Recycling Plan, appealing property owners to pay attention
to carbon emissions in their lives and build a green community
together.

PROSPECTS

Looking into the future, the 20th CPC National Congress Report
and the Central Economic Work Conference have pointed out the
direction for national development. The optimization of pandemic
prevention policies has created a relaxed and favorable environment
for the recovery of social economy and various industries. Positive
attitude and policy changes for the upstream real estate industry
have also boosted the market's confidence in development. In this
context, there will be more development opportunities for the
property management industry, which is closely related to people’s
livelihood, and property enterprises should continuously improve their
professional level and service quality and explore service segments.
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In 2023, the Group will continue to uphold the philosophy of “long-
termism” and forge ahead with a positive and innovative attitude.

We will make efforts in “persistence in four aspects”, namely
persisting in winning trust with high-quality services, constantly
enhancing service capabilities, enriching service connotations, and
attentively “creating services” for property owners to realize the
corporate mission of “enable more people to enjoy a better life”;
persisting in quality growth, forging ahead and seizing market
opportunities, further enhancing the independent expansion ability,
deepening the quality of expansion, and improving the management
density; persisting in the high-quality improvement of economic
benefits, focusing on the in-depth development of value-added
services, continuously tapping into and meeting the real needs of
customers, and exploring promising business segments to create new
growth curves; and persisting in optimizing organizations to enable
businesses, actively promoting organizational reform, building a talent
team that is sensitive to change, flexible and innovative with the
ability to quickly iterate, consolidating the foundation of sustainable
development of enterprises, and making the comprehensive ability
of organizations continuously match the development progress of
enterprises.

We will work with high morale and make continuous improvement.
We believe that as long as we stick to the correct strategic direction,
we can eventually traverse the cycle and find the structural strength
of self-growth. In 2023, a year of economic recovery and catch-
up for China, Times Neighborhood will stick to its beliefs and make
persistent efforts to give back to our property owners, shareholders,
employees and partners with solid and high-quality development
achievements!

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
thanks to all the shareholders and partners who have supported the
Group and to all the hard-working employees! | would like to extend
my most sincere respect to all of the property owners and customers
who have given the Group great kindness and trust!

BAI Xihong
Chairman and Non-executive Director

29 March 2023
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2022%F 20214F 2
2022 2021 Changes
ARBTR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FTEHBKER Key financial information
EER Revenue 2,606,042 2,719,747 (4.2)%
EH Gross profit 555,894 742,060 (25.1)%
FE(E8)/ FE (Loss)/profit for the year
- BRI RS — Including non-controlling interests (199,595) 334,137  F@EA N/A
-BRARIER AR - Attributable to owners of the
parent (213,627) 308,000 T@EA N/A
B REIHA AEGZOFNE Core net profit attributable to
(T EFBELEERX) owners of the parent
(excluding the non-recurring
expenses) 143,305 330,500 (56.6)%
R2022F R20214F
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ARMT T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BERE Total assets 2,928,883 3,268,735
BERE Total liabilities 1,238,895 1,335,366
IB& MIRTTRAEE Cash and bank balances 823,395 825,653
B Total equity 1,689,988 1,933,369
BAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the
parent 1,569,944 1,824,791
FTERHER Key financial ratios
ENE Gross profit margin 21.3% 27.3%
Pl pE Net profit margin TEA N/A 12.3%
AN B Core net profit margin 6.2% 12.2%
BREARREE (F518)/ &F - Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per
ARKES share, RMB cents (22) 31
FTEEEHE Key operating data
RERNEE BELER GFA under management as at
(T RERmALREIER) year end (excluding urban public
(B8¥FK) services projects) (million sq.m.) 118.7 105.5
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The Group attaches great importance to communication with the
capital market and the management actively participates in the
investor presentations of the Group, including performance-related
investor presentation, roadshow, and presentation or seminar in
the capital market, and actively establishes a platform of effective
communication with the capital market through these various
channels. In 2022, the Group actively communicated with investors
and analysts and carried out presentation activities in the capital
market, including the presentation of annual results and interim
results, roadshow, one-on-one meeting and teleconference, etc., and
participated in many investor presentations held by brokers. These
interactive channels further strengthened the two-way communication
between the Group and institutional investors and analysts, and
effectively enhanced investors’ understanding of the Group's business
conditions and long-term development strategy.

2022 F FREHEH

2022 Main Events

1A RABE2022FFEMETERES

January CGS-CIMB China Property Management Industry Strategy Conference 2022
47 BIT201 FFEXEBREEEN S

BIT20 FFRERBAFRZEBERIIENES
BT ERPNREER EXRE
HIETHIRITRPNREER LIRS

April Investor Presentation on 2021 Annual Results
Non-deal Roadshow Series of 2021 Annual Results Presentations
Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by CGS-CIMB
Online Investor Exchange Conference organized by Citibank

201 FEEERME

2021 Annual Results Presentation Conference

B OB

2021 Annual Results Announcement

ZEZ—F2EREAH

2022 R EAEE TS

2022 Interim Results Presentation Conference
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2022 Main Events

5A B EGRE2022 M X EIBITRESG A EE

May ESG Salon for Property Management Industry 2022 organized by CIA
61 RUMEFHEFERS HEEMERDETEREERS

TEERIT2022F FABFEEE S
RIEHEERNN2022 FESGRAFHER RS B iE
June CGS-CIMB Seventh Investor Summit for Hong Kong/China Real Estate and Property
Management Industry
Citibank Asia Pacific Real Estate Conference 2022
ESG Sustainable Development Summit Forum 2022 organized by EH Consulting

7 A HAREEINEET SR [EINTISRER
July “Qverseas Market Investment Week" organized by TF Global and RoadShowChina
8 A BIT2022F P HIRBIREEEN S
BIT2022F P BB IR BB R DN R E)
August Investor Presentation on 2022 Interim Results

Non-deal Roadshow Series of 2022 Interim Results Presentations

9A HELTEEMECERRRBENMEEBARESZET RN [EETHEMECEREIRIE
EYEEIR K| 2022 R 528
September The “China Excellent Real Estate Enterprise Award” and “Excellent Property Management

Award” Ceremony 2022 organized by the Organizing Committee of the China Excellent Real
Estate Enterprise Award and the Excellent Property Management Award

AEEHBRERSEER  BHEEERET
RFEUREREF LR ER - #2022F
NEEEMETEMIEB TR FR{E
BeREA - B AMEAFEALEBRRSH
TG - NEBB2021F48 B4 ERE
REBIEEN AR —E BZIEHNR G K
22— AEEREATMSHNRNEEZES

=
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The Group attaches great importance to the investment community
and makes efforts to procure that its business conditions are reported
in the research reports of brokers. However, brokers paid less
attention to the property management industry in 2022, and only
six domestic and internationally well-known brokers wrote research
reports for the Group during the Year. The Group has been included
in the Hang Seng Property Service and Management Index since the
establishment of the index in April 2021, showing that the Group has
been continuously recognized in the capital markets.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng (E#5), aged 36, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
strategic planning and overall operations of our Group. Ms. Wang
is also our chief executive officer and director of some of our
subsidiaries. Since July 2019, Ms. Wang has been serving as the
general manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Corporate
Governance Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Times Neighborhood”) where
she has been responsible for its overall operation and management.

Ms. Wang joined our Group in February 2019. From February 2019
to July 2019, she served as a deputy general manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood where she was primarily responsible for its
business and technology development, market expansion, medium
and long-term project development and management of some of its
subsidiaries. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2006 to September
2016, Ms. Wang served at Guangzhou Key Public Construction
Project Management Office (EMMEMAHEREBEEETEMRA
%), a governmental department, where her last position was the
director of integrated management department and was primarily
responsible for its human resources, administrative logistics and
property management. From September 2016 to March 2018, Ms.
Wang served as a deputy director at Guangzhou Probity Education
Management Center (EIMNTEKHMEEIEH L), a governmental
department, where she was primarily responsible for its human
resources, administrative logistics and property management. From
April 2018 to September 2018, Ms. Wang worked at Guangzhou
Aerospace Haite System Engineering Co., Ltd. (BMMKEHRE
HLITIEBR AR, a company principally engaged in information
technology, where she was primarily responsible for exploring market
opportunities. From October 2018 to February 2019, Ms. Wang served
as a deputy general manager and general manager of public relations
at Guangzhou Yaojie Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/M REE
B ERMEIEHR AR, a subsidiary of Times China Holdings Limited
("Times China”), where she was responsible for public affairs and
property management of real estate projects in Southern Guangzhou.

Ms. Wang received her bachelor’'s degree of arts from Guangzhou
University (BJNRE2) in the PRC in June 2006 and her master’s degree
in public administration from Jinan University (Bm AX£2) in the PRC in
December 2014.
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Mr. Yao Xusheng (ZkfEF), aged 59, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day operations and administrative matters of our Group.
Mr. Yao is also our vice president. Mr. Yao joined our Group in
June 1998 and served as the general manager at Guangzhou Times
Property Management Co., Ltd. from June 1998 to January 2019.
He has been serving as the general manager at Guangzhou Wanning
Property Management Co., Ltd. from May 2016 to December 2020.
He has been serving as a deputy general manager of our Group since
February 2019 and a director of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood
since August 2019.

Prior to joining our Group, from October 1982 to May 1996, Mr. Yao
worked at White Swan Hotel (HX#E £E) where he was responsible
for the daily operations of room service department.

Mr. Yao received his diploma in tourism and hospitality management
from Guangzhou Vocational School of Tourism and Business (/& 71 i
RS ZEER) (formerly known as Guangzhou No. 1 Tourism School
(BMTHE—REEER)) in the PRC in June 1982. Mr. Yao obtained his
National Property Management Enterprise Manager Certificate (2E%)
EEBMECIEMAEE) from the Personnel Education Department
of the Ministry of Construction (&= AEZ A 7)) and the Housing
and Real Estate Department of the Ministry of Construction (&
REFEHEMEZR]) in May 2006. He was also awarded as an
Outstanding Person of Guangdong Property Management Industry for
the Year 2014-2016 (EREWEREIEITE(2014-2016) [#EHAY])
from Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute (ER & ¥
BIBITEME) in September 2016; in August 2020, he was rated by
Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute as the “Leader”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry; in December 2020, he was rated among
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20207 B4 &5 A
10058)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 EI#)Z 43R A K/E[R5058)" in the “China’s Property
Managers for 2020" sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored
by Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI;
in October 2021, he was also awarded the title of the “Leader for
the 40th Anniversary of the Development of Guangdong Property
Management Industry” in the “40th Anniversary of the Development
of Guangdong Property Management Industry” organised by
Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute.
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Ms. Xie Rao (#{#), aged 44, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
quality operation management, brand positioning and promotion and
public relations maintenance of our Group. Ms. Xie is also our vice
president. She has also been serving as a deputy general manager
at Guangzhou Times Neighborhood since joining our Group in July
2017. From June 2020 to January 2021, Ms. Xie served as the general
manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Environmental Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company).

Prior to joining our Group, from November 2003 to October 2006,
Ms. Xie served as the senior training director of human resources
department at Guangzhou Mayland Investment Limited (/1A
EEWEHBMRAR]), a property developer, where she was primarily
responsible for recruitment and training. From October 2006 to
July 2017, Ms. Xie served as an assistant to the general manager at
Guangzhou Tianli Property Development Co., Ltd. (BM KN
BAERZAF], a subsidiary of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd. (&
ME D ERMBBRAF) (“Guangzhou R&F”) which is a property
developer listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2777) at that
time, where she was primarily responsible for talent strategy planning,
property quality construction and maintenance of public relations.

Ms. Xie has been serving as a member of China Property Management
Association (FEYEEIEWE) and a vice president of Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute (BREVEEEITEWHS)
since 2019 and 2018 respectively. Ms. Xie acted as a vice president of
Guangzhou Property Management Association (B T ¥ % B IR1TE
&) from November 2018 to December 2020. She served as a deputy
director of the Quality Standards Committee (IR#E{t TIELZEE) of
Guangzhou Property Management Association from December 2018
to May 2021. She has acted as a director of the Health and Epidemic
Prevention Committee (f2FEEEPIEEEXZLZEE) of Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute (BREVEEBITEWHS)
since August 2020. In August 2020, Ms. Xie was rated by Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute as the “Outstanding Figure”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry. In December 2020, she was rated among the
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20204 BI#n ¥ 4538 A
1003%)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 EI#) 43R A K/E[R505%)" in the “"China’s Property
Managers for 2020” sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored by
Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI. In
January 2021, she was awarded the title of the “Leader for the 25th
Anniversary of the Establishment of Guangzhou Property Management
Association” by Guangzhou Property Management Association. She
was also awarded the title of the “Leader for the 40th Anniversary
of the Development of the Property Management Industry of
Guangdong” by Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute
in October 2021.
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Ms. Xie graduated from Hunan University (G#EIAZ) in the PRC
majored in economic management in June 2000, and obtained her
qualification as an assistant communication engineer &1z B3 T 12Af)
from Guangdong Department of Human Resources and Social Security
(ERAANBRMESRERE) in March 2004 and her executive
master of business administration degree from Jinan University (2w
AE) in December 2021.

Ms. Zhou Rui (JE#i), aged 38, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
financial management, capital operations and internal control of our
Group. Ms. Zhou has been serving as the general manager of our
financial management center since August 2019. From March 2019
to August 2019, she served as the financial manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood.

Ms. Zhou joined our Group as the financial manager of the financial
management center in March 2019. Prior to joining our Group, from
August 2006 to November 2017, Ms. Zhou worked at KPMG Huazhen
LLP Guangzhou Branch (BEHHERGHAMELT (KR ETREE)
EM 5 FT) where her last position was an auditor manager and was
primarily responsible for the audit of corporate financial statements.
From December 2017 to March 2018, Ms. Zhou served as a financial
manager at Guangzhou R&F where she was primarily responsible
for its financial and accounting matters. From March 2018 to March
2019, Ms. Zhou worked as a financial manager of financial capital
and cost center at Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Limited.

Ms. Zhou received her bachelor of arts degree in English from South
China University of Technology (¥f32 T AE) in the PRC in July
2006. She was admitted as a Certified PRC Public Accountant (&
ElsEf2st6M) certified by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FF Bz & &R E) in June 2015.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (H##), aged 55, was appointed as our
non-executive Director and chairman on 26 August 2019 and
is primarily responsible for providing guidance for the overall
development of our Group. He served as the general manager of our
Group from August 2018 to July 2019.

Mr. Bai joined Times China and its subsidiaries (the “Times China
Group”) in May 2001 and has been serving as the general manager
of Guangzhou regional office since January 2002, where he has
been primarily responsible for project development, marketing and
project management in Guangzhou. He has also been serving as
a vice president of Times China Group since January 2002 and an
executive director of Times China since February 2008. He is currently
the chairman of the strategic and resources management committee
of Times China where he has been primarily responsible for its
integration of strategic business resources.
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Mr. Bai graduated from Guangdong Radio and Television University
(BEREEEMRAE) in the PRC in industrial enterprise operation
management in July 1990 and received his executive master of
business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University (fLLX
£) in the PRC in December 2009. In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognized as
an “Outstanding Contributor to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20
Years” (EINHE—+FEEHERE A) by the Guangzhou Real Estate
in the Past 20 Years' event organizing committee (M E — 14
ABUEENAZ ), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (FINTIEHE
E¥1%®) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (FEibEZ TIt).
He was awarded the “2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (20067 B i 4 8 #2451 5 8
CEQ) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit (F
B 1 2 4S8 R IE®). From December 2011 to December 2016, Mr.
Bai served as a member of the 12th Guangzhou Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF B A RBUA R E
%5+ _EEMNMZE®). Mr. Bai has been serving as the chairman
of Guangzhou Nansha New District Real Estate Association (/M E
DEEFEHERE) since May 2014 and standing vice president of
Guangzhou Real Estate Industry Association (BM M EMEITERHE)
since 2018.

Mr. Li Qiang (Z=3&), aged 48, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for providing
guidance for the overall development of our Group.

Mr. Li joined Times China Group in July 2005 and served as an
assistant to the president from July 2005 to July 2009. He has been
serving as an executive director of Times China since February 2008,
a vice president of Times China Group from July 2009 to April 2020
as well as the senior vice president and the general manager of the
risk control management center of Times China Group since April
2020 where he is primarily responsible for audit, supervision, legal
and quality service management affairs. Prior to joining Times China
Group, Mr. Li worked at Guangdong ETR Law Firm (B E (=& & EAD
EFT) (formerly known as Guangdong Guangxin Law Firm (B®REE
REDETSAT)).

Mr. Li received his master’s degree in law from Hunan Normal
University (#mAT#8KXE2) in the PRC in June 2000 and his executive
master of business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University
(FFIUKER) in the PRC in December 2007. Mr. Li was admitted as a
practicing lawyer in the PRC in June 1998. From September 2011
to September 2016, Mr. Li served as a member of the 15th People’s
Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (EMMmBFREE+TREA
RERFAKE). He has been serving as an arbitrator at Guangzhou
Arbitration Commission (BM{H&Z & €) since October 2018.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (ZB8), aged 62, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From April 1982 to May 1982, Mr. Lui served as an audit assistant at
John B.P. Byrne & Co (*1BW &5 FH75FT), where he was responsible
for audit work. From June 1982 to January 1983, Mr. Lui served as
an audit trainee at PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited (& ERiKES
sHEIETEFT) (formerly known as Coopers & Lybrand (Hong Kong) (7k
EERHAIEK AT (F78)), where he was responsible for audit work.
From March 1983 to May 1986, Mr. Lui served as an accountant
at The Grolier Society of Australia Pty. Ltd., a publisher of general
encyclopedias, where he was responsible for audit work. From
July 1986 to March 1989, Mr. Lui served as an accounting and
administration manager at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited (&
FENRIR B PR AF]) where he was responsible for accounting work.
From March 1989 to November 1991, Mr. Lui served as a manager
at the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong. From
December 1992 to December 1996, Mr. Lui served as a finance
director at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited where he was primarily
responsible for the management of accounting and financial control
functions, corporate finance matters and company restructuring. From
June 1997 to July 2014, Mr. Lui served as a director of Reaload Group
Holdings Limited ({E1% & BT B A F]) (formerly known as Cheong
Ming Investments Limited (& E BB A7) and Cheong Ming
Holdings Limited (2831ZR AR A7), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1196), where he was primarily responsible
for company policies and strategies and financial matters and was
appointed as the chairman in 2008. From September 2004 to August
2016, Mr. Lui served as an independent non-executive director at
Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (&R MITELR AR
~a]) (formerly known as Four Seas Investment Holdings Limited (P4
MNERIEEZRABMRAF]), a food conglomerate listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code:0060). Since May 2000, he has been serving as
the chairman of Capital Financial Press Limited (& A8t &ENfIA R QA
7)), a financial printing services provider, where he has been primarily
responsible for company policies and strategies and financial matters.
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Mr. Lui received his bachelor’s degree in commerce and his master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales in
Australia in April 1982 and May 1985, respectively. He has been
serving as the honorary president of Chamber of Commerce of
Guangzhou Foreign Investment Enterprises (B/MNINERE ¥R
&) since January 2017 and an executive vice president of the 8th
committee of Hong Kong Guangdong Foreign Merchants Association
(BEAERINGAE). Mr. Lui was admitted as a fellow member of
Certified Practicing Accountants Australia in June 1985 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 2005. He is currently an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Z3IX), Justice of the Peace, aged 55, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2019 and is responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group.

Dr. Wong has over 27 years of practical experience in handling cross-
border legal affairs in Greater China. From June 2010 to July 2014,
Dr. Wong served as an independent non-executive director at Great
Wall Technology Company Limited (B EHIRHBBRAF]), a power
products manufacturer and distributor previously listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0074) and automatically delisted in July 2014,
where he was responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the board. Since December 2017, Dr. Wong has been
serving as an independent non-executive director at NOVA Group
Holdings Limited (FEEEEIEARERAF]) (formerly known as Mega
Expo Holdings Limited), a company principally engaged in the cultural
entertainment business and exhibition business and listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1360), where he has been responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice to the board.
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Dr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in law
from Peking University (It K2) in the PRC in July 1993 and July
1995, respectively. He received his doctor’'s degree in constitutional
law and administrative law from Renmin University of China (FBI AR
AK£) in the PRC in July 2001 and his postgraduate diploma in English
and Hong Kong Law from The Manchester Metropolitan University
in the United Kingdom in July 2001 through attending long distance
learning courses. Dr. Wong was admitted as an associate of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (EBEEFFFHEHEZE) in May 2002, an associate
of Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators (B/&HFEAIZE) in August
2002, a Registered Financial Planner (sEfiEA7#55RZIRT) certified by
the Society of Registered Financial Planners ;& 75K EIRHE) in
July 2008, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
(BBEEE22) in September 2008 and a founding member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director Association (& /&%
S IEHITEEHE) in October 2015. He has been serving as a panel
member of Hong Kong Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal (B&ZAM40E
#EH E) from May 2010 to May 2022, the chairman of Hong Kong
Liquor Licensing Board (B ) since January 2018, the chairman
of the Hong Kong Property Management Ordinance Appeal Board (&
EYEEIREP EFRFZ EE) from August 2020 to November 2022,
a member of the Advisory Committee on Post-service Employment
of Civil Servants of the Government of Hong Kong (&84 & BT
BEBL AT B L ERBHEHAEEE) since September 2021, a member
of the Citizens Advisory Committee on Community Relations of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption since January 2022, and
the chairman of the Property Management Services Authority (¥13%%
HEEER) since December 2022.

Dr. Chu Xiaoping (f#/)¥), aged 67, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From June 1986 to December 2003, Dr. Chu successively served as an
associate professor, professor, associate dean and dean of Shantou
University Business School (ILZEKZ72kc) where he was primarily
responsible for management related teaching and administrative
work. Since December 2003, Dr. Chu has been serving as a professor
presenting organization and management related courses of Lingnan
College, Sun Yat-sen University (1 K25/ ZpT). Dr. Chu is
currently an independent non-executive director of Guangdong
Shengyi Technology Co. Ltd. (BRAZREBRMHAERAA), an
electronic equipment manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600183). Dr. Chu served as an independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Co., Ltd. (BMAZ LB EEBRMNDABR AT, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0874) from January 2014
to June 2020, an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou
Haoyang Electronics Holdings Co., Ltd. (BMm S FEFRMHBRA
A]), a company listed on the ChiNext board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300833), from February 2017 to July 2022 and
an independent non-executive director of Oppein Home Group Inc. (B
RREEBRMHBMR AT, a customized home products manufacturer
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603833) from
May 2018 to September 2022.
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Dr. Chu received his master’'s degree in philosophy from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (ZEFR L K Z2) (formerly known
as Huazhong Institute of Technology (Z2# T 22f%)) in the PRC in June
1986 and his doctor’s degree in management from Xi'an Jiaotong
University (FAZ 3 AE) in the PRC in December 2003. Dr. Chu
obtained his senior professional and technical qualification certificate
as an economics professor issued by Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Guangdong Province (BHRA ANERM
T2 REEEE) (formerly known as Human Resources Department of
Guangdong Province (FEE % A%EEE)) in January 2000.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Ms. Wang Meng, Mr. Yao Xusheng,
Ms. Xie Rao and Ms. Zhou Rui, please refer to “Executive Directors”
in this section.

Mr. Kwok Pak Shing (3#FX), aged 38, was appointed as the
chief financial officer of the Company on 10 September 2020 and is
responsible for financial reporting and investor relations matters of
the Company.

Mr. Kwok obtained a bachelor's degree of arts in business studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok
has over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance, financial management and corporate governance matters.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kwok was the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of Zensun Enterprises Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 185). Prior to this role, Mr. Kwok served as a manager in a
reputable international accounting firm, and as the company secretary
and financial controller in two companies listed in Hong Kong. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of A Metaverse
Company (formerly known as Starrise Media Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1616).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 July
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 December 2019, issuing 161,820,000 Shares in total
at the price of HKD5.15 per Share.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. The
analysis of the Group's principal business for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in note 4 of the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

A fair review and performance analysis of the Group’s business
and the industry situation during the year ended 31 December
2022, a discussion on the prospects of the Group's future business
development, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Overview

The Group is a leading and fast-growing urban comprehensive service
operator in China, providing high-quality community services, urban
services and innovative services for diversified industrial types such as
residences, industrial parks, public buildings and other urban spaces.
In 2022, the Group was recognized as the 11th in the 2022 Top 100
Property Management Companies in China by CIA in terms of its
comprehensive strength.

Our main business includes property management services, community
value-added services, value-added services to non-property owners
and other professional services, comprehensively covering the entire
property management value chain.
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Property Management Services

As of 31 December 2022, our contracted property management
services have covered 88 cities, with a total of 956 property
management projects under management (excluding 27 projects
of urban public services), and a GFA under property management
of approximately 118.7 million sq.m.. In addition, we had a total
of 108 contracted property management projects which had not
been handed over to us for management, with undelivered GFA of
approximately 15.4 million sq.m.. Leveraging on the good quality and
market reputation, the scale under management has continued to
grow.

In 2022, we increased our business scale and market share and
diversified our business scope majorly through organic expansion.

The table below sets forth the movements of our contracted GFA
under property management and GFA under management as of the
dates indicated:

BZ12A3MALEFE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021

&8 HE &4 HE
EEmE EEmE BEEE REEE
FEIH FE* FEk FEI*
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
sq.m.’000 sq.m.’000 sg.m.'000 sg.m."000
21 At the beginning of the period 132,015 105,513 81,676 68,818
EBY New engagements” 20,551 28,920 27,713 20,350
Ygg Acquisitions® - - 29,231 22,101
Sl Terminations® (18,424) (15,725) (6,605) (5,756)
LiFS At the end of the period 134,142 118,708 132,015 105,513
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Notes:

(1

3)

In relation to residential communities and non-residential communities
we manage, new engagements primarily include preliminary property
management service contracts for new properties developed by property
developers and property management service contracts for non-
residential communities replacing their previous property management
service providers.

The new engagements item in 2022 also included the business acquired
from the acquisition of 100% interest in Heshan Jianmei Property
Management Co., Ltd. (BBILTEBEYWEEEERAA) (“Heshan
Jianmei”), with a total area of approximately 973,000 sq.m.. The
business of Heshan Jianmei was acquired by the Company through
bidding, with its project management right finally obtained by the
Company by means of equity transfer after negotiation. Given this was
not an active acquisition, it was included in the new engagements item.

These refer to our engagements consolidated through holding a total
of 80% equity interest of Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd. (5%
A EBITRHREMRAF]) (“Chengdu Holytech”) after the further
acquisition of Chengdu Holytech in 2021.

These terminations include our voluntary non-renewal of certain
property management service contracts. We reallocated our resources
to more profitable engagements in an effort to optimize our property
management services portfolio.
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KRMHHE S M Our Geographical Presence

TREFEEFTEREMRREE DD The table below sets forth our contracted GFA under property

¥EBANREEEREEREME management and GFA under management by regions as of the dates
indicated:

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

20224 20214
2022 2021

=y TE a8 TEE
BEmE EEmE REEE EEEEE
FEHK FEHK FEFK FF 75K
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
sg.m."000 sgq.m."000 sq.m.’000 sq.m.'000

KEE Greater Bay Area
=0 Guangzhou 21,070 19,057 25,187 21,473
G Foshan 13,216 12,159 12,213 9,181
b2 7! Zhuhai 5,006 4,390 5,023 4,758
A Zhongshan 2,141 2,075 4,602 4,119
L] Dongguan 3,641 2,950 3,285 2,627
3] Zhaoging 2,925 2,284 3,224 2,617
=M Huizhou 3,450 2,355 2,727 1,970
ST Jiangmen 4,065 3,216 3,285 2,513
Zell Shenzhen 139 139 139 139
NEt Subtotal 55,653 48,625 59,685 49,397

Hitith @ Other Region

HibiEm Northeast China® 336 336 210 210
Eime North China® 2,111 2,111 2,122 2,038
ERIER East China® 20,828 20,255 17,286 16,624
ERE© South China 11,844 9,383 13,056 5,794
i R© Central China® 11,315 9,394 9,456 7,727
Padbibf@ © Northwest China® 4,101 3,120 2,912 1,891
FRE" Southwest China® 27,954 25,484 27,288 21,832
e Subtotal 78,489 70,083 72,330 56,116
&t Total 134,142 118,708 132,015 105,513
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Notes:

Only the provinces, cities and autonomous regions where we have property
management projects are listed below:

(1) Northeast China includes: Liaoning Province, Jilin Province;
(2)  North China includes: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Province;

(3)  East China includes: Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province,
Anhui Province, Jiangxi Province, Shandong Province, Fujian Province;

(4)  South China includes: Guangdong Province (excluding cities in the
Greater Bay Area), Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region;

(5)  Central China includes: Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan Province;

(6)  Northwest China includes: Shaanxi Province, Gansu Province, Ningxia Hui
Autonomous Region; and

(7)  Southwest China includes: Chongqging, Sichuan Province, Guizhou
Province, Yunnan Province.

The Group has been deeply rooted in the Greater Bay Area for more
than 20 years and has continuously expanded the scope of property
management in the Greater Bay Area, further consolidating its
competitive advantage in the area. As at 31 December 2022, among
the Group’s projects under property management, the projects
with the GFA under property management of approximately 48.6
million sgq.m. were located in the Greater Bay Area, accounting for
41.0% of the GFA under property management. With our successful
management experience in the Greater Bay Area and word of mouth
in the market, we achieved rapid expansion in other cities.
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EENFEES Portfolio of Properties under Management

BHMERZTENMELSES  BREERE We manage a diversified portfolio of properties, and in addition to

FEXEHEAE-RERN RMEER focusing on the three major businesses of residential, industrial parks
BEDNE BFE HMEHSHEMERE - and public buildings, we also manage commercial properties, office
WE AR EZRFPIPTIR I RTEIREL o buildings, urban space and other businesses, and are committed to

enriching the types of services we provide.

EEYEER F
Residential Property
Projects
B RO B)% 18T
Times Bund Guoco 18T Mansion
EXEWXRE
Industrial Park Property
Projects
FERET O HY EH M RIERE
Porsche Centre Jiaxing Hitachi Elevator Hi-tech Industrial Park
NEYEER
Public Building Property
Projects

BMNEIRES EEHRES DL

Guangzhou Nanshan Tianhou Palace Zhaoqing New District Sports Center
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TEREVNEMEBZFR B BRRMERETLE D The table below sets forth a breakdown of our GFA under property
MY EBEEREEERERRREARBYE management as of the dates and revenue generated from property

EEREEENBRARA : management services for the periods indicated by the type of
property:
BENANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
W% 2W1E
2022 2021
fE i
BEER bt WA 1t BEHE it WA 1:1
(TEAX) % (ARBTT) % (F¥AK) % (ARBTT) %
GFA under GFA under
management  Percentage Revenue Percentage management  Percentage Revenue  Percentage
(sq.m."'000) %  (RMB'000) % (s0.m.'000) %  (RMB'000) %
fremg Residential properties 68,890 58.0 939,297 505 48,765 46.2 777,677 493
FrENE Non-residential properties 49,818 420 921,040 495 56,748 538 798,994 50.7
EHl Total 118,708 100.0 1,860,337 100.0 105,513 100.0 1,576,671 100.0
BRERBEMAFESNBEARFERLYERE Benefitting from our continuous efforts to expand the customer base
EAE  BITASNBEHRE - WEHE and to diversify the portfolio of properties under management, the
REZHEAALRERMRD o B E2022F12 431 effective strategies for independent expansion were implemented to
H EEXREEHEN68.98E T HAK gain a balanced and diversified business layout. As of 31 December

EEREBEP L ELE58.0% >  FREEWE 2022, the management area for the residential business was
HERRARMBFOARKBI393BE T - 16 approximately 68.9 million sq.m., accounting for approximately
MEEERBEBAMNLS50.5% + E2021F [ 58.0% of the scale under management. The revenue derived from the

HIER%20.8% - HMIRA - BBEERZ T management of residential properties for the year was approximately
{LEEMBENEHBLNELE  BSHRMA RMB939.3 million, accounting for approximately 50.5% of the
E—SRAKEEWHEBEANERPE  BUSE revenue from property management services, representing an increase
BREFEMERA - of approximately 20.8% as compared with the same period of

2021. We believe that the experience and recognition gained from
managing such diversified businesses will enable us to further expand
our portfolio of properties under management, grow our customer
base and generate a stable and recurring income.

FriR SR ENME Nature of developers served
BEAMAKMBLIE=FTIRERE - BRERLT We stepped up our expansion into independent third-party markets.
MRIERE «  BENRBER LB IFR O Leveraging on our high quality services, our professional service team

MEBE . RE=FMSHRERENNESLEE and our renowned reputation, we have achieved rapid growth in
BHESRERIER - terms of GFA obtained from the expansion of third-party markets.
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TR BMBEMREANDEEREE The following table sets forth our GFA under property management
BEMBRNATAMYEREEREEDE as of the dates and revenue generated from property management

EERBEEHBA services by property developers for the periods indicated:
HENANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December

w0E 20015

2022 2021
BEER 137 WA it BERE fhitt B fhitt
(F¥AR) % (ARETR) % (FEAR) % (AREFT) %

GFA under GFA under

management Percentage Revenue  Percentage management  Percentage Revenue  Percentage
(sg.m.'000) %  (RMB'000) % (sq.m.'000) %  (RMB'000) %

BRPESE" Times China Group'” 30,186 25.4 639,749 343 24,916 236 568,786 36.1

F=NEREH Third-party property developers? 88,522 746 1,220,588 65.7 80,597 764 1,007,885 63.9

At Total 118,708 100.0 1,860,337 100.0 105,513 100.0 1,576,671 100.0

/»WEE . Notes:

() 3 B R B 22 1 B B R B 0 W) 2 DA R B (1) Includes properties solely developed by Times China Group and
4 B B L A B o R g 1 B properties that Times China Group jointly developed with other property
$g§m%¥%%§;ﬁﬁ\@ﬁ,ﬁﬁmm¥ . developers to which Times China Group held a controlling interest.

Q) BB B E MR LR (2)  Includes properties solely developed by third-party property developers
B o B0 £ 3] B 2 R B 7 R R B independent from Times China Group, as well as properties jointly
W E%1%q:;ﬂ;;jﬁ$#%ﬁg£%%¥m;§ developed by Times China Group and other property developers for
BRAERS o 9\\?6[3’9%%9}'\&%93%:77E%£ which Times China Group did not hold a controlling interest. Properties
ETE%E@BZJF}%EE?&&E@Q%%% . developed by third-party property developers also include government-

owned buildings and other public properties, which are constructed by
third-party construction companies.

IR TR E T REEAEBAE The percentage of GFA under property management for properties
S EH BE2021E 876.4% N & E2022F 1 developed by third-party property developers declined from 76.4%
74.6% @ TEINAHMERELHRA S in 2021 to 74.6% in 2022. The revenue generated from managing
2021 AR#1,007.98 B L1 1 E2022 properties developed by third-party property developers increased
EMARKI206EE8T  BEHEEETER from RMB1,007.9 million in 2021 to RMB1,220.6 million in 2022.
ERBMEE - REGERNZERRANER Such growth is mainly due to our active and multi-faceted business
Ao cooperation with third parties.
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HEREERE Community Value-added Services

EBMESERBHLER  AREEIRE As an extension of property management services, in order to
REFEFM B - BF RS N satisfy the property owners’ and residents’ pursuit of convenience,

BHE - BMREBEZOMERS - BIQH to enhance customers’ experience and to increase their loyalty, we

CRHEREFEEMEENRAEERE - provide a wide range of services in two categories, namely, public

MEEREIERERELEBALE  EERF - space leasing and parking space management and resident services.

BEEE HEEBUANKBERES - Our resident services mainly include bag checking, home renovation,
asset management, community group buying and housekeeping
services.

TEEHF TR EE R 15 E RS & W A BB The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from

4 community value-added services for the periods indicated:
BZ12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
ON it WA ()54
(AR®F ) % (AR®BTT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
NHEHEER Public space leasing and
(EEXvA-$:i parking space management 111,182 29.4 103,286 18.9
R IR Resident services 267,423 70.6 443,858 81.1
A Total 378,605 100.0 547,144 100.0
2022F 4t 2 1EE AR S WA B 20214F A H1 /Y In 2022, the revenue from community value-added services decreased

ARMBS47T 1A B TR P30.8%EN AR by 30.8% to approximately RMB378.6 million as compared with

378 6B EIL TEMERBHETREREE RMB547.1 million for the corresponding period in 2021, which

FEFBESRIBLENATE - was mainly due to the downsizing of renovation business which
was resulted from the hinderance of household consumption by
preventive measures against the epidemic.

#E B FBAPP EEER

Neighborhood Services APP Renovation business
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4 -

Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

We offer a broad range of property related business solutions to
non-property owners, primarily property developers, which cover
their entire property development process. Such solutions consist
of (i) sales assistance services to assist property developers in
showcasing and marketing their properties, services of which include
pre-sale consultation, display unit management, organizing sales
campaigns and visitor reception for property development projects, (ii)
construction site services, such as consultancy and security services,
(iii) housing agency services for residences, shops and parking spaces,
(iv) pre-delivery cleaning services, and (v) urban redevelopment project
services. In 2022, the revenue derived from value-added services to
non-property owners decreased by 60.5% to approximately RMB156.8
million from RMB396.9 million in the same period of 2021. In light
of the periodic downturn of the real estate industry in China, the
Group adjusted the business scale of value-added services to non-
property owners based on prudent consideration and to balance the
pace of repayment collection, causing the decrease in the revenue
of sales assistance services, pre-delivery cleaning services and urban
redevelopment services for the Year.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
value-added services to non-property owners for the years indicated:

BZ12A31ALFE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
A e WA 1t
(AR¥TF ) % (ARETT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’'000) % (RMB’000) %
3RS Sales assistance services 117,221 74.8 254,675 64.2
i LIRS RS Construction site services 14,863 9.5 37,754 9.5
RTE 2R Pre-delivery cleaning services 507 0.3 37,063 93
WMEHEARMA  Urban redevelopment project 9,204 5.9 38,106 9.6
services

FEEFRN RS Housing agency services 14,963 9.5 29,318 7.4
At Total 156,758 100.0 396,916 100.0
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Other Professional Services

We provide other professional services to our customers, including (i)
elevator services (including sale, installation, repair and maintenance
of elevators); (ii) Zhilian (£8f) technology services; and (iii) urban
public services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
other professional services for the years indicated:

BZ12831ALFE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021

A =134 KA 1t
(AR¥F ) % (AREFT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
BEME RS Zhilian technology services 53,435 25.4 102,084 51.3
BERRS Elevator services 75,529 35.9 46,153 232
WA RS Urban public services 81,378 38.7 50,779 25.5
At Total 210,342 100.0 199,016 100.0

2022 BPVAMERHERBRE - 12
HEBEERLTE EHATELLERER
% BEBIREWAN2021F B HH AR
46 2EETIEMENARKEISSHET ©

2022%F - BB ERER T AKREIER -
AZESHBRETBRE - TRKE BT
SR E BRI REEREZRS - 72022
F12A318 - HM—HBEWTAHERBIER
278 BRI RENSEHNARBE20437
BT FLENSBOARB14048E8TT -

EHRH

Elevator Services

In 2022, we were deeply engaged in the elevator sale services sector.
By doing so, we provided sale and installation of elevator sets,
daily operation and maintenance of elevators. The revenue from
elevator services increased to approximately RMB75.5 million from
approximately RMB46.2 million in the same period of 2021.

In 2022, we continued to develop urban public services projects,
providing services such as municipal sanitation, security patrol,
integrated management of construction site and comprehensive
cleaning for these projects. As at 31 December 2022, we had a total
of 27 urban public service projects, with an aggregate signed contract
amount of approximately RMB294.3 million and an annualized
contract amount of approximately RMB140.4 million.

BRI RTS

Zhilian Technology Services
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HERY XL RERBREMEER
%o REBUABH2021EM AR2,719.7
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A o

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on pages 128 to 129 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 259 to 260 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from property management
services, community value-added services, value-added services to
non-property owners and other professional services. The Group's
revenue decreased by RMB113.7 million or 4.2% to RMB2,606.0
million in 2022 from RMB2,719.7 million in 2021, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in our revenue from community value-
added services.

TERHIAEERFRIZEL D IS B The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue of the Group by
ABR4H : operating segments for the periods indicated:
BZ12A318LLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ON Gtk WA fc)sd
(AR%F ) % (AREFT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’'000) % (RMB’000) %
MEEERG Property management services 1,860,337 71.4 1,576,671 58.0
[ 1 (B AR 75 Community value-added services 378,605 14.5 547,144 20.1
IEEFIRERS Value-added services to
non-property owners 156,758 6.0 396,916 14.6
HE RS Other professional services 210,342 8.1 199,016 7.3
&t Total 2,606,042 100.00 2,719,747 100.00
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The property management services segment remained to be our
largest source of revenue. In 2022, the Group's revenue from property
management services was approximately RMB1,860.3 million,
accounting for 71.4% of the Group’s total revenue. This increase in
revenue was driven by the growth of our GFA under management,
which was resulted from both our continuous cooperation with Times
China Group and our efforts to expand the third-party customer
base. The decrease in revenue from community value-added services
was mainly due to the decline in revenue from resident services.
The decrease in revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners was mainly due to the decline in revenue from sales assistance
services, urban redevelopment project services and housing agency
services. The increase in revenue from other professional services was
mainly due to the increase in revenue from urban public services.

Cost of Sales

Our expenses mainly consist of (i) labor costs; (ii) cleaning and
gardening expenses; and (iii) maintenance costs, etc. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the total expenses of the Group
was approximately RMB2,050.1 million, which increased by
approximately RMB72.5 million or approximately 3.7% as compared
to approximately RMB1,977.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such increase was mainly due to the adjustment of employees’
basic remuneration and the increase in labor costs.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Based on the above reasons, the gross profit of the Group decreased
by approximately RMB186.2 million or approximately 25.1% to
RMB555.9 million in 2022 from RMB742.1 million in 2021, which was
primarily attributable to the downsizing of value-added services to
non-property owners and community value-added services business.
The gross profit margin of the Group decreased by 6.0 percentage
points to 21.3% in 2022 from 27.3% in 2021, primarily due to the
general decrease in gross profit margin as a result of the adjustments
in business structure and the basic employee compensation, and the
increase of labor costs.
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Gross profit margin of the Group by business lines was as follows:

BZE12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

20225 20214

% %

2022 2021

% %

Y EIBIR Property management services 21.9 26.7
tt R I E RS Community value-added services 32.9 33.9
IEEFIRERS Value-added services to non-property owners 6.4 26.0
Hith B R Other professional services 6.9 16.1
FaENE Total gross profit margin 21.3 27.3

BHMHYEEEREENETF48ET D
BoOIZREWMBTHMAERE - ASKFIE
m- BEYMEEERGEMNETRE -

B B AR ERE T1L.0EEH
% IERmRRBAANRBEREL £
IR AT -

BAFERTRERFEMETE19.6EF
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The gross profit margin of our property management services
decreased by 4.8 percentage points. The decrease in gross profit
margin of property management services was mainly due to the
increase of labor costs as a result of the adjustment of the basic
employee compensation.

The gross profit margin of our community value-added services
decreased by 1.0 percentage point, mainly due to the adjustment and
change of service portfolio.

The gross profit margin of our value-added services to non-property
owners decreased by 19.6 percentage points, primarily due to the
decrease in revenue and gross profit margin of sales assistance
business as a result of the cyclical impact of China’s real estate
market.

The gross profit margin of our other professional services decreased
by 9.2 percentage points, primarily due to the adjustment of business
structure of Zhilian technology services.

Other Income and Gains

The other income of the Group decreased by approximately RMB9.9
million or 26.0% to RMB28.2 million in 2022 from RMB38.1 million in
2021, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in gains from
government grants received.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) office expenses;
and (ii) depreciation and amortization, etc. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the total administrative expenses of the
Group were approximately RMB341.7 million, which increased by
approximately RMB62.5 million or approximately 22.4% as compared
to approximately RMB279.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the expenses
arising from business expansion.
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Net Impairment Losses on Financial and Contract Assets

The net impairment losses on financial and contract assets of the
Group increased by approximately RMB361.8 million or approximately
3,464.4% from approximately RMB10.4 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB372.2 million in 2022. Such increase was mainly
due to increased credit risk of several customers, and increased trade
receivables, resulting in the increase in impairment provision of trade
receivables.

The breakdown of such net impairment losses is set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements for this year in this report
and the details on the method, key assumptions and basis used in
determining such amount of net impairment loss is set out in notes 3,
21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements for this year in
this report.

Specifically, an independent valuer (the “Independent Valuer”) was
also engaged by the Company to assess the expected credit losses (the
“ECL") of approximately RMB331,039,000 of the account receivables
due from the related parties of the Group as at 31 December 2022
(the "Assessment”). The management made full impairment
provision for certain individual account receivables due from related
parties given their low recoverability. For the remaining balances,
the Independent Valuer adopted the default risk method, to which
the ECL were estimated based upon analysis of the debtors’ credit
to repay their debts. The formulae is shown below with assumptions
considered to have significant sensitivity effects evaluated to provide
an accurate and reasonable basis for arriving at the assessed value:

ECL = Exposure at Default ("EAD”) * Probability of Default ("PD") *
Loss Given Default (“"LGD"”) * Forward Looking Adjustment (“FLA”) *
Discount Factor ("DF”)

Key inputs and assumptions of the Assessment included, among
others:

o PD: Credit rating analysis to the related parties was performed
with reference to the financial performance and conditions of
the related parties and ratings (Ca/C) published by Moody’s
Investors Service. Corresponding default rates (32.60%-53.10%)
were then assumed according to the credit rating assigned
for different durations between 31 December 2022 and the
repayment dates (i.e. assumed to be within 3 years from 31
December 2022), with reference to the default rate statistics of
up to 2022 published by Moody’s Investors Service;

o LGD: Assumed to be 61.30%-61.50% and the subjects were
unsecured;
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o FLA: Forward-looking adjustment (i.e. 104% as sourced from
a regression analysis) were applied to the historical default
loss percentage to reflect changes in economy, regulation,
technological environment, etc.; and

. DF: The discount factor was derived with reference to the China
Government Bond Yield Curve as at 31 December 2022 to
reflect the time value of money.

Other Expenses

The other expenses of the Group increased by approximately RMB54.4
million or approximately 192.2% to approximately RMB82.7 million
in 2022 from approximately RMB28.3 million in 2021. The increase in
the expenses was mainly due to the increase of the impairment loss of
goodwill.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately RMB2.2
million or approximately 66.7% to approximately RMB1.1 million in
2022 from approximately RMB3.3 million in 2021. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease of interest expense arising from revenue
contracts.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the income tax credited to
the Group’s statement of profit or loss was approximately RMB48.8
million (2021: income tax expense of RMB109.7 million). The decrease
in income tax expense was primarily due to the decrease in taxable
income.

Core Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent for
the Year

After excluding non-recurring expenses (including loss allowance
for impairment of financial and contract assets and goodwill since
2022) from the net profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
Year, the core net profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB143.3 million in 2022 (2021:
RMB330.5 million), representing a decrease of 56.6%.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’'s property, plant and equipment mainly included
leasehold improvement, motor vehicles and office equipment. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group's property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB92.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB2.6 million from approximately RMB95.2 million as
at the end of 2021, mainly due to an increase in the depreciation of
property, plant and equipment.
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and other professional
services provided to Times China Group and third parties. The Group's
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB800.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB339.5 million or 29.8% as compared to approximately
RMB1,140.0 million as at 31 December 2021, primarily due to the
increased provision for impairment losses on financial assets.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables increased by 14.5% from
RMB270.3 million as of 31 December 2021 to RMB309.5 million as of
31 December 2022, primarily due to the expansion of the Company’s
business scale.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB560.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB9.0 million or 1.6% as compared to approximately
RMB569.4 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
expansion of the Company’s business scale.

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals increased by approximately 1.4%
from approximately RMB371.5 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB376.7 million as of 31 December 2022, primarily
due to the expansion of the Company's property management
business scale.

Financial Position and Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group maintained a sound
financial position.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.80 times (31 December 2021: 1.94 times)
and net gearing ratio indicated a net cash status (31 December 2021:
net cash). Net gearing ratio is calculated by other interest-bearing
borrowings minus cash and cash equivalent, and then divided by net
assets. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have
any outstanding other interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial Guarantee

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any financial
guarantee.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, none of the assets of the Group were
pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Interest Rate Risk

As the Group had no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group is not exposed to material risk directly relating to changes
in market interest rate.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operations are
denominated in RMB. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the RMB exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to
entering into currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate for
hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did
not engage in hedging activities for managing foreign exchange rate
risk.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE ENTERPRISES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, affiliates and joint venture enterprises during
the Year, nor was there any plan authorized by the Board for other
material investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this
report.

52 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



KERTE

(a)

(b)

B LERETIE

iR AN AR HE 5 B A2020%F6 A
28H K%2020%F7A108 A @A £ B
BLERSMERBER QR ([LE
BEF)S1%REN LS - BIERES
ZEHaE o EERE R E 22020F -
20214F 2022412 A318 1F 8 B £
EAEBRTEABRBEZFNE - AX
NAEERENEEHESHEBS RS
oo BIE LRSI EIE 2022912 A31
AIFEFNBEEEREFRERAAQF
BRIABZEMERMN S ER - £
ERIET TR ER A £2022F12A31H
R EFFENRESE  AQA
MEEFERBEEED RS
AARREE LERISTHF ERIERE
FFREE R ERZRE - AR A
BREHE—SRE -

BREABEERE

ZIRM AN A HE S 5 &2020%12 A
1M B2021F4R16B @A LU
FKEB A ES0% R IEM N - IRIEARE
HEWpE A EREE2021F
20224 2023412 A318 1F 8 B &
EHEBRENRBEFNE - BX
NAEEENSHHESHEBS RS
B o ANR B TR ER S E R AL IE AL B
Z2022F 128318 B B F & R BE &
REFESEE - HREEARFREFIEREAR
RRAMAZEKE S ENF BRIEBERE
FrmE  ARAIRERTETRZZH
B ARREEEZREKREESE
R ER A ENFEEEERR
& WS BEERRIE LR A AT —
FBRE s NENRERBEREEK
HMEENEREERADAEHE2022
F12A31 AR D RIEF -

OPERATIONAL TARGETS

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Shanghai Kejian

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 June 2020 and 10 July 2020, respectively, in relation
to the acquisition of 51% of the equity interest in Shanghai
Kejian Property Services Co., Ltd. (EBRIETMERBER A
A]) (“Shanghai Kejian") by the Group. Pursuant to the equity
transfer agreement, Shanghai Kejian should achieve a target net
profit after tax for the financial years ended 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022, and the Company should be entitled to relevant
distributions for each of the periods. Based on the preliminary
review of the profit specific audit report of Shanghai Kejian
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and other information
currently available to the Company, Shanghai Kejian is expected
to achieve the guaranteed amount of the net profit after tax
as of 31 December 2022, and the Company was also entitled
to receive relevant pro-rata distributions. The Company will
make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate if
the guarantee could not be met upon finalisation of the profit
specific audit report of Shanghai Kejian by the Company.

Acquisition of Chengdu Holytech

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 11 December 2020 and 16 April 2021, respectively,
in relation to the acquisition of an aggregate of 80% of the
equity interest in Chengdu Holytech. Pursuant to the equity
transfer agreement, Chengdu Holytech should achieve a target
net profit after tax for the financial years ended 31 December
2021, 2022 and for the financial year ending 2023, and the
Company should be entitled to relevant distributions for each of
the periods. The Company expected that Chengdu Holytech has
failed to meet the guarantee amount of the net profit after tax
as of 31 December 2022. As the profit specific audit report of
Chengdu Holytech has not been finalised by the Company as at
the time of publication of this report, it cannot be ascertained
in relation to the amount of the shortfall. The Company requires
additional time to gather more information to finalise the
profit specific audit report of Chengdu Holytech and will make
further announcement(s) as and when appropriate to inform
the Shareholders and potential investors in relation to the actual
performance of the Chengdu Holytech pursuant to the Listing
Rules and the Company’s entitlement to relevant distributions as
of 31 December 2022.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 9,128 full-time employees
(31 December 2021: 10,268 full-time employees).

The remunerations of the employees are commensurate with their
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and the market trend.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include provident fund
schemes, medical insurance scheme, unemployment insurance
scheme, housing provident fund and mandatory provident fund. The
Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on a regular
basis and will make necessary adjustments that accommodate the
pay levels in the industry. In addition to basic salaries, the employees
may be offered with discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances. The Group also provides training programs
for the employees with a view to constantly upgrading their skills and
knowledge. For more information on the Group's training during the
year, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the Company.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). Pursuant to the relevant labour laws, rules
and regulations in the PRC, the Group also participates in a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Benefit
Scheme"”) operated by the relevant local government authorities in
the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no
forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who
leave the MPF Scheme and Retirement Benefit Scheme prior to vesting
fully in such contributions) which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions. There were also no forfeited
contributions during the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 under the MPF Scheme and Retirement Benefit Scheme which
may be used by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The Group's employee benefit expense (excluding Directors’
remuneration) is approximately RMB1,029.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB895.5 million).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Under the emolument policy of the Group, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) will consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, tenure, commitment,
responsibilities and performance (as the case may be) of our Directors
and the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors and the senior management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements for this year in this report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has not adopted any share
option scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to recognize the
contributions of the Selected Participants (defined below) and
encourage them to remain in office in the Group, thus promoting
continuing operation and development of the Group. The Scheme
shall be valid until the business day immediately prior to the 10th
anniversary of the Adoption Date. The details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 September 2020 and below:

(a) Selected Participants

The Board or any person authorized by the Board for the
administration of the Scheme (an “Authorized Person”) (as the
case may be) may, from time to time, select any individual, being
any (i) employee (whether full-time or part-time employee) of
any member of the Group provided that the individual shall not
cease to be an employee in the case of (a) any leave of absence
approved by the relevant member of the Group; or (b) transfer
amongst any member of the Group or any successor, and
provided further that an employee shall, for the avoidance of
doubt, cease to be an employee with effect from (and including)
the date of termination of his employment or (ii) director of
any member of the Group who the Board or an Authorized
Person (as the case may be) considers, in its sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (an “Eligible
Person”) as a selected participant (the “Selected Participant”)
and, subject to the Scheme rules, grant an award under the
Scheme (an “Award”) to such Selected Participant during the
period commencing from the Adoption Date, and ending on the
business day immediately prior to the 10th anniversary of the
Adoption Date (the “Award Period”).
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Notwithstanding the above, any individual (i) who is resident
in a place where the grant, acceptance or vesting of an Award
pursuant to the Scheme is not permitted under the laws and
regulations of such place or (i) where, in the view of the Board
or an Authorized Person, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in such place makes it necessary or expedient to
exclude such individual, such individual shall not be entitled to
participate in the Scheme and he/she shall therefore be excluded
from the term “Eligible Person”.

Maximum number of Shares to be granted

The total number of award shares granted under the Scheme
(the “Award Shares”) shall not exceed 3% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date, being 29,570,182
Shares, representing approximately 3.0% of the total number of
issued Shares as at the date of this report.

The total number of Award Shares granted to any one Selected
Participant under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date, being
9,856,727 Shares.

The vesting period of Awards granted under the
Scheme

The vesting of any Awards under the Scheme shall be subject to
a vesting period to be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, which shall be specified in the grant notice. The
Award Shares will be vested to the current Selected Participants
set out in the summary below on 31 March 2024, provided that
all vesting conditions shall be satisfied.

The purchase price of the Award Shares

The purchase price in respect of any particular Award Share
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board may in
its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Award and shall be specified in the grant notice.
Factors including but not limited to the offer price of the Shares
pursuant to the Company's global offering, the prevailing
closing price of the Shares, the purpose of the Scheme and
the characteristics and the profile of the relevant Selected
Participant(s) have been/will be taken into account. The period
within which payments must or may be paid is within 5 working
days from the date of granting of the Award Shares.
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(e)

(f)

HK$5.15 per Award Share was paid on acceptance of the Award
by the current Selected Participants set out in the summary
below.

According to the Scheme, the Award Shares will be satisfied
by way of acquisition of existing Shares through on-market
transactions by the trustee at the prevailing market price and
will be held on trust until they are vested.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall remain in force during the Award Period and
has a remaining term of approximately 7 years and 5 months as
at the date of this report.

Details of Award Shares granted

On 13 November 2020, according to the Scheme, the Company
granted 24 Selected Participants (including 4 executive Directors)
a total of 3,350,000 Award Shares, representing approximately
0.34% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at 13
November 2020. The details are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 13 November 2020.

As at 31 December 2022, a total of 3,350,000 Shares were held
under the Scheme and shall be held upon trust for the benefits
of the relevant grantees until they are vested (or cancelled)
in accordance with the Scheme. As at 1 January 2022 and 31
December 2022, a total of 26,220,182 Award Shares were
available for future grant under the Scheme.

During the Reporting Period, there was no purchase of Shares of
the Company by the trustee under the Scheme, and no Award
Shares were granted/vested/cancelled/lapsed/forfeited under
the Scheme by the Company save as disclosed in the summary
below.
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A summary of the Award Shares granted and their movements during

T the Year is set forth below:
RBRAHAE
Number of Award Shares
R2022% K202
REE 1818 &S REE RESHRN RESHR 12A31H
EESRENE REAH FEH BT EMRTE/ BB HRRL HRER B AN/ RK HATE/ BB
Outstanding/ Lapsed/  Outstanding/
unvested Granted Vested  Cancelled  forfeited unvested
Purchase asat during the during the during the during the as at
Name of Selected price 1January Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 December
Participants Date of grant Vesting period HK$ 2022 Period Period Period Period 2022
FHRL 20208118138 202081181382 SREBRH 200,000 - - - - 200,000
2024F3A318 51587
Ms. Wang Meng"” 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
31 March 2024 Award Share
Y Evapitial 2008118138 202061181382 SREBRH 200,000 - - - - 200,000
2024%3A318 51587
Mr. Yao Xusheng” 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
31 March 2024 Award Share
Bl 20008118138 200811A138E  SREBRR 200,000 - - - - 200,000
2024%3A318 5157
Ms. Xie Rao'"! 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
31 March 2024 Award Share
EE el 2020118138 202081181382 SREBRH 200,000 - - - - 200,000
2024F3A318 51587
Ms. Zhou Rui® 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
31 March 2024 Award Share
BEMNEEER 2008118138 200E11A138F  EREBRH 400,000 - - - - 400,000
FTIBEN 2024%3F318 5157
RREHAL
Non-Director and 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
non-chief executive 31 March 2024 Award Share
officer highest paid
individuals during
the Reporting
Period?
EtEE28E0 20008118138 20208118138 SREEEH  1,900,0009 - - - (400,000 1,500,000
202437318 51587
Other employee 13 November 2020 13 November 2020 - HK$5.15 per
participants® 31 March 2024 Award Share
At Total 3,100,000 = = - (400,000)® 2,700,000
s - Notes:

(1) REBXFAES WA (LR (1)
T4AE » WARAKABMEEAL -

Under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), he/she is a connected person
of the Company.

(2) 3% (2021%F : 3%) FBEERIFTRAEN (2)
S MEEE AU AL REERE
B o A $£600,000/ BEIRMNERFH
fEREFMAL  BEAQFNTHART
B -

Share Awards were granted to 3 (2021: 3) non-Director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees in respect of his services to the Group.
In aggregate, 600,000 Share Awards were granted to the five highest
paid individuals (including Ms. Wang Meng, the chief executive officer
of the Company).

The other employee participants excluded (i) Directors and (ii) the five

(3) MWEHRN - HEELHETEENES (3)
° highest paid individuals during the Reporting Period.

R AR H AL
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(4) HZE2021F128318IEFE - £H28HM
EESLHEETHAGERATEYERBT
I SEEIAR D - RIFZETE] - FH R RFEED
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RS IR o HORIRK SRR DR AR BE
f&1p - B RS ASE A R m R K
By aiEE -

(5) FARBIRERESBETBREERAL
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1A 149 A 57 /B8 B 2D A% £ - BI& #£400,000/%
HREEp R {) O BIBF 302 M » 1508 i BRI AR £
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AP SR R A SRR T O 22 R o
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1% {51 PR %8 19 228 - sk(ii) R (01218 A
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Hﬁ I%\ E& kﬁ
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BRERBHERERE

ARAHRERR RRRERBRAR AN
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BARRDNRFTAN - AEBERE £2022F12A4
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ERARBEARERER - XAEEB TR E
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EHTEMIRRIEERER - LANsg ] iF48
o

(4)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 2 other employee
participants ceased to be Eligible Persons and no Award Shares were
vested. According to the Scheme, any Award Shares that have not yet
vested, that is, a total of 250,000 Award Shares, have been immediately
forfeited. These forfeited Award Shares were regarded as returned
Shares, which will continue to be held by the trustee and can be used to
satisfy the Awards to be granted in the future.

(5)  During the Year, a total of 3 other employee participants ceased to be
Eligible Persons and no Award Shares were vested. According to the
Scheme, any Award Shares that have not yet vested, that is, a total of
400,000 Award Shares, have been immediately forfeited. These forfeited
Award Shares will be regarded as returned Shares, which will continue
to be held by the trustee and can be used to satisfy the Awards to be
granted in the future.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, there was
no Award granted and to be granted under the Scheme to (i) any
Directors, chief executive or substantial Shareholders of the Company,
or their respective associates, (ii) other employee participants, related
entity participants and service providers, or (iii) the five highest paid
individuals of the Company. There was also no (i) participant with
Awards granted and to be granted in excess of the 1% individual
limit, or (ii) related entity participant or service provider with Awards
granted and to be granted in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1%
of the relevant class of Shares in issue.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our Directors,
depending on our results of operations, cash flows, financial position,
statutory and regulatory restrictions on the dividends paid by us,
future prospects, as well as any other factors which our Directors may
consider relevant. We have no policy for future dividend payments.
Our Board has absolute discretion as to whether to declare any
dividend for any year, and in what amount. For more details on
dividend distribution, please refer to the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICIES
AND PERFORMANCE

Information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the 2022 ESG Report of the Company.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations of the places where the
Group has business operations during the year ended 31 December
2022. The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further measures and practices in
the Group’s business operations to enhance sustainability.

RRIPEIERBR AR /2022 FFER
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The Group adheres to environmental sustainability. The Group strives
to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully managing
its energy consumption, water usage, property design and waste
production.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group, particularly in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group. The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not make
charitable and other donations (31 December 2021: RMB825,000).

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of our relationship with employees are set out in the section
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policy” of this annual report.

Our customers primarily consist of property developers, property
owners and residents and governmental authorities.

For all of our business lines, our suppliers are primarily sub-contractors
providing cleaning, gardening and certain repair and maintenance

services.

Please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the Company for more details.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB2.2 cents per
ordinary share (2021: RMB4.7 cents) totalling approximately
RMB21,685,000 (2021: RMB46,327,000) for the year ended 31
December 2022. The final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM, and is expected to be paid on or around
10 July 2023. The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB
and paid in HKD. The final dividend payable in HKD will be converted
from RMB to HKD at the average exchange rate of HKD against RMB
announced by the People’s Bank of China on 30 May 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May
2023 to 30 May 2023, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Hong Kong
share registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 22
May 2023.

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend
is 8 June 2023. In order to determine the right of the Shareholders
entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is subject to the
approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 6 June 2023 to 8 June
2023, both days inclusive. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Hong
Kong share registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on 5 June 2023.
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T ERERENAR USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

KA MHR EmHEE (BI2019F12H819 The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
B)(TETmAE]) A2HBEFTRERIAR Stock Exchange on the listing date (i.e. 19 December 2019) (the

IR EMTEDN])  EERERIE(KH “Listing Date"”) by way of global offering (the “Listing”), raising the
BEEXER . A EMAEE ETEY total net proceeds (after deducting professional fees, underwriting
%) 1 5584 B2786,744,1787B T ° commissions and other related listing expenses) of approximately

HKD786,744,178.

M2022F12831H » T B HREIL LB As at 31 December 2022, the proceeds from the listing are and will
BARLNTHEA2019F12 A0HABIRER be used according to the plans disclosed in the section headed “Future

[RKRAZIREFRIERSE — TEHRERAZ | Plans and Use of Proceeds-Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus dated 9
— &R EN RIS A ¢ December 2019 of the Company:
RerRER ARAEANRERE
FERERERAE R202F512A31AFEREERAE (BEEELE) MAERERERAEZ WREBEARER
Actual Use of Proceeds Intended Use Expected Timeline
Proposed Use (Including the Reserved Amount) of Remaining for Use of Remaining
of Proceeds as at 31 December 2022 Unutilized Proceeds  Unutilized Proceeds

7

a) BEMETIESEN AHMERIESEN65%K511,383, 716 BT A BARSREELE  RAERNSKERNASE £
65%3(511,383,716 BEERMBRS A RE—PRESEEE  BANT HIE -
BLEBREREE
HEBRERYER | FETEFENL5.0%KARK32,722,984 87T (FHERE
SURE—TERE 39,247,948.03%70) E R B E B K 2 HME

BREER

bl

i, FTBHIEFENL23%HARE14,868,132.6 7T (HHERL
17,832,838.2787T) E A i BN B R 2 BR AR A

i, PTSFIBFEA4135.7% 5k AR5 234,050,000.0 7T (FEE R4
280,719,570.087T) B AR UKE EIBRIET51% R E

iv. FTEFUBFEML20.8%%k AR 136,504,180.07C (FHERY
163,723,113.37870) E R BB 25 249% HRRHE © ]

PSR FENL1.2% N ARES,220,982.6 70 (IHERL
9,860,246.5/87T) B AR E At B RS U ER -

=<

ERRAERRTARLBEARE
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Proposed Use
of Proceeds

R2022F 12831 BFIBEER AR (BEREELE)
Actual Use of Proceeds

(Including the Reserved Amount)

as at 31 December 2022

Fehk A ek EANFENE
WAERERERE NEBEARBR
Intended Use Expected Timeline
of Remaining for Use of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds  Unutilized Proceeds

Approximately
65% of the total
net proceeds or
HKD511,383,716
will be used for
seeking selective
strategic investment
and acquisition
opportunities and
further developing
strategic alliances;

AR AEREFED
15%3£118,011,627
AT R MM i
B RITEE R4

& REREFRY

BE:

Approximately 65% of the total net proceeds or HKD511,383,716
was completely used for seeking selective strategic investment and
acquisition opportunities and further developing strategic alliances, as
follows:

i.  Approximately 5.0% of the net proceeds or RMB32,722,984.8
(equivalent to approximately HKD39,247,948.0) was used for
acquiring the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Haoging;

ii. Approximately 2.3% of the net proceeds or RMB14,868,132.6
(equivalent to approximately HKD17,832,838.2) was used for
acquiring the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Yaocheng;

iii. Approximately 35.7% of the net proceeds or RMB234,050,000.0
(equivalent to approximately HKD280,719,570.0) was used for
acquiring a 51% equity interest in Shanghai Kejian;

iv. Approximately 20.8% of the net proceeds or RMB136,504,180.0
(equivalent to approximately HKD163,723,113.3) was used for
acquiring a 49% equity interest in Chengdu Holytech; and

v.  Approximately 1.2% of the net proceeds or RMB8,220,982.6
(equivalent to approximately HKD9,860,246.5) was used for other

strategic acquisitions.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.

BEFTERIBERFEN1.7%591,834,55978 7. & B R FIF 2L Bl )2
TEEEHE  RRESZFREEE - HAWT

i FBRIBFEA6.5%851,237,876 Bt ANESHRIER

ii. FTSRIEEELNL4.9%538,520,843B T AR 2B ER ERT
=

iii. FIBRIEFEA0.3%52,075, 8408 tE AR E TR FLES
BH -

ERRAERRTARLBEARE

There are no N/A
remaining unutilized
proceeds.

HgRFERNAME R2023F12 A31 8%
FEFEL33%H ZA
26,177,068 B T

BREARTERSE -
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HHAER MR ERNREIE
FERERERE M202F12A31BAMENEERRAE (BEREELR) WREHEETRAE HREBEARHER
Actual Use of Proceeds Intended Use Expected Timeline
Proposed Use (Including the Reserved Amount) of Remaining for Use of Remaining
of Proceeds as at 31 December 2022 Unutilized Proceeds  Unutilized Proceeds
b) Approximately Approximately 11.7% of the total net proceeds or HKD91,834,559  Approximately On or before 31
15% of the total was used for improving the customer service quality by using  3.3% of the December 2023*
net proceeds or advanced technology and building a smart community, as follows: remaining unutilized
HKD118,011,627 net proceeds or
will be used for i.  Approximately 6.5% of the net proceeds or HKD51,237,876 was ~ HKD26,177,068
improving the used for the smart community project; will continue to be
customer service used for the original
quality by using ii.  Approximately 4.9% of the net proceeds or HKD38,520,843 was  purpose.
advanced technology used for the nationwide integrated management and control
and building a smart platform; and
community;

jii. Approximately 0.3% of the net proceeds or HKD2,075,840
was used for the property engineering digital operation and
maintenance project.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.

0 AEBRIESEL AHMERIEEELNT.4%%K58,127,757TE TR BRE—FRE IR
10%38(78,674,417 RETA - HAWMT :
ATHEERE— T

E-UURBTE: I MEREFENN1.1%%8,778,909 8 T2 AR — WA BT
R A-HERINFRENIATEZ+ME I NERRE

i. FISFIEEERNL3.4%526,600,613 BT ARET —BILE

&
i, FTERUEBEMNA0.1%5963,695 BT BNETREES
iv. FTSEUEEENL0.4%33,493,914 8 TC AR EEDLER ¢

v. PIBRUBFEAA0.4%52,758,259 B TE AR 2L L EET
818 &
AR

vi. FTBRIEFEMAI2.0%515,532,367 BT AR ERFAER o

ERRE2ERRTARLEEARE
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Proposed Use
of Proceeds

R2022F 12831 BFIBEER AR (BEREELE)
Actual Use of Proceeds

(Including the Reserved Amount)

as at 31 December 2022

RBAREA

NArERERE AR
Intended Use
of Remaining

Unutilized Proceeds

ek EANFENE
W ARRE R
Expected Timeline
for Use of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds

Approximately
10% of the total
net proceeds or
HKD78,674,417
will be used for
further developing
a one-stop service
platform; and

RAETAFEL
10%75,78,674,417
BTRAEREES
R—BARRE -
Approximately

10% of the total
net proceeds or
HKD78,674,417 will
be used for working
capital and general
corporate purposes.

Approximately 7.4% of the total net proceeds or HKD58,127,757 was
used for further developing a one-stop service platform, as follows:

i. Approximately 1.1% of the net proceeds or HKD8,778,909
was used for the development of the one-stop service platform
“Neighborhood Services (#Z7)" and the application
development of “artificial intelligence + property";

ii. Approximately 3.4% of the net proceeds or HKD26,600,613 was
used for the business and finance integration system;

jii. Approximately 0.1% of the net proceeds or HKD963,695 was
used for the property owner service system;

iv. Approximately 0.4% of the net proceeds or HKD3,493,914 was
used for the billing center project;

v. Approximately 0.4% of the net proceeds or HK2,758,259 was
used for the full-cycle operation monitoring platform project; and

vi. Approximately 2.0% of the net proceeds or HKD15,532,367 was
used for the e-commerce platform project.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages from the
original intended uses.

AHFTERIEFELN10%578,674,41T BB BREEES R —
BARRR -

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or HKD78,674,417 was
completely used for working capital and general corporate purposes.

Approximately
2.6% of the
remaining unutilized
net proceeds or
HKD20,546,660
will continue to be
used for the original
purpose.

RERBAERNFASE

E ©

There are no
remaining unutilized
proceeds.

On or before 31
December 2023*

NEH

N/A
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* The COVID-19 pandemic caused a delay in the Company’s
implementation of the relevant plan. As at the date of this report, the
Company expects the unutilised net proceeds to be fully utilized on or
before 31 December 2023.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING
AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

On 7 July 2020, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited (the
“Manager”) (the manager) and Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd. (”Asiaciti
Enterprises”) (the seller), pursuant to which the Manager
conditionally agreed to place 77,000,000 existing ordinary shares of
the Company at the placing price of HKD10.22 per share to not less
than six (6) placees on a best effort basis, while Asiaciti Enterprises
conditionally agreed to subscribe for new shares, the number of which
is equal to the number of the placing shares placed by the manager,
at the issue price of HKD10.22 per new share (the “Issue Price”).
The Issue Price represented a discount of approximately 6.92% to the
closing price of HKD10.98 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the last trading day prior to the signing of the Agreement. The
Directors considered that the placing and subscription provided a good
opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds to consolidate
its financial position and broaden the shareholder base and capital
base of the Group, thus promoting future development, and helping
increase the liquidity of shares. The Company completed the placing
of shares, and allotment and issuance of new shares under the
general mandate, on 9 July 2020 and 20 July 2020, respectively. The
total net proceeds raised by the Company after deducting all relevant
fees, costs and expenses to be borne or incurred by the Company are
approximately HKD779,596,946. The net price for the subscription,
after deduction of all relevant fees, costs and expenses to be borne or
incurred by the Company was approximately HKD10.12 per share.
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As at 31 December 2022, the net proceeds from the placing and
subscription of shares are and will be continuously used according to
the plans disclosed in the announcements dated 7 July 2020 and 20

FERRRERS

Proposed Use
of Proceeds

July 2020 of the Company, which are set forth as follows:

R20225 1231 AfIBREER AR (BEESLE)

Actual Use of Proceeds
(Including the Reserved Amount)
as at 31 December 2022

AR AFER
MRBRERERR
Intended Use

of Remaining
Unutilized
Proceeds

ARREANFERE
WRAEARER

Expected Timeline
for Use of Remaining
Unutilized Proceeds

AFTFTB B FEA0%K
701,637,251 BT AR S fE
EERRERKERS &

Approximately 90% of

the total net proceeds or
HKD701,637,251 will be used
for seeking potential strategic
investment and acquisition
opportunities; and

AR TR FURFE#55.0%5428,770,106 B TE AN E
FECEREALMERE - RANT

) FISHIEREN24.6%% AR 160,083,020 (4
B49192,003,575% L) E BRI H A E49%
MORRIE

i) FTSEIEFERAI29.8% 3 AR 194,492,100 (18
HH#49232,497,9927% 1) EB R B HAE31%
RORRHE © ]2

i) TS FUAEERNA0.6% X AR 3,600,000 (1E
1%94,268,539/8 7T ) E RIS L £ 100% A9
i o

ERARERRERRITRENRE -

Approximately 55.0% of the total net proceeds or

HKD428,770,106 was used for seeking potential strategic

investment and acquisition opportunities, as follows:

i) Approximately 24.6% of the net proceeds or
RMB160,083,020 (equivalent to approximately
HKD192,003,575) was used for acquiring a 49%
equity interest in Chengdu Holytech;

ii) Approximately 29.8% of the net proceeds or
RMB194,492,100 (equivalent to approximately
HKD232,497,992) was used for acquiring a 31%
equity interest in Chengdu Holytech; and

i) Approximately 0.6% of the net proceeds or
RMB3,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD4,268,539) was used for acquiring 100% equity
interest in Heshan Jianmei.

There was no material deviation for the actual usages
from the original intended uses.

ek ERNAER
% E4735.0%5K

272,867,145 T
BERERTRR -

Approximately
35.0% of the
remaining unutilized
net proceeds or
HKD272,867,145
will continue to be
used for the original
purpose.
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FERRRERE

Actual Use of Proceeds
(Including the Reserved Amount)
as at 31 December 2022

Proposed Use
of Proceeds

ReRER MR RERNAETE
R202512A31BMEREERAE (BERESH) WHREREREAE NEAEABER

Intended Use

of Remaining Expected Timeline
Unutilized for Use of Remaining
Proceeds Unutilized Proceeds

b) BEFEFIEFELN10%K
77,959,695 LA EAKE —
BEERS -

b) Approximately 10% of the total

AHTSRIEFELN10%577,959,695/ T E 2 W AER
SE-MEEES -

RENBAEROR  TER

BS5E -

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or  There are no N/A
net proceeds or HKD77,959,695 HKD77,959,695 was completely used for general working  remaining unutilized
proceeds.

will be used for general working  capital of the Group.

capital of the Group.
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EABRETER - WARMSRRME -

TEREFRHED
TEEF

HZE202212A31BLEE - A&EE/T R
ARPHNRZELHAEBRBRANIG%
(20214 : 23.5%)  MAEBE 2 E—HAE
FRRXSBEAREBE LU ARI3I% (2021
F:21.7%) °

FTEHRER

H E2202F12A31BLEEE - AEEHA
TAHEENRIELEAEEAEEEN
23.3% (20214 : 13.8%) " M A% B 7 ¥
—RAEEENRRSEMAEBEEEEN
5.9% (20214F : 3.3%) °

RBERR BEES - EARSFHNEEH
BAREMER (BEZMAHEBARFN
ERITRMHEBHS% A L) RAEERLARE
FaftEmt AR (RBERTPEEER

HEEENRRIN) -

* The COVID-19 pandemic caused a delay in the Company's
implementation of the relevant plan. As at the date of this report, the
Company expects the unutilised net proceeds to be fully utilized on or
before 31 December 2023.

As at the date of this report, (i) the Company has actively explored
any targets that are related to its core businesses and has not
identified any new investment or acquisition targets; (ii) the Company
has developed a general list of prospects, but no agreement has
been entered by the Group in respect of any such investments
or acquisitions; and (iii) the rest of the net proceeds from the
subscription will be continuously used according to the original
intended uses in 2023, subject to market conditions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction amount of
the Group’s top five customers accounted for 11.6% of the total
revenue of the Group (2021: 23.5%), while the transaction amount of
the Group's single largest customer accounted for 9.3% of the total
revenue of the Group (2021: 21.7%).

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction amount of
the Group's top five suppliers accounted for 23.3% of the total
purchase of the Group (2021: 13.8%), while the transaction amount
of the Group's single largest supplier accounted for 5.9% of the total
purchase of the Group (2021: 3.3%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the issued
Shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers (other than Times China Group and its
associates).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not held
any properties for investment purposes.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements in this report and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 132 to 133
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB1,283.5 million (as at 31 December 2021: RMB1,329.8 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Wang Meng

Mr. Yao Xusheng

Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Ms.
Wang Meng, Mr. Bai Xihong and Dr. Chu Xiaoping will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 26 to 34 in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his confirmation of independence which has
confirmed his independence during the year ended 31 December 2022
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

70  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



EEZAEHRBRBSH

BWTEECHARRGMREEH - T8
H2022F 124198 Bt A =F ' ATHAE
A—FRIS—AFBE TR =EANEER
MF AL -

EHPTEERBUFNITEFEEHAAR]
STNEEE B2022F128198 #£ 5t A 5
=F AHAMN—FAS—FEHTLOR=
EAMEEmBATIAKLE

BEERRARENE ARG LAEE T
R—FARRMNEEE CEEBERIN ML
HBRFE A4 °

EEREARRE  Z#HR
BRI ER

REE2022F12A31BLFERBEELRSFE
WAL MEEERE BENEENA
AR HAMKBARKERZNBAGIES
I UHAREERMEBEARS - %
hRENPEESMEREE RS -

EERNBRFRBRES

EEHERANEE2022F12A31BLLRF
ERRBEEESHEZERENEENEBERK
RN ATREBRBRFOEMEBSTHEE AR
B EMRBIES. 105IEL BT

ERKRRNEEER

REZE2022F12A31B ItEE - B ARS
[EEeRE -BHEISRBBAIRS] —
BTN - NEBEAAR R AERA R HAT
RINEARBEET L EREL ©

DIRECTORS’ TENURE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2022, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2022, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director has a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

The Directors confirm that they did not have any interest in any other
business during the year ended 31 December 2022, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
businesses, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance between the Group and the controlling
Shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2022, except as disclosed in the
section headed “Report of Directors — Connected Transactions and
Related Party Transactions”of this report.
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ULTIMATE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and his spouse, Ms. Li Yiping
(the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition dated 5 December 2019 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”). Each of our Ultimate Controlling Shareholders
has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to us in the Deed
of Non-Competition that he/she will not, and will procure his/her
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules, excluding Times
China Group (an independent operating group due to the listing
status of Times China)) not to directly or indirectly be involved in
or undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or
indirectly competes, or may compete, with our business, being the
provision of property management services, value-added services,
community value-added services and other professional services
(collectively referred to as the “Restricted Businesses”), or hold
shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by our Group from time to
time, or conduct any Restricted Businesses, except where our Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) (excluding
Times China Group) which is engaged in any business that is or
may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of our Group and they do not possess the right to appoint 10% or
more of the directors of such company. For details of the Deed of
Non-Competition, please refer to the Company’s prospectus dated 9
December 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders with the Deed
of Non-Competition and consider that the Deed of Non-Competition
has been complied with during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Each of Ultimate Controlling Shareholders has provided the Company
with a confirmation regarding his/her compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report, there is no change in information of the
Directors as of the date of this annual report required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"))
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:
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INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

A DR IR

B THARER EEME K5 EE BOBEIHEO

Approximate

Percentage of

Number of Shareholding in

Name of Director/Chief Executive Nature of Interest Shares  the Company”

Faskt EmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Wang Meng Beneficial owner

BT L EmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Yao Xusheng Beneficial owner

Filcx-Gum EmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Xie Rao Beneficial owner

Bzt BEmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Zhou Rui Beneficial owner

B#HtELE EmEAA 509,000 0.05%
Mr. Bai Xihong Beneficial owner

oBzE? 20,565,484 2.09%

Interest of spouse®

BB LE EmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian Beneficial owner

=IKEL EmEAA 200,000 0.02%
Dr. Wong Kong Tin Beneficial owner
Hiat Notes:

(1) 20224128318 - KAFIBETRHE (1) As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares of the

£5985,672,747 BERE(D © Company was 985,672,747 Shares.

(2)  R20224128318 B EENRE (2) As at 31 December 2022, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
B +020,565,484 3 1% 1) thE G #E Xihong is interested in 20,565,484 Shares. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to

LA IR AR R R R be interested in those Shares.

Bk Bk
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

hREREN
HE HEEEEE 51 REEE RS E BOLO
Approximate
Name of Number of Percentage of
Name Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Shares Interest ("
B#HtELE AP B R IR A F) 43,074,000 2.05%

Mr. Bai Xihong Times China Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
2,017,000 0.10%

Interest of spouse®
Kzt Notes:

(1) 720224128318 » BRAED BTN
#E52,101,816,039 % % (7 -

(2)  H2022F12A318 ABLAEENRBE
HE L 412,017,000/ B A b B 3L 1 7 &
EHEm - BEREERRARZERGO P
B

EEREROAEEEN
R

BRI AFRAEEEIN  ARARIREMBA
BIRE E2022F 128318 It FEMES L
ERZH - BUFEE A EBE A QR HEM
Hix NEERHEREMEZR  BITE
EERHE2EBHISHEATH FLER
FAEMEFARBE AR B AR EAEAR
BHRASEEES  KBITEERZEE
F o

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued shares of Times
China was 2,101,816,039 shares.

As at 31 December 2022, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
Xihong is interested in 2,017,000 shares of Times China. Mr. Bai Xihong
is deemed to be interested in those shares.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2022, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate nor had exercised any such rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

LEE NG
BREERB ERME ROEA HEDEO®
Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding in
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares the Company”
FREEBRAF(ER]) EmfEiE A 473,431,769 48.03%
Best Source Ventures Limited
("Best Source”) Beneficial owner
HEAIRERAT([BE]) R L E s 473,431,769 48.03%
Super Reach Ventures Limited
("Super Reach”) Interested in controlled corporation
ERREBRAF ([EBRE]D® R EE 473,431,769 48.03%
Renowned Brand Investments Limited
(“Renowned Brand")? Interested in controlled corporation
RAEBEBRAF ([RF]@ R LB s 473,431,769 48.03%
East Profit Management Limited
("East Profit”)® Interested in controlled corporation
ZeERE (L] RELE S 473,431,769 48.03%
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”)? Interested in controlled corporation
F—Ft® R L E 473,431,769 48.03%
Ms. Li Yiping® Interested in controlled corporation
Bifat - Notes:

1. #2022F12A31H - AR AIBEITRD A
#5985,672, 7477 °

2. SRABEXEEE MBEMERRE
(AZEE2EHRA) REAN (BF—F 1+
2EHA) DRIEAG0% RA0% ALK - &

—HLZTAESEENRS - BREEHFLEE
&6 1BE - EREE  BF - 2H4 RS
— R TR AR ERFENRG T EEE

3¢ o
fm

1. At 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares of the
Company was 985,672,747 shares.

2. Best Source is wholly owned by Super Reach, and Super Reach is owned
as to 60% by Renowned Brand, which is wholly owned by Mr. Shum;
and as to 40% by East Profit, which is wholly owned by Ms. Li Yiping.
Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Shum. By virtue of the SFO, Super
Reach, Renowned Brand, East Profit, Mr. Shum and Ms. Li Yiping are
deemed to be interested in Shares held by Best Source.
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register of the Company to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, Directors, managing directors,
alternate Directors, secretary and other officers of the Company and
the trustees (if any) acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, and their respective executors or administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale and redemption of any listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Group did not make loans and guarantees to senior management,
Directors, controlling Shareholders or their respective connected
persons of the Company, directly or indirectly, during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CCT AGREEMENT

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the continuing
connected transaction agreement (the “CCT Agreement”) with Times
China in relation to the provision of services by the Group to Times
China Group and its associated companies, for a term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024. The Group agreed to provide property
management and related services for Time China Group and its
associated companies.

The CCT Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the proposed annual cap) were approved by independent
Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting held by the Company on 9 December 2021, of which
the CCT Agreement became effective from the date of approval, and
was valid from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

In accordance with the CCT Agreement, the annual caps on the
costs payable by Time China Group and its associated companies
for the three years ending 31 December 2024 will not exceed
RMB1,220,000,000, RMB1,680,000,000 and RMB2,150,000,000
respectively.

As at the date of the CCT Agreement, Times China was owned as
to 62.47% by Asiaciti Enterprises, which is wholly-owned by Super
Reach, a controlling Shareholder of the Company. Times China is
an associate of a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As such, Times China is a connected person
of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions under
the CCT Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company. As all of the applicable percentage ratios (excluding
the profits ratio) in respect of the annual cap for transactions
contemplated under the CCT Agreement exceed 5%, the transactions
under the CCT Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company, which are subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The fees will be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking into account the
location and the conditions of the property, the scope of the services
and the anticipated operation costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administration costs and costs of materials) charged by the
Group for providing similar services to independent third parties; and
(i) the guidance price of the services for a similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable). The fees shall
not be higher than the standard fees approved by the state pricing
regulatory authorities (if applicable) and not lower than the fees
charged by the Group to independent third parties in any event.

The details were disclosed in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 16 November 2021 and 22 November 2021,
respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction amount
payable by Times China to the Group under the CCT Agreement was
RMB306.9 million, and the transaction amount did not exceed the
proposed annual cap of RMB1,220,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i)  on normal or better commercial terms; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms of which

are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Ernst & Young, the Company's independent auditor, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this report:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

THE AGREEMENTS

The Group and the Times China Group entered into (i) the agreement
dated 1 January 2022 in relation to the sales agency services
(including the exclusive agency services, joint sales services and
underwriting agency services) (the “Services”) with respect of more
than 50 property projects (including but not limited to residential
units, shops, carparks and clubhouses) developed by the Times China
Group (the “Target Properties”), with a term commencing on 1
January 2022 and ending on 30 June 2022 (both dates inclusive)
(the “First Agreement”); (ii) the agreement dated 1 July 2022 in
relation to the Services, with a term commencing on 1 July 2022 and
ending on 31 December 2022 (both dates inclusive) (the “Second
Agreement”); and (iii) the agreement dated 1 January 2023 in
relation to the Services, with a term commencing on 1 January 2023
and ending on 30 June 2023 (both dates inclusive) (the “Third
Agreement”) (collectively, the “Agreements”).
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Under each of the Agreements, the Group agreed to provide the
Services to the Times China Group on an exclusive basis, and paid
the interest-free refundable deposit of RMB350 million to the Times
China Group under each of the Agreements (the “First Deposit”,
“Second Deposit”, and “Third Deposit” paid in accordance with
the First Agreement, the Second Agreement and the Third Agreement
respectively, and collectively, the “Deposits”). The First Deposit and
the Second Deposit were refunded at the end of the First Agreement
and the end of the Second Agreement respectively. In consideration
of the change in the real estate policy and property market in the PRC
in early 2023, Times China has adjusted its property sale strategy. The
Group and the Times China Group mutually agreed to terminate the
Third Agreement on 20 February 2023. The Third Deposit was fully
refunded to the Group.

Through its cooperation with the Times China Group under the
Agreements, the Group was able to strengthen its footprint in regions
where the Target Properties were located and provided post-sales
services such as diversified property management and sales assistance
services to the property owners and occupants.

Further, it has been a common market practice in the PRC for a
property management services company to pay an interest-free
refundable deposit to a property developer to secure the exclusive
right to act as an agent for the sale of specified properties. The Board
considered that the risk of failure to refund each of the Deposits
by the Times China Group at the end of the relevant agreement to
be extremely low in light of the long-standing business relationship
between the Times China Group and the Group. The Group has also
benefitted from generating further business opportunities after the
successful sale of the Target Properties.

Listing Rules implications

As certain of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
payment of each of the Deposits exceeded 5% but all of them were
lower than 25%, the payment of each of the Deposits constituted
a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.
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As at the date of the announcement dated 21 March 2023, the
Company was owned as to approximately 48.03% by Best Source,
which was wholly owned by Super Reach. Super Reach was a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Times China was owned
as to approximately 59.23% by Asiaciti Enterprises, which was
wholly owned by Super Reach. Times China was an associate of a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Thus, Times China was a connected person of the Company.
The payment of each of the Deposits under the relevant agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Given that certain of the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the payment of each of the Deposits
under the relevant agreement exceeded 5%, the payment of each
of the Deposits constituted a connected transaction of the Company
which was subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The amount of each of the Deposits was determined with reference
to the market value of the Target Properties as a result of the arm’s
length negotiation between the Group and the Times China Group
having considered the factors such as the number of units of the
Target Properties, the market price of the Target Properties, the
prevailing rate of deposits paid by other property management
services providers to the property developers in the PRC for providing
similar services and the estimated period required for the Target
Properties to be sold.

The details of the Agreements (including reasons for failure to
identify the transactions and remedial measures) were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2023.

THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

To enable the Group to tap into the types of value-added
telecommunications businesses which Hainan Qi Lin is permitted to
carry out under the business license (the “Qualified Business”)
in the PRC which is currently subject to foreign investment
restrictions, on 20 December 2021, Guangzhou Times Linlibang
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (BN R EHPEEHTER AR
(“Guangzhou Times Linlibang”), Hainan Qi Lin and Mr. Cen Qixiong
and Ms. Mei Huimin, the registered shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin (the
"Registered Shareholders”), entered into the Exclusive Technology
Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, the Exclusive Option
Agreement, the Power of Attorney, and the Equity Pledge Agreement
(collectively, the “"VIE Agreements”). Despite the restrictions under
the relevant provisions and guidelines, the arrangements under the
VIE Agreements (the “Contractual Arrangements”) would enable
the Company to gain effective control over the finance, operations
and enjoy the entire economic interests and benefits of Hainan Qi Lin.
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(1) Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang, within the
service period stipulated in the agreement, agreed to provide
exclusive business, technical, and consulting support services to
Hainan Qi Lin.

Pursuant to such agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang agreed
to provide the Technological Services to Hainan Qi Lin and
Hainan Qi Lin agreed to appoint Guangzhou Times Linlibang
as its exclusive service provider for the Technological Services.
During the term of the Exclusive Technology Consulting and
Service Provision Agreement, Hainan Qi Lin undertook not to
accept the same or any similar services provided by any third
party, unless prior consent is obtained from Guangzhou Times
Linlibang.

The Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service Provision
Agreement also provides that Guangzhou Times Linlibang has
the exclusive proprietary rights to and interests in any and all
intellectual property rights developed or created by Guangzhou
Times Linlibang or Hainan Qi Lin.

Further, Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the right to appoint
any of its affiliates to provide the Technological Services without
obtaining consent or confirmation from Hainan Qi Lin.

Service fees

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Hainan Qi Lin agreed to pay services fees
to Guangzhou Times Linlibang for the Technological Services
provided. Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the absolute right to
determine the amount and payment method of the service fees.

The service fees payable for the Technological Services is
calculated based on Hainan Qi Lin’s income and corresponding
operating costs, sales, management and other costs.

In addition, the service fees payable has been determined by
factors including the technical difficulty and complexity of the
Technological Services provided; the working hours spent by
employees of Guangzhou Times Linlibang; and the content and
commercial value of the services, softwares and/or consultation
services provided.
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(2)

Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the absolute right to adjust
the services fees charged during the term of the Exclusive
Technology Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, without
obtaining Hainan Qi Lin’s consent.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang may
provide financial support to Hainan Qi Lin to ensure cash flow
requirements of Hainan Qi Lin's business operations are satisfied
or to offset the accumulated losses in any business operations.
Such financial support shall not be limited to bank entrustments
by Guangzhou Times Linlibang or through other designated
parties permitted under relevant laws and regulations.

Such agreement shall remain effective for a term of 10
years. The agreement will be automatically renewed unless
Guangzhou Times Linlibang objects to such renewal. Pursuant
to the agreement, Guangzhou Times Linlibang has the right to
terminate the agreement at any time by sending written notice
to Hainan Qi Lin 30 days in advance.

The rights and obligations of Hainan Qi Lin shall not be
transferrable to any third parties pursuant to the Exclusive
Technology Consulting and Service Provision Agreement, unless
prior written consent of Guangzhou Times Linlibang is obtained.
If Guangzhou Times Linlibang chooses to transfer its rights and
obligations to third parties, consent from Hainan Qi Lin is not
required; and Hainan Qi Lin, under the request of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang, shall be obliged to sign any supplementary
agreements or agreements which is substantially in the same
form as the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Service
Provision Agreement.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Registered
Shareholders and Hainan Qi Lin agreed to irrevocably and
unconditionally grant an exclusive option to Guangzhou
Times Linlibang which entitles Guangzhou Times Linlibang to
unconditionally elect, at its discretion, and to purchase at any
time, all or any part of the (i) equity interest and (ii) assets of
Hainan Qi Lin by itself or through its designated person(s), for
one or more times, when permitted by the then applicable PRC
laws, within a specific period as stipulated under the Exclusive
Option Agreement.

The Exclusive Option Agreement is effective for a period of 10
years, and is automatically renewed in 10 year intervals, unless
Guangzhou Times Linlibang objects to such renewal.
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Exclusive option right

Subject to the compliance with PRC laws, Guangzhou Times
Linlibang may issue a written notice specifying the share of
equity interests, or list of assets in Hainan Qi Lin it intends
to purchase from the Registered Shareholders. Within 7
working days from receiving the written notice, the Registered
Shareholders shall execute the equity or asset transfer
agreements in the form specified under the Exclusive Option
Agreement or any other forms as agreed between parties.

Purchase price

Unless the PRC laws applicable to Guangzhou Times Linlibang’s
exercise of the exclusive option requires an evaluation, audit or
other restrictive provisions on the transfer price of the purchased
equity interest or assets, the parties agreed that the equity
purchase price shall be the lowest price as permitted under the
applicable PRC laws.

Under the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Registered
Shareholders and Hainan Qi Lin have jointly and severally
undertaken, among others that:

(i)  without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, Hainan Qi Lin shall not supplement, change or
amend its constitutional documents in any forms, increase
or decrease its registered share capital, or otherwise
change its capital structure;

(i) Hainan Qi Lin's form of business is to be maintained and its
business affairs is to be conducted prudently and efficiently
in accordance with good financial and commercial
standards and practices;

(iii) without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, Hainan Qi Lin shall not engage in any acts or
omission that may adversely affect the assets, business
and liabilities of Hainan Qi Lin, and shall not sell, transfer,
mortgage or dispose of any assets, business or income of
Hainan Qi Lin at any time from the date of the execution
of the Exclusive Option Agreement or to permit any
creation of encumbrance over any security interests;
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no debt is incurred, inherited, warranted or allowed
without the prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang except when (i) debt is incurred in the normal or
ordinary course of business other than by borrowing; and
(ii) such liabilities have been disclosed and approved by
Guangzhou Times Linlibang; and

businesses are conducted in the ordinary course of business
at all times to preserve the value of assets of Hainan Qi Lin
and refrain from any acts and/or omissions detrimental to
its business condition and the value of its assets.

The Registered Shareholders have also undertaken, among
others, that:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

without prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, the Registered Shareholders shall not sell,
transfer, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any legal or
beneficial rights in the equity interest of Hainan Qi Lin, or
permit creation of encumbrance over any security interest,
except for pledges created over such equity interests by
the Registered Shareholders under the Exclusive Option
Agreement;

they shall prompt Hainan Qi Lin's board of directors not
to approve any sale, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose
of any legal or beneficial rights in any equity interest, or
to allow the creation of any encumbrance over security
interests without the prior written consent of Guangzhou
Times Linlibang, except to those made to Guangzhou
Times Linlibang or its designated persons; and to cause
Hainan Qi Lin's shareholders to vote in favour of the
transfer of the purchased equity pursuant to the Exclusive
Option Agreement;

without the prior written consent of Guangzhou Times
Linlibang, the Registered Shareholders shall not vote
for, endorse or sign any resolutions in Hainan Qi Lin’s
shareholders’ meeting to approve any merger or union
with any person; acquisition by any person, acquisition of
any person or investment in any person;

Guangzhou Times Linlibang be promptly notified of any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings that
have occurred or may occur in connection with its equity
interest in Hainan Qi Lin; and
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(3)

(v) all necessary or appropriate documents be executed, all
actions be taken, all claims be filed and defended in order
to maintain its ownership of equity interest in Hainan Qi
Lin.

The Exclusive Option Agreement shall remain effective for
a period of 10 years and shall be renewed automatically,
unless Guangzhou Times Linlibang notifies Hainan Qi Lin and
the Registered Shareholders of its intention not to renew it.
Hainan Qi Lin and the Registered Shareholders have no right to
terminate the Exclusive Option Agreement.

Power of Attorney

Pursuant to the Power of Attorney, each of the Registered
Shareholders agreed to irrevocably appoint Guangzhou Times
Linlibang or its designated person(s) as its attorney-in-fact to act
for all matters pertaining to Hainan Qi Lin and to exercise all of
their rights as shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin under applicable
laws and regulations and the articles of association of Hainan Qi
Lin, under the premise of compliance with PRC law.

The Registered Shareholders has granted Guangzhou Times
Linlibang or its designated person the power to exercise all
rights of Hainan Qi Lin's shareholders.

The Registered Shareholders have further agreed and
authorised Guangzhou Times Linlibang and its designated
persons, including but not limited to, exercising shareholders’
rights in full discretion without obtaining any oral or written
instructions from the Registered Shareholders, and to appoint
one or more replacement candidates to exercise any or all
of the rights entrusted under the Power of Attorney. The
Registered Shareholders have also undertaken that any increase
in shareholding of Hainan Qi Lin by way of equity transfer or
increase in share capital, or any acquisition of Hainan Qi Lin's
equity interest by any persons, will be subjected to the Power of
Attorney.

Guangzhou Times Linlibang and its designated persons may at
any time require the Registered Shareholders to re-sign another
power of attorney in substantially the same form, and shall be
entitled to exercise all of their rights as shareholders of Hainan
Qi Lin.
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The Power of Attorney shall remain effective from the date of
signing, and will continue to be effective so long as Hainan
Qi Lin is in existence. The Registered Shareholders shall not
terminate or modify the Power of Attorney without prior
written consent from Guangzhou Times Linlibang. The Power
of Attorney is binding upon the successors and assignees of the
authorised person.

(4) Equity Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, each of the Registered
Shareholders agreed to pledge all of his/her respective equity
interests in Hainan Qi Lin to Guangzhou Times Linlibang to
secure the due performance of obligations of Hainan Qi Lin and
the Registered Shareholders under the VIE Agreements.

Unless with prior consent from Guangzhou Times Linlibang, the
Registered Shareholder has no right to gift or transfer its rights
and obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement. Guangzhou
Times Linlibang may assign all or any of its rights and obligations
pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, its designated
assignee shall assume all rights and obligations enjoyed by
Guangzhou Times Linlibang under the agreement.

The Equity Pledge Agreement is valid for 2 years from the
date of signing until all obligations pursuant to Equity Pledge
Agreement have been fulfilled.

Save as disclosed above, there were no any other new Contractual
Arrangements entered into and/or renewed between the Group and
Hainan Qi Lin during the year ended 31 December 2022. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, there were no material changes in the
Contractual Arrangements and/or their adoption.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no Contractual Arrangements
had been released as the restrictions leading to the adoption of the
Contractual Arrangements had not been removed. As of 31 December
2022, we did not encountered interference or encumbrance from
any PRC government authorities in operating our businesses through
Hainan Qi Lin under the Contractual Arrangements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of Hainan Qi
Lin was nil.
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REASONS FOR ENTERING INTO THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Qualified Business is currently subject to foreign investment
restrictions under the relevant provisions and guidelines, which do
not allow a foreign investor to own, whether directly or indirectly,
any company that engages in the Qualified Business in the PRC.
In compliance with the relevant provisions and guidelines, a
foreign-funded telecom enterprise which engages in the Qualified
Business would need to satisfy that: (i) the ultimate proportion of
contribution of its foreign investors shall not be more than 50%;
and (ii) its major foreign investor shall have good performances and
operation experiences in managing value-added telecommunications
businesses.

In light of the relevant provisions and guidelines currently in force
and taking into account the shareholding structure of the Company,
the Group could not engage in the Qualified Business through a
sino-foreign equity joint venture or direct acquisition of the equity
interest of Hainan Qi Lin. In order for the Group to tap into the
Qualified Business which has great growth potential and would
thereby deepen the Group’s reach to those business segments,
diversify the revenue stream and further enhance customers’
satisfaction of the Group's property management services and value-
added services, whilst complying with the relevant provisions and
guidelines and obtaining the entire economic benefits attributable to
Hainan Qi Lin, the Group proposes to, through the VIE Agreements,
enter into the Contractual Arrangements to qualify for engagement
in the Qualified Business in the PRC. The Group is not required to pay
any consideration for the indirect acquisition of Hainan Qi Lin through
the adoption of the VIE Agreements.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

Certain risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements include:

a) The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of Hainan Qi Lin;

b) Interference or encumbrance in the PRC;
¢)  Guangzhou Times Linlibang’s exercise of the option to acquire

the entire equity interests in Hainan Qi Lin may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs;
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d)  There is no assurance that the Contractual Arrangements would
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that the
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with applicable
regulations;

e)  The VIE Agreements may not be as effective in providing control
over and entitlement to the economic benefits in Hainan Qi Lin
as compared to direct ownership;

f)  The Registered Shareholders may have potential conflict of
interest with the Group;

g) The VIE Agreements may be subject to the scrutiny of the tax
authorities and additional tax maybe imposed;

h)  The Group does not have any insurance which covers the risks
relating to the VIE Agreements.

For details of these risks, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 20 December 2021.

The Group has taken the following measures to ensure the effective
operation of the Group's business after the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements and our compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements, including:

(i)  The seals, chops, incorporation documents of Hainan Qi Lin are
kept by the Group, and any employee of Hainan Qi Lin who
wishes to use such items will have to obtain internal approval
from the Group (as the case may be);

(i) Hainan Qi Lin will report regularly, which will be no less
frequently than on a quarterly basis, to the senior management
of the Company in relation to compliance and performance
conditions under the Contractual Arrangements and
other related matters; and any major issues arising from
implementation of the Contractual Arrangements will be
regularly reviewed, at least on a quarterly basis, by the Board;

(iii) The Board will consult the PRC legal advisor from time to
time to check if there are any legal developments in the PRC
affecting the Contractual Arrangements, and should immediately
report to the Board so as to allow the Board to determine if any
modification or amendment are required to be made; and
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(iv) The Company's independent non-executive Directors will review
the compliance of the Contractual Arrangements on an annual
basis and their confirmation will be disclosed in the Company’'s
annual report.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATION AND THE WAIVER GRANTED
BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Upon signing of the VIE Agreements, the Company will acquire
100% equity interest of Hainan Qi Lin at a nil consideration. Given
all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of entering into the
Contractual Arrangements are less than 0.1%, entering into the
Contractual Arrangements does not constitute a notifiable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is fully
exempt from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Hainan Qi Lin is held as to 50% by Mr. Cen Qixiong and 50% by
Ms. Mei Huimin. As at the signing date of the VIE Agreements,
Mr. Cen Qixiong is a brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, who is a
controlling Shareholder of the Company, and is therefore an associate
of a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Therefore, the Contractual Arrangements between the
Registered Shareholders of Hainan Qi Lin and the Group constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has made an application to the Stock Exchange for, and
the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver (the “Waiver"”) subject to
the following conditions, for so long as the Shares of the Company

are listed on the Stock Exchange:

a. No change will be made without the approval of independent
non-executive Directors.

b.  No change will be made without the approval of the Company’s
independent Shareholders.

c.  Economic benefits flexibility.

d.  Ongoing reporting and approvals.

e.  Renewal and reproduction.

For further details of the Waiver granted by the Stock Exchange,

please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
December 2021.
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ANNUAL REVIEW BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND THE AUDITOR

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Contractual Arrangements and confirmed that:

(@) The transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December
2022 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements, and have been
operated so that the gains generated by Hainan Qi Lin have
been substantially retained by the Group;

(b) No dividends or other distributions have been made by Hainan
Qi Lin to the holders of its equity interests which are not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;

() There are no any new contracts entered into, renewed and/or
reproduced between the Group and Hainan Qi Lin during the
year ended 31 December 2022; and

(d) The Contractual Arrangements have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms, and have been fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that dividends or other
distributions have been made by Hainan Qi Lin to the holders of its
equity interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties”
as defined under the applicable accounting standards, which
include transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions for which the requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 is contained in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required
to be disclosed by the Company in the Reporting Period in accordance
with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in Part 2 of the CG Code during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Please refer to pages 96 to 118 of the corporate governance report in
this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
date of this report.

TAX CONCESSION

The Directors are not aware of any tax concessions available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to, the Shares, they are advised to consult tax
specialists.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied
with the laws and regulations in all material respects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the auditor to audit the
financial statements prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Ernst & Young has audited the accompanying financial statements
prepared based on International Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young has been engaged since the date of preparation for
the listing of the Company and there has been no change in the
Company’s auditor since the Listing Date. Ernst & Young will retire
as the auditor of the Company at the close of the forthcoming AGM
and will be eligible for re-election. A resolution will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM for approval of Shareholders to re-elect Ernst
& Young as the auditor of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2023.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON ACQUISITION
OF A TOTAL OF 80% EQUITY INTEREST IN
CHENGDU HOLYTECH

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated
11 December 2020 and 16 April 2021 in relation to the acquisitions
of 49% and 31% of the equity interest in Chengdu Holytech,
respectively, and the interim results announcement of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 dated 29 August 2022
(the "Announcements”). Unless otherwise defined, capitalized
terms used herein shall have the same meanings ascribed to them
in the Announcements. As disclosed in the Announcements, if the
Minority Shareholder has not honored its obligation to pay under
the Agreed Term, but Chengdu Holytech has settled the Payable,
Chengdu Holytech has the right to demand the Minority Shareholder
for reimbursement and a default payment. The default payment was
calculated at 10% per annum of the reimbursement to Chengdu
Holytech.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of the date of this annual report, there is no occurrence of events
that are material to the Group's business after the Reporting Period.

By order of the Board

Mr. Bai Xihong
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report as
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted CG Code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions under
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company
will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations and report
to the Board;

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company'’s whistleblowing policy.
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THE BOARD’'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established four Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee (collectively, the
"Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with
the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.
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DIRECTORS'
FINANCIAL REPORTING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
IN RESPECT OF

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides members
of the Board with periodical updates on the Company's performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 119 to page 127 of this
annual report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the current Board of the Company is set out as
follows:

A Name B Position

TRt Ms. Wang Meng HITEE executive Director

kBT A& Mr. Yao Xusheng HITEE executive Director

Eilchedun Ms. Xie Rao HITEE executive Director

Atz + Ms. Zhou Rui HITEE executive Director

At E Mr. Bai Xihong FEHMITES (F/F) non-executive Director (chairman)
FRfELE Mr. Li Qiang EITES non-executive Director

BEBHREE Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian B IEMITES independent non-executive Director
HIXEL Dr. Wong Kong Tin BYFRTES independent non-executive Director
N EELE Dr. Chu Xiaoping BYFRTES independent non-executive Director

EXRERENAFRESTRERERE]

—5 -

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors, with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence during the
year ended 31 December 2022 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or chief executive.

MECHANISMS TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWPOINTS AND OPINIONS

The Company has established different channels to enable all
Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors to
express their opinions in an open and honest manner to the Board
and, if necessary, in a confidential manner. All Directors also have
separate and independent access to the management of the Group
and full and timely access to information of the Company in order to
make informed decisions.

The Board may obtain independent viewpoints and opinions through
the following mechanisms:

1. The Board should have at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and at least one-third of its members (or a higher
minimum under the Listing Rules) should be independent non-
executive Directors, such that there is always a strong element
of independence on the Board that can effectively exercise
independent judgment. The Board currently comprises nine
Directors, three of whom are independent non-executive
Directors;

2. The Nomination Committee strictly complies with the
independence assessment criteria for the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors as set out
in the Listing Rules;
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3. The Nomination Committee is authorized to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
annually in accordance with the independence criteria set out in
the Listing Rules, so as to ensure that they are able to exercise
independent judgment;

4.  The independent non-executive Directors are required to provide
an annual confirmation of their independence to the Company
and to notify the Company as soon as possible of any change
in their personal information that may materially affect their
independence;

5. The independent non-executive Directors are not given an
equity-based remuneration (such as share options or share
grants) with performance-related elements, so as to avoid
bias in their decisions and influence on their objectivity and
independence;

6. All Directors, including the independent nonexecutive Directors,
have the right to seek further information and documents from
the management for matters discussed at Board meetings, and,
if necessary, may seek independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company;

7. All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their close associates who have a material interest in
any matter to be considered in a meeting should declare their
interest before the meeting and abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution, and shall not be included in the quorum
of the meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend
the meeting; and

8. The chairman of the Board holds at least one meeting every
year, with the independent non-executive Directors and without
the presence of other Directors, to discuss significant matters
and any concerns.

During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the above
mechanisms to ensure that it can obtain independent viewpoints
and opinions, and believed that the existing mechanisms remained
effective. The Board shall continue to review the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms on an annual basis.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer ("CEO")
of the Company are currently two separate positions held by Mr. Bai
Xihong and Ms. Wang Meng respectively, with clear distinction in
responsibilities. The chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the development of the Group,
while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not
exceed the maximum number determined from time to time by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed under article 112 of the Articles of Association
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual general
meeting.

No Director has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquires to all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company also adopted
the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding employees’ securities
transactions for the compliance by its relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his or her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company will also arrange regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. To develop and refresh the knowledge and skills, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development and
training.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, the training
record of each Director during the Reporting Period is as follows:

HMEEHESHE SFAGRKRAKREMEREREER MR
Reading materials on the responsibility of
directors, updating on new rules and

regulations and other relevant topics

FaFL+ Ms. Wang Meng
kIBFH A Mr. Yao Xusheng
H#E2Z 1 Ms. Xie Rao

Afi &+ Ms. Zhou Rui

B 8534 % 4 Mr. Bai Xihong

ZaM S 4 Mr. Li Qiang

BSR4 Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
T XL Dr. Wong Kong Tin

f&/\ 18+ Dr. Chu Xiaoping

NN N N N N YR SN
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days have been given for
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend the regular meetings and discuss matters in the agenda
therein.

For other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given by the
Company. For Board Committee meetings, notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given by the Company to relevant Board
Committee members for Board Committee meetings. Notices of
meetings, which include the agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors at least three days before the Board
or Board Committee meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the accompanying documents and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the chairman prior to the meeting. The company secretary shall keep
the minutes of meetings and provide copies of such minutes to all
Directors for reference and record purposes.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings will
record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent/will be sent to the Directors
for their consideration within a reasonable time after convening the
meetings. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection
by all Directors.
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NFREENRESSZEERENS Attendance Record of Directors, Board Committee Members
fE40 8% in 2022

RMEHA - BERITUAEEFEERR K During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings and one AGM were
BREBFERE - SEZHRARFNESERE held. The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the

E- 3 NI b YN E N R g Directors, Board Committee members and the general meeting of the
UM Company are set out as follows:
HE/ BITEERY
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

2022 BE HER

Bx BRRAFAE Exg REZES® FzEEe - HET L BREER
Nomination Remuneration Audit ESG

Director 2022 AGM Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
BITES
Executive Directors
THZLMs. Wang Meng n 4/4 1
HEIBF S EMr. Yao Xusheng n 4/4
HEZ T Ms. Xie Rao 11 4/4 1/1
J&8 2 £ Ms. Zhou Rui 171 4/4 171
FHTES
Non-executive Directors
A5 5 £ Mr. Bai Xihong 171 4/4 212 22 17
FE S EM. Li Qiang 11 4/4 212
BYFHTES
Independent non-executive Directors
ZEBBLAEM. Lui Shing Ming, Brian 171 4/4 212 212 171
HTXE1Dr. Wong Kong Tin 11 4/4 212 212
f#&/NFELDr. Chu Xiaoping n 4/4 212 212
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Bai Xihong (chairman), a non-executive Director, Mr.
Lui Shing Ming, Brian and Dr. Chu Xiaoping, two independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee of the Company
are as follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3.  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the CEO; and

5.  to perform tasks as assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to
the Board for decision.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure and composition of the Board, assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, made recommendations to
the Board on re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general
meeting, reviewed the diversity policy and diversity of the Board
members of the Company and recommended the Board on renewing
the service agreements and letters of appointment entered into by the
Company and the relevant Directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on our Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our Company’s strategic objectives
and sustainable development. Our Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to talents, skills, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, work experience, independence, knowledge
and length of service. We will continue to implement measures and
steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels of our
Company. We will select potential Board candidates based on his/her
individual performance and potential contribution to our Board while
taking into account our board diversity policy and other factors. Our
Company will also take into consideration our own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on our
Board.

Our Board comprises of nine members, including three female
executive Directors out of a total of four executive Board members.
The proportion of female members in the Board is approximately
33%. The Board believes that the gender diversity of the current
members of the Board is satisfactory and the gender diversity of the
Board has been achieved. Our Directors also have a balanced mix of
knowledge, skills and experience, including property management,
overall business management, administrative management, finance
and investment. They obtained degrees in various majors including but
without limitation to business administration, public administration,
economic management, industrial enterprise operation management,
language and law. We have three independent non-executive
Directors who have different industry backgrounds, including auditing
and accounting, law and economy. Furthermore, our Board has
a wide range of age, ranging from 36 to 67 years old. We have
taken and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity
at all levels of our Company, including but without limitation at our
Board and senior management levels. The Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s policy on board
diversity on an annual basis. Taking into account our business model
and specific needs as well as the presence of three female executive
Directors out of a total of nine Board members, we consider that the
composition of our Board satisfies our board diversity policy.
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With regards to gender diversity and succession of the Board, our
board diversity policy further provides that our Board shall consider to
increase the proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendations on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. We will also ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that we will have a pipeline
of female senior management and potential successors to our Board
going forward. It is our objective to maintain an appropriate balance
of gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. The Nomination Committee will review our board
diversity policy and its implementation from time to time to ensure its
implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve in the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. As regards to the CG Code provision
requiring the Directors to disclose the number and nature of offices
held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as the identity of the public companies or
organisations and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have
disclosed their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

During the Reporting Period, the gender ratio for males to females
of all employees (including senior management) was approximately
3:2, which is comparable to the distribution of similar trades and
specialties in the industry. The Board considers that the Company has
achieved gender diversity in its workforce and will continue to take
measures to provide equal opportunities for employment, training
and career development to promote the diversity of employees at all
levels.

Nomination and Appointment

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Measurable Targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination due to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and service term or other factors.

Policy Statement

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial to the
improvement of the Company’s performance. The differences in ideas,
background, ways of thinking and working methods may create values
for our stakeholders, particularly for our customers, Shareholders,
employees and the communities managed by us.

Supervision and Report

The Nomination Committee will report the composition of the Board
in terms of diversification in the corporate governance report of the
annual report and supervise the implementation of the policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin (chairman) and Dr. Chu Xiaoping,
both independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Bai Xihong, a
non-executive Director.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
as determined by the Board from time to time;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;
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5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

8. to ensure that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration;

9. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

10. to consider and implement other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board or otherwise required by the Listing Rules from
time to time.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages for Directors and senior management of the
Company for 2021 and the remuneration policy and structure for
Directors and senior management for 2022, assessed the performance
of executive Directors, reviewed and recommended the Board on the
remuneration packages of the Directors on renewing the service and
appointment terms during the year and proposed amendments to
the terms of reference of Remuneration Committee, which was then
revised on 28 November 2022.

As the Company has not granted any Award Shares under the Share
Award Scheme during the Reporting Period, the Remuneration
Committee has not reviewed and/or approved any matter in relation
to the Share Award Scheme during the Reporting Period.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (chairman) and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, both
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Li Qiang, a non-
executive Director, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. To review the relationship with the auditor by reference to
the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the auditor;

2. To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the auditor before submission to the
Board; and

3.  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system, risk
management systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Audit Committee
were held. The Audit Committee reviewed the annual results and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021, interim results
and interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022, financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, the effectiveness of the Company's internal
audit and financial reporting functions), and the re-appointment
of the external auditor. The Board has not deviated from any
recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022 as well as the
audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee currently comprises five members, namely Mr. Bai
Xihong (chairman), a non-executive Director, Ms. Wang Meng, Ms.
Xie Rao and Ms. Zhou Rui, all executive Directors, and Mr. Lui Shing
Ming, Brian, an independent non-exeuctive Director.

The principal duties of the ESG Committee are as follows:

1. To direct and review the development of the Group's ESG
management policies and strategies to ensure that they are up-
to-date, relevant and meets applicable legal and regulatory
requirements;

2. To monitor the development and implementation of the Group’s
ESG objectives, including setting the Group's performance
targets for ESG management; reviewing the progress of
achieving those targets, and advising on the actions required to
achieve those targets;

3.  To review the main external ESG trends and report to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies and
strategies and its objectives setting;

4.  To direct and review the identification and prioritization of the
materiality of ESG issues of the Group;

5. To review annual ESG reports and other ESG-related disclosures,
and make recommendations to the Board for approval;

6. To identify ESG risks and opportunities related to the Group,
assess the impact arising from such risks or opportunities on the
Group, and make recommendations to the Board on responses
to those risks or opportunities; and

7.  Other responsibilities delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the ESG Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the ESG Committee
was held. The ESG Committee reviewed the development and
implementation of the Group’s ESG management policies, targets and
strategies, as well as the annual ESG reports and other ESG-related
disclosures.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors and the senior
management of the Company's biographies are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. The details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding Directors)
that consisted of four individuals for the year ended 31 December
2022 is within the range of HKD 1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of
the Company and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
annual basis.

The Group has established a valid and effectual risk management
system, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving the following objectives:

- To control risks in line with overall objectives and within
acceptable level;

- To achieve true and reliable communication of the Company's
internal and external information;

- To ensure the compliance with laws and regulations;

- To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company's
operation;

- To ensure the Company’s establishment of risk contingency
plans for every significant risk to enable it not to suffer great
losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.

The Group’s risk management and internal control team plays a
major role in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.
The major responsibilities of the internal control team are regulating
and reviewing the financial conditions and internal control of the
Company, and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and
subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis. The Board, the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit department
are the four levels of structure and main features of risk management
and internal control systems.
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The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
based on the assessment made by the Board, it is considered that
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems for
the Reporting Period are effective and adequate for its present
requirements, save as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 March 2023. Areas of improvement have been identified
and appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks, including engaging external professional consultants to review
the risk management and internal control of the Group for the
Reporting Period. Where appropriate, their recommendations are
adopted and enhancements to the risk management and internal
controls will be made. As a general control measure, the Group has
maintained a list of connected persons and entities for the monitoring
and identification of connected transaction. The improvement of
the systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing
process and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthening the Company’s control environment and processes. The
Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
the business objectives of the Group and to only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During 2022, the Board also supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis; such review covered all major control aspects of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Board also confirmed that there are adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and relevant
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could effectively
manage the key factors that might affect the Group in achieving
its strategic objectives, such factors including events, accidents or
behaviors with a material impact on the Group’s reputation, assets,
capital, profit or liquidity.

The Group has established the Customer Assistant Center, which
is responsible for the daily supervision and inspection of risk
management of each department, continuous supervision and routine
inspection on fire safety, public security administration, human and
technical defense and emergency management conducted by each
department and in each project in accordance with the Company’s risk
management system, and tracking the implementation of rectification.

BABBIERERAR /2022 FF8R 113



y
T

il

e
RP

B

ﬁﬂ:

Sk
©)
o)
>

AEBRILEHH L - BEAKEZEMN
EREBRER - RN ES ELRRER
QR IE G R TER M A M - WETT
FEEBMTIRE - AR - GEBRZER
ERRITERE  ARGERARRRER
MBM  AEFERSEEREITHE - =
E2ERREREARER  EZBTh LA AR
ERREIFOBETIEEXRADRMESD
REINMBARE -

AEBRIUBAERPL ABRHREME
TERARBRET  ARABEREHRE
RAEPEHIER KRR IE MRS T - B
REHFT ERAKEEFZEEERNE
FHETE] - B & BT RO LR B TR HE AR
T8/ ARAIREEREFTERAE R
BESFERBEATE  ARKATAMBE
BR - KUBAEFREMA AFSAERESD
DEE - BEEBHRL  AFTHERS
o BBEBPLOMZEEREABENX
HERBAETER  BRBFTERERR
REHERE -

AEEHET T ZENRRERHE - RESE
HA 0 12 R A A L P B TR e P P B4 Y <T BB
XA REEEREEEERAREETHENA
ERBE - WR AR R E IR
EEAS - EUEFERBREE TFHER
b ARAEREEREHARENRRETT
BRI R - BBRIITISRITENE(L
AEERBBEREEESREREABR
W AR OERERNEER - BBTE
HAZZRREREEHBFAIESERZ OB
RBRHERETEEME  FEEERR
LR ARSI

=]
TE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has a Legal Affairs Center responsible for the legal affairs
of each organization of the Group, confirming and evaluating the
integrity and effectiveness of each organization’s risk management
and internal control systems, and conducting continuous supervision
and routine inspection. Meanwhile, according to national laws and
regulations and industry norms, the systems of the Company and the
current situation of its risk management, the Company organized
and carried out various professional training work to enhance the
legal and compliance awareness of the staff. The risk and compliance
inspection work organized by the Legal Affairs Center covers major
business activities and all branches and subsidiaries.

The Group has an Audit and Supervision Center responsible for
regular and special audits of organizations and handling and resolving
of internal non-compliance incidents and material internal control
defects. The center is independent of each department and audits the
risk management and internal control of each organization according
to the audit plan reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Group. The
Company has full-time audit and supervision personnel. They have
the authority to integrate the Company’s internal audit resources
according to the needs of audit and supervision projects and
establish a joint audit project team, led by the Audit and Supervision
Center and comprising members of the Legal Affairs Center, human
resources and administration center, financial management center
and various business lines, to conduct regular and special audits of
each organization, and investigate and deal with violations by each
organization of regulations and disciplines.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system,
which specifies the roles and responsibilities of the management and
the Board in risk management work in compliance with the relevant
risk management and internal control code provisions during the
Reporting Period. On the basis of the system, continuous monitoring
has taken place in relation to the risk management and internal
control systems. Based on the risk management work conducted in
previous years, the management of the Company continues to identify
and evaluate the risks of the Group. The management has analyzed
the changes to core risks by paying attention to market and industry
changes and communicating with the company president and relevant
senior management. The control of core risks is under continuous
monitoring through regular self-inspection and evaluation organized
by each risk management department regarding respective core risks.
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Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information. In practice, employees of
the Group who become aware of any events and/or matters which
he/she considers potentially inside information, will report to the
designated personnel of the Company who, if considered appropriate,
will pass such information to the Board for the purpose of considering
and deciding whether or not such information constitutes inside
information and disclosure of which shall be made as soon as
reasonably practicable.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

The Group’s internal audit department, which serves as the internal
audit function of the Company, plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The internal audit department
determines the main units, business and items and high-risk areas
included in the scope of inspection based on the risk-oriented
principle. The main units included in the scope of inspection consist
of headquarters of the Company and its subsidiaries. The scope of
risk management and internal control inspection covers the major
businesses and matters of the Company’'s headquarters and its
subsidiaries, with a focus on high-risk or important business activities
including fund management, environmental management, quality
control, asset management, water and electricity consumption
management, information security management, paid service and
maintenance, parking lot management, lease and sale business
management, sporadic project management, management and control
of waste collection and transportation, use of administrative expenses,
tendering and bidding, purchase of materials, diversified operations
and daily administration management. The internal audit team reports
to the Board at least twice on an annual basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Audit Committee has received a report of risk management
and internal control prepared by the internal audit team, and has
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
remain adequate and effective throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 with no material issues to be brought to the Board’s
attention.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the auditor's approximate
remuneration for providing audit and non-audit services to the
Company is as follows:

SHEAR¥T)
Amount (RMB)

ZE R

Audit services

LB AR

Non-audit services
i E
—Interim result review
—H fh*
—Others*

a5t

Total

1,780,000

1,050,000

183,027

3,013,027

* HMIFRBRBEIEBEESGHRE B
K B AR AR -

DNEUWE

ARARZEBOERLZLE ([Ekt] EBE
BERAREEREMRBEBEE) BEAR
BIARIME - ARAB ARV EBHBEKREE
REBRRNRNEZ EEBEA o

HE202212831BLtEE - XL ER
A LR AIE3. 20158 T A D R15/ NEF AR
A EIE -

* Other non-audit services mainly consisted of ESG report
consultant and other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng”, a director
and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong
Limited) as the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Kwok Pak
Shing, the chief financial officer of the Company, serves as her main
internal contact person of the Company.

Ms. Ng has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Company’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparently and timely disclosure of information of the Company,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the
Company and the respective chairman of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meeting to answer the Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

In order to promote the transparency, the Group enables the investors
to understand its businesses and operations through its annual general
meeting, extraordinary general meeting, annual report, interim report
and website.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing an
on-going communication between the Company and the Shareholders
and maintains a website at www.shidaiwuye.com, where up-to-date
information on the it's business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholders’ communication policy conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2022, including measures and arrangements
for the general meetings, the handling of any queries and the
channel of communication and engagement in place, and confirmed
the effectiveness of such policy. The Company is committed to
maintaining a high level of corporate transparency and designates
specialized personnel to maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Company’s
operations and developments.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article
64 of the Articles of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. Any one
or more member(s) of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or company secretary of our Company at the email
address: sdllir@timesgroup.cn to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene such general meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. More details of
the procedures can be available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to the
representatives of investor relations of the Company at the email
address: sdllir@timesgroup.cn.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young KGR E AT TelE 5% : +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place  &HE#I&H Fax{EH : +852 2868 4432
979 King's Road FEEI7I5 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong K& —EE271E

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 128 to 258, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBRNAEERRERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERAMETLEER R E S

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

M2022F12A318 ' EBEHEEANDERMEEREGD
EEFBEMNEREEFED A ABARKE485,185,0007T & A
R139,126,0007T - MEEBRAAREFBAEEBBRA
{ERAFH -

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amounts of
goodwill and property management contracts and customer
relationships arising from business combinations were
approximately RMB485,185,000 and RMB139,126,000,
respectively. Property management contracts and customer
relationships are with finite useful lives.

BESFETHEANS IVXEEAORETFBREMN
5 BEBERESHREHRFLESEEATFRBETYEER
BHAREFPBAENRLERE  YRBRETFREHYESE
BROKEFPBAGETRENN - SEEEEBHHERY
EEEROREPRAFBETHRERN FRKREERHE K
et (BREBRReELSEM ((REELEM ) HEER
I - FREWARRR RATIR KA H R AR o

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. For property
management contracts and customer relationships, the
Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any indication that the property management
contracts and customer relationships may be impaired, and
tests the property management contracts and customer
relationships for impairment if such indication exists. The
impairment review of goodwill and property management
contracts and customer relationships performed by the
Group’s management includes a number of significant
judgements and estimates, including those regarding the
identification of operating profit forecasts, annual revenue
growth rates and discount rates of cash-generating units
("CGQUs").

BRNEZREFEERSMEEBRFEAXBAHELNRE
AMEEERGNREFPBERDSHBARENREARANZE
BENEEUERTEN HMEFENTARETRME - H2
BREEMBEBRE - FHEFREENEEEAOR
BEFRE -

Our audit procedures included an analysis of the rationale
and objective evidence used by management in evaluating
whether there were impairment indicators for individual
property management contracts and customer relationship
arising from business combinations. For any impairment
indicator existed, the related property management
contracts and customer relationships were taken into
further assessment about whether any impairment losses
occur.

B EAERDEEEAOREPERBENRTEFE
HEAT&E

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill
and property management contracts and customer
relationships with impairment indicators included the
following:

o BEFENBHEEERBHEMFME BRFEEREAIKE
SREMRANTERFTRE ;
° Involving internal valuation specialists to assist us

in evaluating the methodologies and discount rates
used by the Company for determining the recoverable
amounts;

o FHEEEEINEMHEMNS - BN RFEIL

° Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the management’s external valuer;
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(RESHSHEMA LW ERAE]) (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
FEREEZEE (§) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEEREE BPNERNAEREREEREE

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERAMELRENRIEREG (&)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

BRI ZEE  THAREEERRYEEERNREPE  «  RHMANEREE  JINEEEHRRKRAREEE

FHNEEUUNERER T ERRELNEREERTHMLE BEHTA - FERATEHBEAREH2022F% RS
BE b - EABAMMBERE B

We focused on this area because of the materiality of the o Examining the underlying data used, such as
balances of goodwill and property management contracts management’s projection on the future revenues
and customer relationships, and the complex and subjective and operating results by investigating whether
management estimation made by management on the key the forecasts were consistent with the financial
assumptions. performance of each CGU during the year of 2022;

FRBBEMRMEXEEQOREFARNRENENERE o FHIRSELBUNETERASIEEFEER

At RBEHN G E B HRRMEE3 - 16%17 - NAEBRREELBANERE

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about e Examining the business development plans and
the impairment assessment of goodwill and property historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the
management contracts and customer relationships are growth rate of each CGU,;

included in notes 3, 16 and 17 to the consolidated

financial statements. o Mt EEEEEERTIZRIREZINTEMETHR

REDH R

o Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Group’s management on the impact of changes in
the key assumptions; and

o  AFEEANKREEENEEEREEATOHBHE
YHEREH AN LSRG ESREESFMAR
HE{ELLE °

3 Testing the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’s impairment
model and comparing management'’s estimate of the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount of each
CGU.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBRNAEERRERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEWE 55 A TREE BB 1R R

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

M2022F12A318 - ESEREHEEREARE
374,013,000 CEMERE SHHRIEAARKES00,475,000
Lo BEBFARGBEEERRKEHHRENEHREEEE
([FEEEREE]) - BEXRNDERAEFEUBEEXNNZ @
EEDBARMERRBENRBHREETE - BEHEERTY
AR BEEMNBTERENRMEL - EEESRIEEME
LARRTEEE R AR B EEEIBEER

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables
of RMB800,475,000, after making loss allowance of
RMB374,013,000. The Group uses a provision matrix
to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on aging or days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The
Group calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.

RPN E SR EN T R R SR EREE - EE
ARKESRELRY BEEHSZBEA  MERSES
EBRRAE LETHYE  BRESEREEHEANER
fih5t o

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the balance of trade receivables
was material to the Group and the recognition of expected
credit losses was inherently subjective and required the
exercise of significant management’'s judgements and
estimations.

ERERUEZFENEREEBRBRENERNGH T
BENRA M BRRMEIR21 -

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
are included in notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BAFEERKE ZFRNEREEEERENEZEZIF 2R
A& -

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included the following:

o MEARAREBEMAIEREE 2% 2FEBEE
EBEREN ENERFAHER

o Evaluating and testing the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including historical
loss information, probability of default, and expected
losses;

o FHMAEREIMNEMEMNTE - RN RFHML

o Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the management’s external valuer;

s BBNMEIBRFPAREEEHRNEREZFRFABAHK
R B ERMITEADITIEERRIZF

o Executing substantive analytical review procedures
by analysing the fluctuations of major customers’
outstanding balances and trade receivable turnover
days;

. M EERB L ERERENEE  HERENEM
HEX T EEEEA RN EWE 5 HRIBN2022 4
1231 BMRIERE N ERNE &

° Assessing, on a sampling basis, the correctness of the
ageing report of trade receivables at 31 December
2022 prepared by management by comparing the
sample items with the demand notes, sales invoices
and other relevant underlying documentation; and

o IWMEEEHIRSWIRKABERXXAHERE S
RANBERERBR -

o Testing, on a sampling basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.

BRBBIERERAR /2022 48R 123



B &% BE RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HRAMEZRERQIARR
(REASESEMRE LA BRAA])

BRFRPVEMER

BERRBERAHEMESAS - HMEH
BRINFHRNES - ETEEEAME
WK R ERE B ISR A B B

wE e

BPEGREMBRRIEHNBERL TRE
HMER - HAITNAFER T AR

i SIX f A
B o

AR ME R BRENTFZME - HMA
MEERMELMEN KMEEEMLE
HRE A M RR RPN B
EENERFEEANTRUFFEEXN
SRR o ERBEMIDHITHIE @ M
MR R EMENFEERFERRML - K
MERSHABEE - plit - RAALEER
AI3RERIR -

EEHGRAMBRRAERE
HEE

BENFEZRERBER S ENREES
M B BIR B 5 s 5 B R R BB A R R BI
MWBERE  MRTEEBETBERAL
BHBHE  URERESRALENE
BN ERIES] - ARG S M IBHKRE
PEFEHERKRFFRERMEMNERER
BR

RRHEEAMBHRRE - ERAREER
il BERERBELCENRENLEER
BATREESELLEEHANER UK
ERA/BEERTEE I EQAES
BHEE BESEIRULLEERFEEME
BRAITTROR R D RIEA UL T RRIRRS

BERABERETEEE BREMBR
SBRENEIREETRESHY -

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HZE2022F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

it s 20224 20214
Notes 2022 2021
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
WA REVENUE 5 2,606,042 2,719,747
SHE R Cost of sales 7 (2,050,148) (1,977,687)
EA Gross profit 555,894 742,060
H AU A R iz Other income and gains 6 28,181 38,108
SHE RIS HEEN A Selling and marketing costs (30,746) (20,561)
THAX Administrative expenses (341,740) (279,224)
SRR AREEREREFE  Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets 7 (372,226) (10,443)
Hf X Other expenses (82,748) (28,281)
BhE A AN Finance costs 8 (1,076) (3,348)
DG E QA FER Share of profits and losses of associates 18 (3,885) 5,482
BrELAT (E51R), FIE (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 (248,346) 443,793
FrisfiEe /(Fx) Income tax credit/(expense) 11 48,751 (109,656)
FE (&8 FE (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (199,595) 334,137
THNZIBREAS Attributable to:
ISYNEIEZEPN Owners of the parent (213,627) 308,000
FEFERR MR Non-controlling interests 14,032 26,137
(199,595) 334,137
BAREEESITA ABIEEM (LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
(E18) BT TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 13
EAREE (UBRARKE Basic and diluted
DHR) (expressed in RMB cents per share) (22) 31
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mEEHEB AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE20229F12 8318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE (BH),/FiE (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (199,595) 334,137
Hibh2m (BE), KA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
REERETENSEEEED Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
Hih2m (BE), A reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
HEFINB AR IEMARMIEN Z%  Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries (104,345) 21,801
REEHREBETEEFHEZTIBEME  Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will
fEEWRA S (E518) - not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BREAR QT BHRENER 58 Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of the Company 106,043 (35,455)
FEEMZEBA (BE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR 1,698 (13,654)
FEL2ME (BHE)WALE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR (197,897) 320,483
T3 B IEFE : Attributable to:
SREHEB A Owners of the parent (211,929) 294,346
FEE IR 2 Non-controlling interests 14,032 26,137
(197,897) 320,483
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

KfaE 20224 20214
Notes 2022 2021
AR®T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y -~ BB R&E Property, plant and equipment 14 92,607 95,216
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 10,499 15,911
(&S Goodwill 16 485,185 562,909
HinmEEE Other intangible assets 17 221,321 253,693
REE R B RE Investments in associates 18 68,947 72,522
BRI IEE E Deferred tax assets 19 113,609 20,949
FERFIE ~ e REAMWEUEIE Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 23 5,883 6,939
EmBEERARE Total non-current assets 998,051 1,028,139
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
PEHSS Inventories 20 3,371 1,435
FEW B S RIR Trade receivables 21 800,475 1,139,996
ERIEE Contract assets 22 - 10,178
TEFRIE © ke REAMEWFIE Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 23 303,591 263,334
SRR BRI TF IR Restricted bank deposits 24 13,036 11,324
BeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 810,359 814,329
MENVEERRR Total current assets 1,930,832 2,240,596
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5508 Trade payables 25 560,436 569,447
HMEMRIERERTIEEB Other payables and accruals 26 376,747 371,544
ARAE Contract liabilities 5 79,040 128,025
HEBE Lease liabilities 15(b) 6,602 8,790
FETBERK Tax payable 51,059 72,903
eGSR Government grants 324 1,915
E A ERE Total current liabilities 1,074,208 1,152,624
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 856,624 1,087,972
EEAERABERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,854,675 2,116,111
continued/...
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it s 20224 20214
Notes 2022 2021
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHAERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,854,675 2,116,111
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 7,607 13,537
IR I #64 Bf) Government grants - 6
BEXERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 35,439 43,757
FIEIEAR RS 2R B U HIMERY  Financial liability for a put option
TRIBE written on non-controlling interests 27 121,641 125,442
EREBEETE Total non-current liabilities 164,687 182,742
EEFE Net assets 1,689,988 1,933,369
R EQUITY
BRAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
%N Share capital 28 8,868 8,868
FLAR (D BN ET B3 A M AR (D Shares held for the share award scheme (22,198) (22,198)
i Reserves 29 1,583,274 1,838,121
1,569,944 1,824,791
I AR R 2 Non-controlling interests 120,044 108,578
RSB Total equity 1,689,988 1,933,369
T#h B
Wang Meng Zhou Rui
5= 5=
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2022F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

BAAREAEL
Attributable to owners of the parent

Hif

#mite HERG  BO%E
B GEMRG  ROEE  SfRE R B EiRE HMEE  oFNE ait  FEREE AR

Shares held

for the share Statutory Share Non-
Share award Share  Merger  surplus award  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  scheme  premium  reserve funds ~ reserve  reserve  Reserve profits Total  interests equity

ARBTR ARMTn ARETn ARMTr ARBTR  ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETr  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(i) (WEow)  (BE26) (Wiow)  (K83290) (W) (Kdoe)
(note 28)  (note 29(d)) (note 29(a)) (note 29(b)) (note 29(c)) (note 29(d)) (note 29(e))

RNNETRIE A1 January 2022 8,868 (22,19) 1329883 (26,400) 86,477 6,279 (82.245)  (125442) 649,600 1,824,791 108,578 1,933,369
EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - - - Be)  (BE) W (19959%)
EFABRESE  Other comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - 1,698 - - 1,698 - 1,698

FERMERLE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - - 1,698 - e 199 14032 (197897)

FERBREE  Capital injecton from a non-

controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - 528 528

HE-HHERE  Disposal of a subsidary - - - - - - - - - - 136 136
BRTHTRE  Trandher tostatutory

N surplus funds - - - - 16,625 - - - (16629) - - -
INREEEORE  Fouitysettled share

EEHE] award scheme - - - - - 3,409 - - - 3,409 - 3,409

BAEERERRS  Dividends paid to non-
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (3.230) (3.230)
ERERE  final 2021 dividend - - (630) - - - - - - (s3) - 3

20028128318 At31 December 2022 8868 (219) 1283516* (26400 103,102 0688*  (80547)* (125442 419357+ 1569944 120044 1,689,988
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE20229F12 8318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

BATEEARN
Attributable to owners of the parent
Filhg)
#5512 i
RE  HENRR  RORE  AlER £ B EIRRE  AfRE  BRNE ait  FHREE  ERSE
Shares held
for the share Statutory Share Non-
Share award Share Merger surplus award  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital scheme  premium reserve funds resere TEserve Reserve profits Total Interests equity
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
(Hios)  (Wetoow)  (Witoge)  (Witoow)  (Wdzg0)  (Waoaw)  (Bitse)  (W327)
(note28)  (note 29(d)  (note 29))  (note 290)  note 29¢)  (note 29(d)  (note 29)  (note 27)
R0NE AT January 2021

1418 8868 (22,198 1,399,826 (26,400) 54,967 74 (68,591) = BN 1720333 4364 1,761,697
EEFRE  Profitfor theyear = - - = - - - - 308000 308000 6131 33137
EEEf Other comprehensive

SEEE  lossfor theyear = - = = - - (136 - - (136 - (13654
EFREIA  Total comprehensive

fz income for the year - - - - - - (13,654) - 308,000 294,346 26,137 300483
FARBREE Capital injecton from non-

controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
IWEMBATE Put option granted during

BREME  the acquisiion of

i Subsiclaries - - - - - - - (154 - (1544 - (1540
WWEMBAT  Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - = = = - - = = 60,882 60,882
BRTEERS Trander o statutory

NEE surplus funds - - - - 31510 - - - 31510 - - -
IREREMR Fquity-settled share

[RETE  award scheme - - - - - 5537 - - - 5537 - 5537

BASHERIE Dividends paid to non-

RE controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (23805 (23809
000ERERE Final 2020 dividend - - (69,983) - - - - - - (69,.983) - 69,983)
H202E  At31 December 2021

128318 8868 (22,198) 1,320,843 (26,400 86,477 6,279* (82,245 (125442 649,600 1824791 108578 1933369

@ ZEHBEREEKNGEVBRARPORHE
#5 AR 1,583,274,0007T (20214F : A
R#1,838,121,0007T) ©

* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB1,583,274,000
(2021: RMB1,838,121,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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- GERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2022F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

ffat 20224 20214
Notes 2022 2021
ARETR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHFBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRBLAT (B51R),/ FE (Loss)/profit before tax (248,346) 443,793
FHE Adjustments for:
RERA Finance costs 8 1,076 3,348
DB E AR B Share of profits and losses of associates 3,885 (5,482)
RITHEWA Bank interest income (1,848) (3,837)
ME  BERRBNE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 18,557 17,718
TRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 5,111 6,816
oA BT & S 8 Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 52,121 41,239
SRKERAERBERETHE Net impairment loss on financial and
contract assets 7 372,226 10,443
HEME - BEMZEBEBERERE Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 358 329
HEMK S EAMEREMZERE Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets
REAEEEMES RS for a sublease classified as a finance lease (184) =
HERATR R Gain upon early termination of a lease (170) =
REEBKAHFEBNALLIEME  Compensation loss for contract termination for
BEE business combination 7 - 30,000
HENRABEFELFIAEBZEAM  Gain on disposal of financial assets at
TREENE fair value through profit or loss 6 (3,069) (5,328)
BB BT Government grants released to profit or loss 6 (4,305) (18,707)
RUBEEM A R BEKE Fair value gain on put option 6 (3,801) =
HEWMB AR 2 EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 136 =
HE—MEBE QR ZEE Loss on disposal of an associate 127 =
AR IE A Z R D BT EIF Y. Equity-settled share award scheme expense 29(d) 3,409 5,537
B A AR Covid-19487
HEeRR Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors ~ 15(b) - (253)
BERE Impairment of goodwill 16 80,770 =
BB & ERE Impairment of other intangible assets 17 776 =
276,829 525,616
FE (M), md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,936) 1,390
FEUWE S FRIAE N Increase in trade receivables (18,817) (538,974)
EREERD Decrease in contract assets 2,320 2,958
B FOE - fEE REAERFIBE I Increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables (61,028) (29,916)
FERE S8 CRd) /8 m (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (9,166) 277,913
&/ ..
continued/...
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ffat 2022F 20214
Note 2022 2021
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hib M FIERERIEE Increase/(decrease) in
#m,/ i) other payables and accruals 7,497 (29,833)
ARBERD Decrease in contract liabilities (49,093) (48,080)
T T 463 B 3 Increase in government grants 2,708 7,934
PR HIER 1T E AN Increase in restricted bank deposits (1,712) (4,995)
KREMERE Cash generated from operations 147,602 164,013
BRI FEH Income tax paid (74,420) (109,335)
RETBHRBHESRETE Net cash flows from operating activities 73,182 54,678
RETHFBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B B Interest received 1,848 3,837
BEWME  BERFEERE Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment (11,258) (21,251)
HEME « BE &R EEB WATSF Proceeds from disposal of items of
A property, plant and equipment 358 4,480
RBE HBEHEMEVEE Purchase/development of other intangible assets (19,287) (48,648)
BEUAR EEFEWA AB&EAE Purchase of financial assets at
MEE fair value through profit or loss (2,035,112) (2,435,395)
HEUA R BEFEWET ABZEAS Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
BMEEMNAEFIE at fair value through profit or loss 2,038,181 2,531,223
m—fEEBE R RTE Capital injection to an associate (800) (367)
WER—HBEARMIRE Acquisition of an investment in an associate - (118,635)
WEEB A ) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 31 (3,133) (152,282)
HE—BENRIRE Disposal of an investment in an associate 363 -
L ER Bk i 1) AR B, Dividend received from an associate 8,277 =
ZBRBIRITERORD Decrease in restricted bank deposits - 118,635
JE 1 IEPR AR AR S SRIE R Decrease in amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders - (34,470)
HEEBEHBANERED Compensation paid for contract violation
T EEEE for business combination (2,000) (28,000)
WEIHEREFEE Receipt of net investment in the lease 3,148 4,477
REZEBAREREFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (19,415) (176,396)
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GRERTMNER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2022F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2022

ffat 20224 20214
Note 2022 2021
ARETR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERERTE Capital injection from non-controlling interests 528 4,000
ERFE Interest paid (968) (1,252)
HENROES D Principal portion of lease payments (8,672) (10,876)
BEREE Dividends paid (46,327) (69,983)
BRI R S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (3,230) (23,805)
mMEEE A Net cash flows used in
B REFRE financing activities (58,669) (101,916)
ReRBLEEY NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
WO FE CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,902) (223,634)
FNHReRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 814,329 1,047,739
HNERE R & B 5 & R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 932 (9,776)
FRASRBLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 810,359 814,329
RERASEEYERIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B& RRITHER Cash and bank balances 24 823,395 825,653
o ZRHIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits 24 (13,036) (11,324)
Renerdfminiak Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
REEEY the statement of cash flows 810,359 814,329
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022%12H31H 31 December 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
General information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 12 July 2019. The registered office address
of the Company is 71 Fort Street, PO Box 500, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares became listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK") on 19 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the provision
of property management and other relevant services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Best Source Ventures Limited, which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and the
ultimate holding company is Renowned Brand Investments
Limited ("Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated in the
BVI. Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(“Mr. Shum”), the founder of the Company and the Group.
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B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

1. REAIREBER (F) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEBATZER Information about subsidiaries

ARAIEMBABZFBNT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MR B BRTEE VNG 3]
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE REEZEE DL TEEH
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered Hi e Principal

Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities

BMNTERYEERFRAA FE FERM, AR - 100 MEER
((EMTERANEEE]) 1998412 A18H 1,000,000,0007T
(PH5E(b))

Guangzhou Times Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB - 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 18 December 1998 1,000,000,000 management
("Guangzhou Times Property
Management”) (note (b))

BMNTEABECRXERERAAF HE S FERM, AR - 100 REER
(TEMTERBE]) (M) 200998 A31H  1,500,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/ RMB - 100 Investment
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd 31 August 2009 1,500,000,000 holding
("Guangzhou Times
Neighborhood”) (note (a))

BULTIEERERYEERER AR RE BN, AR - 100 NEER
(IgwLmaERE ) (Kb) 2002%7R29R 1,000,0007T

Foshan Shunde Hetai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 29 July 2002 management
("Foshan Hetai") (note (b))

EMNBENEERERAF R RN, AR - 100 NEER
(TEMEBE]) (MEb) 199562 A28H 9,000,0007C

Guangzhou Wanning Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB9,000,000 - 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 28 February 1995 management

("Guangzhou Wanning”) (note (b))
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AEIREBER (F) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

B~ R & (F)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AAREEZMBARZFHBRT ¢

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
MR B BRTEE VNG 3]
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE REEZEE DL TEEH
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered H#E L Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
WETMRENXERAERAF ([HEHR FE HERAM, 2001 AKR¥S500,0007 - 100 MEEE
&) (Hff=E(b) F6H6H
Zhuhai Yuanxing Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000 = 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 6 June 2001 management
("Zhuhai Yuanxing”) (note (b))
BETRAENEERRRAR ([FEMHE FE S RERM, AR - 100 MEER
%) (Mak(b)) 20081 A16H 5,000,0007C
Qingyuan Rongtai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 16 January 2008 management
("Qingyuan Rongtai”) (note (b))
R R T AR (M) BRR AR (it FE S RERM, AR - 100 MR ERE R
(b)) 2004%6 A3H 100,000,000t MBIRE RS
Guangzhou Dongkang Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property
Management Service Co.,Ltd. 3 June 2004 management
(note (b)) and provision of
municipal
sanitation
services
BRELZEBERAA (RREHR]) FE S FERM, AR - 70 Bk
(PRt 3E (b)) 199612 4198 10,000,0007C HE R g
Joan Elevator (Guangdong) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 70 Installation, sale

("Joan Elevator”) (note (b))

19 December 1996
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2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

1. RAIRKEEESN (&)

B~ R & (F)

AAREEZMBARZFHBRT ¢

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
MR B BRTEE VNG 3]
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE REEZEE DL TEEH
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered Hi e Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
RNBECFEBRERAF ([HNEEE]) FE RERNM, AR - 100 REER
(P EE(b)) 202056 A 18H 5,000,0007C
Xuzhou Mengmu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 18 June 2020 holding
("Xuzhou Mengmu”) (note (b))
BMTHEEHMRERAR ((ENTHE  #8 FERXM, ARE - 100 BRRZE
etk ) (P5E(b)) 2015%12A228  100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Linli Zhilian Technology PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 - 100 Construction
Co., Ltd. 22 December 2015 and installation
("Guangzhou Neighborhood
Intelligent”) (note (b))
BMTRASBEAMERRERAR (BN RERERM, AR - 100 fREESRIRS
TRABER ) (b)) 20145 9A28 10,000,0007T
Guangzhou Times Linlibang PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Network Technology Co., Ltd. 2 September 2014 information
("Guangzhou Times Linlibang”) technology
(note (b)) services
BMmRRBERAMBERAR ([EMNH HE L RERM, AR = 100 RERRES
RABERR ) (Fb) 201968 A26H 20,000,0007T
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Environmental Protection 26 August 2019 environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection
("Guangzhou Times Neighborhood services

Environmental Protection”)
(note (b))
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B~ R & (F)

AAREEZMBARZFHBRT ¢
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

MR B BRTEE VNG 3]
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE REEZEE DL TEEH
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered H#E L Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
BNTEBNEERERLA hEREA, AR¥S5,000,0007T - 100 NEER
([EEMNEE ] (HI7E(b)) 2006512 A6H
Guangzhou Haoging Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 6 December 2006 management
("Guangzhou Haoqing”) (note (b))
BMNTRANEERERAR ([EMER]) B HFEARM, ARY1,000,0007T - 100 NEER
(F=E(b)) 2003%5A7H
Guangzhou Yaocheng Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 May 2003 management
("Guangzhou Yaocheng”) (note (b))
BNTEEEREARAR ((EMERE]) B PEAM, ARE - 100 ERhTE
(Bt (b)) 20204 R17H 10,000,0007C
Guangzhou Yigizhu Home PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction
Furnishing Co., Ltd. 17 April 2020 and installation
("Guangzhou Yiqizhu") (note (b))
FENSMERBAERAR ([ LERIE]) FE RERM, ARE - 51 MEER
(BifEE (b)) 200967H7H 20,408,200t
Shanghai Kejian Property PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,408,200 = 51 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 July 2009 management

("Shanghai Kejian") (note (b))
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Zhiye Management Co., Ltd.

(note (b))

7 August 2020
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1. REAREEEN (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEARZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(&) (continued)
MR, KL ERITER ARG
28 kg BREAEMBRAE BRAERZEDE TEED
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered Hi e Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
KEEEMTRRAERRR (RHBEE]) FE RERNM, AR - 80 REER
(P EE(b)) 2018A2A12R8 20,000,0007T
Chengdu Holytech PRC/Mainland China/  RMB20,000,000 - 80 Investment
Technology Co., Ltd. 12 February 2018 holding
("Chengdu Holytech”) (note (b))
RESERITOERBBERLE ([REN hEREA, AR¥S5,000,0007T - 80 mEERE
%) (M3 (b)) 200747R12H
Chengdu Holytech PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 - 80 Property
Property Co., Ltd. 12 July 2007 management
("Holytech Property”) (note (b))
KEEEABREERDR (ME(b) FE S RERM, AR - 80 MEER
2002% 11 A8H 5,000,0007T
Chengdu Hezhi Business PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 - 80 Property
Service Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 8 November 2002 management
BEMmERBELERR AR (KEb) HE L RERM, ARE - 100 EmiHE
202087121 51,000,0007T
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB51,000,000 - 100 Sale of goods
Xingxuan Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 12 August 2020
BMNTRABEEZXERFRAR Mitbh) FB FERXM,/ AR - 100 AR
20208 A7H 10,000,0007T
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Agency

service
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B~ R & (F)

AAREEZMBARZFHBRT ¢

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
MR, KL ERITER VNG 3]
8 REEHE  REXIMBRE REEZEE DL TEED
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered H#E L Principal
Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities
BT BEREARAR (M) HERERM, AR - 100 B &R
2020F10A 168 10,000,000t
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Advertisement
Advertisement Co., Ltd. (note (b)) 16 October 2020 service
BRMERSERADF (D) HE L RERM, AR - 100 Bk
20203A128  100,000,0007T HE R g
Guangdong Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB100,000,000 - 100 Installation, sale
Electromechanics Co., Ltd. 12 March 2020 and maintenance
(note (b)) of elevators
BMNTEABELEHTIRAERAR (HiEb) HE PEAM, ARE - 100 BRRZE
202068 H17H 10,000,000t
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction
Decoration Engineering 17 August 2020 and installation
Co., Ltd. (note (b))
BLTRABELHTRARAR (MEb0) FE/ FERH ARE - 100 BRRZE
202012 A28H 10,000,000t
Foshan Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction

Decoration Engineering
Co., Ltd. (note (b))

28 December 2020
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2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

1. REAREEEN (& 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

WEARIZER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARG EEWNBARIZFHFBNOT ¢ Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(&) (continued)

MR, K ERITER ARG
28 kg BREAEMBRAE BRAERZEDE TEED
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company
establishment registered HiE e Principal

Name and operations share capital  Direct Indirect activities

BMNTEABEESEEEREERAA HE L RERM, AR - 100 MEER
(P &E(b)) 202068 A7H  150,000,0007%

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/  RMB150,000,000 - 100 Property
Smart Life Service Co., Ltd. 7 August 2020 management
(note (b))

BLUTEXYEERERAT(BLURE]) HE/FEAM,/ ARE - 100 MEER
(PH5E(b)) 2007F11A16H 2,000,000t

Heshan Jianmei Property Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 - 100 Property
Co., Ltd. ("Heshan Jianmei") (note (b)) 16 November 2007 management
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the directors of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do
not have any official English names.

Notes:

(@)  Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of
the PRC

(b)  Registered as domestic enterprises under the laws of the PRC

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“1ASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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22 EFBREBBRIRE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

REBECRAFEBHRERAER The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first

T3 S 5T BB B 75 R 5 2R - time for the current year's financial statements.

BRI e HBEL AR Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
HRIFE 35
EHEN

REE R WE - BE KRR - Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
F165BE] BTEEARIMATZ Proceeds before Intended Use
ZiN #IE

B e ER AEEL - ETER Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
FEI7WRIEET ALK Contract
ZiN

20184 % BRI s dE RIS Annual Improvements to  Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
2020FEIER 1R R EIRRE SRS IFRS standards lllustrative Examples accompanying
MBmEE  ERIBSRERTE 2018-2020 IFRS 16, and IAS 41

RIFEZ2E 1 BA 7 {91 B B PR
g mEERE 16
5 R BB 2 st 2R
F415

B P BT AT g WS i The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
B BHRREEEATBHE - significant financial effect on these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and I1AS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contract'*

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments ")’

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2020

Amendments ")’
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’
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2.3 B 2 M{E R ARE R EPR

MR EER (&)

! 20231 A1 B2 RFABRNF
FHAMER

2 20241 A1 B2 RFABRNF
EHAMER

: iR R BB SE 58 I AE R A R - (B AT AR

g m%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi&%ﬁﬁﬂufﬁw%ﬁﬂ%
TR 202046 A MM - BIFREIS
REERFIFREL BT UABRE
BEE » A FRBARN202341
B1BZATHRHNFEEHMERR
Br & 5t 4E Bl 25 39 5% i FE B B A 75
HwEAER|FE I

> E‘%‘%Eﬁ?’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ’éiﬁﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁﬂ']
FNTHE - AEBEERALEEA
gl E’Jﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ”*ﬁ’ﬂi@ﬁ‘l&%%

REBEENEEREBZEHE]
RSETEBRMBRE LN
Z-HEBR AEBRBZEH
BEESERHELS e e
BYREARERESY  BETEHAE
H’]i‘“%% ERMBARRELEEXR

B2 428
=

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

e An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of IFRS 17

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
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POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, financial assets and deferred
tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Building 5%
Leasehold improvements 18% to 50%
Motor vehicles 19% to 32%
Office equipment 10% to 48%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents office equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software, contract costs and licences

Software, contract cost and licenses are stated at cost less any
impairment loss and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Property management contracts and customer
relationships

Property management contracts and customer relationships
acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The property management contracts and
customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of
the respective contracts of 2 to 20 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Development cost is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Development cost not yet available for use is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Development cost is reclassified to software when
available for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

BARMEERERAR /2022 F4®% 1061



B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224512 A31H

31 December 2022

24 TR HRBE (F)

HE (%)

REEEREEA (F)

(a)

EREEE

CRAEEENEERKAH
(BIEEEERHERANBH)
R - ERAEEERKANG
B MBRERRFITE RRE
BE - YRS aENERNE
MABELRAE - FRAEEE
WRABREBERNEEERE
TR COCDELENVREEK
A LA RARBRE B EIs 2 AT AT
EMBEEN - BEEAE K
HEYE  ERAREENER
EREENAE AR AIEA
FHAREERE)TEN
T

g —E+F
TE =&EMmF

MR A ERETHEEENE
EREZREAEE LKA R
BEEERNTR  ANER
A& ER G AL A F 85

st
= o
A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 10 years
3 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of certain buildings
and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that is considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the
net investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return
over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

BRBBIERERAR /2022 £ 1065



- B # B & MY aE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

2AFTESTTHERME (8 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

RERHMERMEE (&)
Mg KT E (F)

RESBMEERBHEKAIARA
EBEFEIFAEME2EEADE
KitE  ERELAMEAXNAE
EREERSHNE ([HARBZNE
ERFBDWEADRE - AERE
VHARBINEAERMNENE R
BE  TwEXBEAMME - LA
R BEFEXFABE D B RE
g

AEEERTREEMNEHENE
AEEMAEREESMEEANESE
Reng EBEAEERERE
EERREBENRERE HES
BMEEXHEATARE ML - 2
HRADBRFENSREER A
FETREENKBDANAERE
RENZEBRARTE > MUR
REEFEAFARMBMEZEEAD
BRAENEREERNTA NI
BHRERERHEERBENZIER
BAARFTE - AARRATEXHER
ARFAENEREENRAEENE
Yt ABEDBNFTE -

ERERTABERLENE R
BENX A (AIAEEAZBEN
HEZEEER) ER - WEHRTA
BEANEEFTER —RIZRHIK
B EHRENHARARNEEDN
CRMEEBERHE -

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

166  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



24 FTESTHHERBE (8

RERRMEBMEE (H)
wmtHE

CREEMNBENEIANE S
wnR

REBHK AT EN T BEE (EFT
A)

BRBHERAGTENEREERRE
RERMNEEFE - XA FRIE -
fid B E A L FERR ~ BRTSRME » Al
W R EREMNERAER

KR ABEFTELFAE AL
BE

NARBEFELFABEZNEH
BERAREBERTBMRRS
R MarBEEFHFERERE

2
RIEBRSREE

CREE(X—BHEREEN—HD
F—HERBESRMEEN B (WE
) ET2ETIER TR EHER (B
RAREEZEMBRRRBE) :

e BREERERIRTRENE
MELRER® X

o AKEBECEERHEARREEE
BB RENEFNKERE—
RIEN | R EEREENE
ROBAT ME=ZNEHEX
NARRERENEE  K(a)
AEECDHEEZREENBAK
BBy K B3 - (b)) A EE
WEERTEREZREEN
BABORABREER BCE
BA B E R -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each of the reporting period, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liability for a put option written on non-controlling
interests and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except
for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held for the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group under the share award scheme are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liabilities arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the statement
of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods and services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly or quarterly
basis and recognises it as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under a lump sum basis, where the Group acts
as a principal and is primarily responsible for providing the
property management services to the property owners,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include daily value-
added services and brokerage services provided to property
owners and residents and the sale of goods. Revenue from
daily services is recognised when the services are rendered.
Revenue from brokerage services is recognised at a point
in time when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor execute a
legally binding agreement and performance obligations are
satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately when the community value-added services are
rendered to the customer.

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include construction site services, sales assistance services,
pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services and brokerage services provided to non-property
owners. The Group agrees the price for each service with
the customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual level of services
completed in that month. Revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners except for brokerage
services is recognised over time when the services are
rendered. Revenue from brokerage services is recognised
at a point in time when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor
execute a legally binding agreement and the performance
obligations are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(d)  Professional services

Professional services mainly include the installation, sale
and maintenance of elevators, intelligent engineering and
municipal sanitation. Revenue from sales commission, and
the sale of elevators and elevator parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the end customer and revenue from the provision of other
professional services is recognised when the services are
rendered. The Group agrees the price for each service with
the customers upfront and issues the bills to the customers
which vary based on the actual level of services completed
in that month.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument of the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (”equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. Further
details of fair values are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis.
The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
Dollar while the presentation currency of the Company for
the financial statements is the RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial information of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss from change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries
is HKD. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to these
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill was RMB485,185,000 (2021:
RMB562,909,000) as at 31 December 2022. Further details are
given in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the net carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

BARAEERERAR /2022 F48% 187



B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224512 A31H

3.

31 December 2022

Eﬁ%{%%l‘%%?&ﬁ%l‘

fhEr FREM (&)

Bt

~—

il

EI‘I:

BWEZRENEREESERE
=

me

—~
~

BEERRHE - BRAKLERRR
EHREEEE ZHMNHERIEFGEE
EXRfE - BHEERENSEY
RERBALERINOEB RS
B AKENBEEERELR R
R EMRTHFERKREP KR
KOERENER - BRAKEE
WEZREANEREEBREERE
BRZEMBHRERME21 -

g MEEESRAREFREN
o £ 1

A ERFHRNREGIERKH
AEE AT FARERZRMENR
BAERFABLUEG R EMEMF
ERAEREFHATFNELLR
(HERBARLRRES M) £1T
WEBEEARAERBFEMOMGETD
ERMEEEARNEARM (ZEN
F) HRBAEEREROURS 205
MESE &R (HYEEEARLER
TR ETHE - RPBEAE
REROMBFTHERS R EETTH
BEEPRAE - HESEZHM
B BMATRLERALER
B S2 AR B VR TET T3 ©

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to these
financial statements.

Useful lives of software, property management
contracts and customer relationships

The estimate of the useful life of software is based on the
purchase contract indicating that the Group can use the software
in 10 years, or in the case where no validity period is stipulated
in the purchase contract, the historical experience of the actual
useful life of software of a similar nature and functions which is
5 years.

The estimate of the useful lives of property management
contracts is based on the validity period of property management
contracts from 2 years to 8 years or, in the case where no
validity period is stipulated in the property management
contracts, the historical experience of the period of 20 years for
which the Group was engaged to provide similar services. The
estimate of the useful lives of customer relationships is based on
the historical customer attrition rates of the respective acquirees.
The estimates based on historical experience are updated as
necessary if more relevant historical experience is obtained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value assessment of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships
and the recognition of goodwill arising from business
combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified property management
contracts and customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations. These significant
judgements and estimates include the adoption of appropriate
valuation methodologies and the use of key assumptions in
the valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rates, gross profit
margins, discount rates and expected useful lives of the property
management contracts and customer relationships). See notes
16, 17 and 31 for more details.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the provision of property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and professional services.
Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group as a
whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived
solely from its operation in Mainland China. Except for the
Group’s certain property, plant and equipment amounting
to HKD16,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB14,000) (31
December 2021: HKD22,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB18,000)) and certain right-of-use assets amounting to
HKD3,051,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB2,676,000) (31
December 2021: HKD3,975,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB3,250,000)), the Group’s non-current assets are located in
Mainland China.
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4. BEDHER (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FREFXEEFHNESR Information about major customers
BEEE TERARE P ERIZEST There was no revenue from sales to a single customer or a
W— R FREANBAGREE group of customers under common control amounting to 10%
HE2022%F12 31 BIEEERAY or more of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
10% 3 A | Wl BERR A R 2022 while revenue from Times China Holdings Limited (“Times
AR ([BRFE]) REKBAT (5 China”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Times China
BIRRAPEER]) HBRATBMEE Group”) contributed 21.7% to the Group's revenue for the year
SEHZ2021F12A31AEFEWR ended 31 December 2021.
ABI21.7% °
5. WA - EREIEE 5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
BEEEHEA Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) DIHFBAEHR (a) Disaggregated revenue information
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERF BRI Services transferred over time:
Y E IR BRTS Property management services 1,860,337 1,576,671
#t [RGB RS Community value-added services 317,499 437,639
IEEFIRERS Value-added services to
non-property owners 141,795 367,598
BERB Professional services 140,701 145,387
2,460,332 2,527,295
RE—SEXEEEM ! Goods transferred at a point in time:
tL RIS E RS Community value-added services 61,106 109,505
I FIHERS Value-added services to
non-property owners 14,963 29,318
BERS Professional services 69,641 53,629
145,710 192,452
2,606,042 2,719,747
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5. WA - ERIAEE (& 5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(continued)
EFEHWA (&) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) DHRWAER (E (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
EAIAE Contract liabilities
REEERAT R AEAD The Group recognised the following revenue-related
ERBRE : contract liabilities:
12A31H 1H1H
31 December 1 January
20225 20214 20214
2022 2021 2021
ARBT T AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
aR&EE Contract liabilities
=] ~Third parties 72,707 126,448 122,620
— FEE —Related parties 6,333 1,577 9,111
79,040 128,025 131,731
AEEMARA BT ERE YRR Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
48 Eﬁﬂlﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁﬂi&@ﬁ H18 o A receipt in advance from customers when the underlying
B ER2022F & 2021 EHFTR AT services are yet to be provided. The decrease in contract
TBRRANERS IS Y SR liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the decrease
7 & % B U B A5G H B 2 R in short-term advances received from customers in relation
N to the provision of property management services at the

end of the year.

EARAEERAERAR /2022 F4® 191



B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

5. KA - EEAE (&)

EFEHWA (&)

(a)

(b)

BREE (&)
TRETFABRSHNERE

BN AR EH AR A
T

5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
Contract liabilities (continued)
The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

2022%F 20214F

2022 2021

AR¥T T AR¥ETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Y% B AR Property management services 106,702 100,142
BHREE (b) Performance obligations

TXHABEBAAREBENEE
HER

VEEERE

AEBZERAARENSHE
BRIRA - ZBMAEEEASE
BizS BILRARZEZREF
BAEEELEE - MR
BEREZEAMRB30E90HA
B - AEEBREEAT
BEGE THEEZERAE
HFRBRBELOET - KEDY
ST AR TS [E] E HARR o

I EERE

BRREEREREHRELCRS
AR EmiEEIN  HRIBER
BRAETI —FHNEERERA
R4t - BN S AR A RE L
BRBITHENEE - BZE
HERIBERFBBONTES
R AP R IR % B B X
fi o

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group's performance to date
on a monthly or quarterly basis and payment is generally
due within 30 to 90 days from the billing date. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not disclosing
the remaining performance obligations for these types
of contracts. The majority of the property management
services do not have a fixed term.

Community value-added services

The community value-added services except for brokerage
services provided to property owners and residents and
sale of goods are rendered in a short period of time which
is generally less than a year and there was no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of the respective
periods. The payment for such community value-added
services is generally due when the services are rendered to
the customer.
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BEEEHBA (&)
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5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (Continued)
Community value-added services (Continued)

Brokerage commission for parking space and second-hand
house is recognised at a point in time when a buyer/lessee
and a seller/lessor execute a legally binding agreement and
the performance obligations are satisfied. The payment
is generally due when the services are rendered to the
customer.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. The payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from delivery.

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include construction site services, sales assistance services,
pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services and brokerage services provided to non-property
owners. The term of the contracts for construction site
services and sales assistance services to non-property
owners is generally set to expire when the counterparties
notify the Group that the services are no longer required.
Pre-delivery cleaning services, construction and installation
services are rendered in a short period of time and there
were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of
the respective periods. As the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's
performance, thus the revenue is recognised over time
when the performance obligations are satisfied.

For brokerage services, the Group provides sales and rental
assistance services to property developers. Brokerage
commission for house agency services is recognised at
a point in time when a buyer/lessee and a seller/lessor
execute a legally binding agreement and the performance
obligations are satisfied.

The payment for value-added services to non-property

owners is generally due when the services are rendered to
the customer.
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5. WA - ERIEE (&)

BEFEEHBA (&)

(b) EWEE (&)

BXIRE

HEMARERLEMRE M
HERAREERNEERE
RimE PR ERTER o R
BENARNE30E90 HAZIH
S e

RHUEMFERBHOBARLRLE
HIRGES®ER - B—RERH
HFBRAAEETBEZRS
- R FEXRBOAHIR
BIERIE - NFBERRATP
PR AR A s BB ST A o

5. REVENUE, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Professional services

Revenue from sales commission, and the sale of elevators
and elevator parts is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the end customer.
The payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery.

Revenue from the provision of other professional services
is recognised when the services are rendered and the
terms of the contracts for other professional services are
generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
the Group that the services are no longer required. The
payment is generally due when the services are rendered
to the customer.
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

ARETR AREETFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

RITHBUA Bank interest income 1,848 3,837
HENARREBEFELFA Gain on disposal of financial assets at

BamerEEN ks fair value through profit or loss 3,069 5,328

eGSR Government grants 4,305 18,707

EERBE Tax incentives and exemption on

BER#R value-added tax 12,194 7,654

ROMHRE R A A EERE Fair value gain on put option 3,801 =

HAh Others 2,964 2,582

28,181 38,108

AEEESHBAMBEZERER
e - MEEZFMDBENRE
PRAGIF R IAF IR -

The government grants obtained by the Group were primarily
employment subsidies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these grants.
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7. BRBiAT (B518)  FHE 7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBEBRTB AT (E518),/ FE T &M The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
B (GEA) LA S TEBFTIER (crediting):
ftaE 2022 20214
Notes 2022 2021
ARBET T AREETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B R AR TG B A * Cost of services provided* 1,954,777 1,863,763
BEHETFTERKA Cost of inventories sold 95,371 113,924
M BERZETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14 18,557 17,718
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 5,111 6,816
HEEmp & ESE Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 52,121 41,239
(e %N Research and development costs:
ERFEXD Current year expenditure 27,595 4,739
B SR S Y+ Deferred expenditure amortised** 4,102 2,407
1% 8RR 357 B Auditor’s remuneration 2,931 2,699
BERAMMS (ESNITHAAE Employee benefit expense
B H HER SN (BRE5E9)) - (excluding directors’ and chief
executive’'s remuneration (note 9)):
TERES Wages and salaries 918,264 804,561
RIREET B R Pension scheme contributions*** 109,744 87,005
AGHE S E AR 82B)st 81 Equity-settled share award
52 scheme expense 1,793 3,921
o EMEREEEAN LS Less: Amount capitalised in
other intangible assets - (20,669)
1,029,801 874,818
PR E > ** Impairment of goodwill**** 16 80,770 =
HbmE B ERE *** Impairment of other intangible assets**** 17 776 =
eRREREECHRY Net impairment losses recognised
VERIEN i=be st on financial and contract assets
— FEWE Z IR — Trade receivables 21 358,345 10,832
—&REE — Contract assets 22 7,858 (389)
—JENRIE - Rk — Prepayments, deposits and
H b JE W R IE other receivables 23 6,023 =
372,226 10,443
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7.

BRBiA (/) FE 7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Bt

(&)

1=
REBBRBAT (E18),/ FE LN The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
B (GFA) AT &IE®RTEDR : (crediting): (continued)
(&)
ftaE 20224 20214F
Note 2022 2021
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HERX Rental expense
— WHME — Short-term leases 15(c) 17,641 15,298
—KEEEEHE — Leases of low-value assets 15(c) 670 837
18,311 16,135

Compensation paid for contract
EEEBAHBEMHALLKRILE  termination for business
TS24 RO B 8+ combination****

- 30,000

* FRDREBERA (BERESE * Cost of services provided for the year included an aggregate

AL - W% BERBHETE -
HtwEFEESHELHERS) &
s AR® 859,533,000t (2021
F: AR¥716,919,0007T) ° %
SHELBET ENEENSERX

amount of RMB859,533,000 (2021: RMB716,919,000) which
comprised employee benefit expense, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of other intangible assets and
rental expense. This amount was also included in the respective
expense items disclosed above.

EE
o A THEXRNERN D BRI **  Deferred expenditure amortised recognised in the administrative
HOIRE A B M S B Y o expenses was also included in the amortisation of other intangible
assets.
wxx PGS A EEESE *** There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by
FRALRBIER A HERKE o the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
*kkk T EETEE I A AR [ H ***% These items are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
AR statement of profit or loss.
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8. RMEMAL 8. FINANCE COSTS
202245 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEaENFERS Interest expense on lease liabilities 968 1,252
Interest expense arising from
IWABHEANFERX revenue contracts 108 2,096
1,076 3,348
9. EERITHAIAHH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION
RELEDRR - FERAGHE Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
383(1)(a) * (b) * () R(MIER AR (I disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
BEEENEER) BOFE2HBIFED (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
FREENMITHRAEEFOT of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
we Fee 900 900
E AT Other emoluments:
e ERREDEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,314 4,655
EBURR RS Performance-related bonuses 2,963 3,754
LARR # 45 B 00 AR 10 B2 =1 215 2 Equity-settled share
award scheme expense 1,616 1,616
RIREET BN Pension scheme contributions 324 320
9,217 10,345
a&t Total 10,117 11,245
ETESEREBARANKRG REE Certain directors were granted share awards, in respect of their
IR FEEMAEE R RBSER services to the Group, under the share award scheme of the
TR &R - HiE— 2 FEHNY Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the
BHmERMF29 - ERBEBHRNIE financial statements. The fair value of such shares, which has been
mRERNZEROHAABER recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
REHHETE  MAFEFBRE was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
el €Mt A Ll EE RITHAH the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
SR o directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.
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9. BEENTHHABMNEM 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

(%) REMUNERATION (continued)
() BIUKHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
BUERTESNFERS T The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
K during the year were as follows:
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥TT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBALAE Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brain 300 300
HIKEL Dr. Wong Kong Tin 300 300
B Dr. Chu Xiaoping 300 300
9200 900
FRLEBENBLIFRITES There were no other emoluments payable to the
ROEL MO (20214 - 4&) o independent non-executive directors during the year (2021:
Nil).
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2022912 H31H 31 December 2022

9. EERTHARNEFM 9.

(%)
(b) EERTHAR

il

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Directors and the chief executive

20224 2022
e 2E BN URELEN Bk
RENEF HBEEE RORBEX HE FHes
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share award scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITES MR 0 Executive director and
chief executive:
Tzt Ms. Wang Meng 2,466 2,087 404 81 5,038
HWIES: Executive directors:
HERt Ms. Xie Rao 583 279 404 81 1,347
BB E Mr. Yao Xusheng 632 297 404 81 1,414
Bt Ms. Zhou Rui 633 300 404 81 1,418
1,848 876 1,212 243 4,179
FHTES Non-executive directors:
REEE Mr. Bai Xihong - - - - -
FRES Mr. Li Qiang - - - - -
4,314 2,963 1,616 324 9,217
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9. BEENTHHABMNEM 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

(#8) REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) EERTHAR (&) (b) Directors and the chief executive (continued)
20214 2021
E D= B UARESEER BRe
REMEF HERE RHEBHS BRI FblaE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share award scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

ARBTT AREBTT ARETE AREBTT ARBTR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HITEENMITHAAE, - Executive director and
chief executive:

THat Ms. Wang Meng 2,647 2,677 404 80 5,808
WITES Executive directors:
HELL Ms. Xie Rao 623 342 404 80 1,449
1219)E5a it Mr. Yao Xusheng 724 337 404 80 1,545
Azt Ms. Zhou Rui 661 398 404 80 1,543
2,008 1,077 1,212 240 4,537
FMITES : Non-executive directors:
B EE Mr. Bai Xihong = = = = =
Fogl i Mr. Li Qiang = = = = =
4,655 3,754 1,616 320 10,345
FRABEESENITRAINE There was no arrangement under which a director
3k [R] = AR B A fA] 3 BN A9 &2 or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
(20214 : £E) o remuneration during the year (2021: Nil).
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10. EEREFHMES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
SR hEBEaTHWEBEBRE — The five highest paid employees during the year included the
ZITHAEE (20215F « —RITHAE chief executive (2021: the chief executive), details of whose
) HEMFBEIR EXWF remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
9o RN HHAME (20214 : 1 remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2021: four)
Z)EEyMES GERARESH highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
THRARE) BF BB T - executive of the Company are as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR®ET T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

e EAREYEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,507 4,509
B RS Performance-related bonuses 2,495 1,769
VAR HE 45 B 0 AR 1 22BN 7 2 Equity-settled share award expense 808 808

RS ET B Pension scheme contributions 46 61

A&t Total 6,856 7,147
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10. 2B aFMES (& 10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(continued)
MR A THENIFES RIFET The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
BRBEN =T EE AT ¢ paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

EE A
Number of employees

20224 20214F

2022 2021

1,500,001 £ 2,000,000/8 7T HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 4 3

2,000,001 7c 22,500,000 7T HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 - 1
4 4
MEAEANEBRREENRER =4 Share awards were granted to three (2021: three) non-director
(20214 : =) IEENIETHE and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
HNEeTMEERERMHIEE » £ his services to the Group, further details of which are included
E-SHBHRUMBERERMF292 in the disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements.
WEFR - ZERD 2 AREBE(ED The fair value of such shares, which has been recognised in
NEEEBEIANIERREDR) NZH B the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
HET  MERAFEZHERR determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
2 N LM EESE RIETTH in the financial statements for the current year is included in
BHESHNEES 2 HNIEES - the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees’ remuneration disclosures.
REALBEEE  HESSHH During the year and in prior years, no highest paid employees
BEMEXRENETMEFE - A waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and no
AEBVTERNZESAEEAES remuneration was paid by the Group to these members of senior
fHER B E A E N A S N AR & management personnel as an inducement to join or upon joining
BEa LR BB EE o the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11. A8 11. INCOME TAX

AREBARASENKE QB FIER
REMENBBRZEERELS S
FIENMNBERERBEESMNAMG
B RERNESEHEN BB RE
EMRARER  RHASHERRE
BHEBAREEEMKINAEERN
MEREBAMNTORER - A%
BREBEBAEMRESH  BER
FEYENEEEE TR
R

AN B A P B A R B A
BN RE IR 25% AP B EHE
M(TLEMBH ) HEHT - B
2022 F 20214 - AEERFHEA
HELNETHBRARZEZ15%%K
20% KB B EEHBE -

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of
the Group which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
BVI are not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") rate of 25% for
the reporting period. Certain subsidiaries of the Group operating
in Mainland China enjoyed a preferential CIT rate of 15% or
20% during 2022 and 2021.

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR®T T ARBET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

BVERFTS Current income tax 52,558 110,326
EEFTER (MI3E19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (101,309) (670)
FRFIE (ER), HEEE Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (48,751) 109,656
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11.

12.

Frig% (&)

BARARIREXRZHWE R R EM
FrERAESER AT EAENE
A& AT (B5E),/ FIE& R EM
Y BERERRERFENRIERX
RSBERINT -

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

2022% 20214
2022 2021
ARET T % ARETTT %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
BRAT(BE),/FE  (Loss)/profit before tax (248,346) 443,793
BEEMERFEMHE  Tax at the statutory tax rate (62,087) 25.0 110,948 25.0
5 P B EEYERZE Lower tax rates enacted
by local authorities (2,761) 1.1 (10,471) (2.4)
AEREIHBES Tax incentives on eligible expenses (2,020) 0.8 (1,498) (0.3)
DMEBE A FBE Share of profits and losses of associates 971 (0.4) (1,371) (0.3)
LIk i ba Expenses not deductible for tax 19,609 (7.9) 6,727 1.5
RERHTHIEERE Tax losses not recognised 429 (0.2) 371 0.1
HEIFfTE A AR AL Taxes on undistributed profits of
FMBEzHE the subsidiaries in the PRC 1,083 (0.4) 4,950 1.1
BE TR HIIELTIE Effect on opening deferred tax of
S decrease in rate (3,975) 1.6 = =
BREBERFEEEH Tax (credit)/charge at the Group's
Bm(Er) BiE effective rate (48,751) 19.6 109,656 247

Db B E A RIHIE AR 133,000
7T (20214 + AR¥1,126,0007T)
BRGeEERZ [ DaBE R RE
e

iz 5

BEeEBRMNEZE2022F12A
3STHLEFEMNARBRESR T E
PR AREE2 25 (2021F : AR
4.79%)  BHEARY21,685,0007T
(20214 : AR#46,327,0007T) °

FEEBRAMBEBAFARABRR
REREBEAFRE LHET A E

=

i

\r

12.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB133,000 (2021: RMB1,126,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors recommended a final dividend of
RMB2.2 cents per ordinary share (2021: RMB4.7 cents) totalling
RMB21,685,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB46,327,000).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BRBBEERERAR /2022 8K 205



B 7% ok MY

2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

13. B QR EEERGE AE
(E=T0 EETE)/E”ﬂ

BREAN (BB BAINCER
BEEARETEAESEAEARGSE
B(ER)/ MBAREED#T
TRBR(TEIEERR) B INEF
¥ 80982,323,0000% (2021 4 :
982,323,000/%) 5+& -

FREALEE (BR)/ BNDR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 982,323,000 (2021: 982,323,000) in issue
excluding treasury shares during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is

ATNEEETE - based on:
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
&7 Earnings
BAREBRERSEEAEMN (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary
(BB, FB(ARETT) equity holders of the parent (RMB’000) (213,627) 308,000
x5 Shares
FADETE B INE T8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(A& shares in issue during the year
(in thousand) 982,323 982,323
Bk (&18) &B8F (Loss)/earnings per share
EXREE (FRARED) Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) (22) 31

B T BBt B {0 22D 5t 81 15 B A9 Bk
DEERT  SREE(BR) &

MEBEMRD HE - SRS
REFAABANBROEFRAERE

A (B8R, BNAERREEURE -
R ESREE (BB BNK2
& NaEE o

Because the diluted (loss)/earnings per share amount is
decreased/increased when taking shares held for the share
award scheme into account, the shares held for the share award
scheme had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings
per share for the year and were ignored in the calculation of
diluted (loss)/earnings per share.
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14. Y% - BMERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BF HENELE nE BARE ERIR &t
Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
Building improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total

AR®TR  ARBTR  AR®Tn  ARETR AR®TR  AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2022F12A31R 31 December 2022
R202261818 : At 1 January 2022:

kA Cost 42,660 27,592 6,750 60,873 3,861 141,736

2ithE Accumulated depreciation (2,024) (18,903) (1,605) (23,988) - (46,520)

REFE Net carrying amount 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
®202%1818 At 1 January 2022, net of

EARENE accumulated depreciation 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
E Additions - 5,427 8,722 2,274 65 16,488
WE—MHBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31)

(W#31) - - - 176 - 176
hE Disposals - - (60) (656) - (716)
8% Transfer - 65 - 3,861 (3,926) -
FREHRNE Depreciation provided during the year (2,166) (7,016) (1,891) (7,484) - (18,557)
M2022F12A318 © At 31 December 2022, net of

EMBRZNE accumulated depreciation 38,470 7,165 11,916 35,056 - 92,607
M2022%12A318 © At 31 December 2022:

A Cost 42,660 33,083 15,056 65,832 - 156,631
25thE Accumulated depreciation (4,190) (25,918) (3,140 (30,776) - (64,024)
REFE Net carrying amount 38,470 7,165 11,916 35,056 - 92,607

BARMEERERAR /2022 £k 207



B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 H31H 31 December 2022

14. 1% - WERZME (E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BF BEWEEEL e WRRE fERTRE At
Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
Building  improvements vehicles equipment in progress Total
AREBTT  ARETT ARETT AR®Tn  ARETR  ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20215128318 31 December 2021
R2021F1 /18 : At 1 January 2021:
B Cost = 22,362 4,531 48,510 6,867 82,270
ZithE Accumulated depreciation = (11,548) (1,09) (17,695) = (30,339)
REFE Net carrying amount - 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
R202151 718 - At 1 January 2021, net of =
EMBRZHHE accumulated depreciation 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
AE Additions = 4179 2,592 8,765 3,936 19,472
WENB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries 43,047 1,051 769 1473 = 46,340
e Disposals (387) = (214) (125) (4,083) (4.809)
=1 Transfer = = = 2,859 (2,859) =
FRERITE Depreciation provided during the year (2,024) (7,355) (1,437) (6,902) = (17,118)
2021128318+ At 31 December 2021, net of
ENBEHTE accumulated depreciation 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
M2021512F318 © At 31 December 2021:
AR Cost 42,660 27,592 6,750 60,873 3,861 141,736
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (2,024) (18,903) (1,605) (23,988) = (46,520)
REFE Net carrying amount 40,636 8,689 5,145 36,885 3,861 95,216
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15. HE 15. LEASES

AEEEREEA The Group as a lessee
AEEERARHEXBEENET - The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
AERBARBELEBENHEES motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
B BFHEHELHBBER2E10 Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 10
F-MABEZHHBERIZLF - years, while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between
MARBo BT RTHERBI12ME 3 and 4 years. Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12
AR/ S ERIZEHEERE months or less and/or is individually of low value.
(@) EREEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FRNREEGCAEEE KRB The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
BERESHHOT and the movements during the year are as follows:
g pai] &t
Motor
Buildings vehicles Total
AR®TF T AR®TT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7K2021F 1818 At 1 January 2021 10,911 710 11,621
nE Additions 7,995 3,111 11,106
WeEEHA Depreciation charge (6,019) (797) (6,816)
2021412 A31 B &P At 31 December 2021 and
202291 HA1H at 1 January 2022 12,887 3,024 15,911
NE Additions 1,957 - 1,957
meEBH Depreciation charge (4,078) (1,033) (5,111)
R oEAMAEMEE  Derecognition of right-of-use
MR IR EAEEE assets for a sublease classified
as a finance lease (1,025) - (1,025)
78 & 51 A e B 9 Revision of a lease term arising
BEymELMNHEBER from a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease (1,233) - (1,233)
K2022912 A31H At 31 December 2022 8,508 1,991 10,499
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2022412 H31H 31 December 2022

15. HE (&)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (continued)

AEBERAEBA (E) The Group as a lessee (continued)
by HEEARE (b) Lease liabilities
FAHEBBECEARERE The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
W during the year are as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARETRT AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1ATRZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 22,327 22,350
MEE New leases 1,957 11,106
FAE R S IEIE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 1,549 2,095
KA HBEARCovid-19 Covid-19-related rent concessions
EREE S E R from lessors - (253)
BN Payments (10,221) (12,971)
FE 5 AT E B Y Revision of a lease term arising from a
SEymEENEBRER change in the non-cancellable period
of a lease (1,403) =
R12A31BZEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 14,209 22,327
DITA Analysed into:
mENER D Current portion 6,602 8,790
FERENEL 7 Non-current portion 7,607 13,537

HEAGZIHELIMHER
WIS RAR M EE37 ©

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements.
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15 *ﬂ% (n\ﬁ)
rEBEEREAHEA (B)

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(0 MREZTBEIANEEMERIE () The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
N leases are as follows:
20225 20214
2022 2021
AR®T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RE B AERNHEEBRER  Interest expense on lease liabilities

MEFX recognised in finance costs 968 1,252
FAE MU A R 25 T RR Y Interest expense on lease liabilities
HEBENFERX recognised in other income and gains 581 843
TREEENITEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 5,111 6,816
B EBHEERENRAY Expense relating to short-term leases 17,641 15,298
EREBESEMSABNMX  Expense relating to leases of
low-value assets 670 837
B R R FIB AR FE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 24,971 25,046
(dy MEZREMDEBFEN (d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c)
TEE M FE32(0) ° to the financial statements.
AEEERBEHEA The Group as a lessor

AEBRERENELHFERET
ME(BEMEBETEEEDNZE) B
ZHEAEEI10F - HEKZIBEE
KPP ERESWRERITH
SETTEHHE LA - 12022F12
A31H AEEERKREFEL
AR#5,485,0007T (202146 : AR
#7,424,0007T) - WE FREEE Y
A A P B B FE Uk AR & A5 SRR
b ANR#1,939,0007T °

The Group sub-leases certain properties consisting of two
commercial properties in the PRC under finance lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of six to ten
years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. The Group
had a net investment in subleases amounting to RMB5,485,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB7,424,000). The changes
of net investment were a result of a decrease of RMB1,939,000
due to the receipt of lease payment receivables during the year.
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15. HE (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
AEEERAHBA (E) The Group as a lessor (continued)
M2022% 128318 ZEERKNR At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
BRI AR 3% B2 H AR P 5T A2 A9 T A] R receivable of the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
EHEEYARITIREEN RN operating leases with its tenants and the reconciliation between
RAFRAENRNEHEREFHE the undiscounted lease payments to the net investment in the
HIEERINT - lease are as follows:
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR®T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FUR Within one year 1,640 3,549
—FREMFEA After one year but within two years 1,703 1,303
MERE=ZFA After two years but within three years 1,768 1,356
=FREMNFA After three years but within four years 1,315 1,411
WEREBRFA After four years but within five years - 1,113
6,426 8,732
HiErE WA Future finance income (941) (1,308)
HEREFE Net investment in the lease 5,485 7,424
16. BE 16. GOODWILL
2022 2021
2022 2021
ARETT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
P11 ATBZERARREE Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 562,909 283,957
WeBE R BB~ | (FtsE31) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) 3,046 278,952
FRRE Impairment during the year (80,770) =
12 A31 B Z KA KREREFE Cost and net carrying amount
at 31 December 485,185 562,909
M®12H318 At 31 December:
B Cost 565,955 562,909
2&FHRE Accumulated impairment (80,770) =
AR SHE Net carrying amount 485,185 562,909
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16. & (&)

R E R
$E BEBRBA IS M A E W

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business combinations

DEEAT+—E(2021F + +1&)
ReETBEU ([REEEEMN]) N
ETREAR - BILTARNES
EXBEuNABKeEERALEBE
SR AmMEE 15@2022&12

was allocated to the following eleven (2021: ten) cash-
generating units ("CGUs"”) for impairment testing. The
recoverable amount of CGU of Foshan Hetai was determined
at fair value less costs of disposal and categorized within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022, which
A3BREBBRAARBEESRNE was measured based on subsequent quoted consideration by
=% DRBEUE= EEZKE’N& an independent third-party buyer. Except for CGU of Foshan
BARMAREETSHE - BHELTE Hetai, the recoverable amounts of the other CGUs have been
MRS ELEBEMI  HMESE determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
’iﬁuﬁﬁTW@ﬁ&ﬁEﬁFﬁ%ﬁé\ﬁ projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
BEGEMNTFHVBBEENER S period prepared by management.
REBAGEERAEEET

72022F12A31H As at 31 December 2022

Rz FRAER/

fREE (REB) = RE

Annual

revenue

Carrying growth/
amount of (recession) Discount
ReELEN  CGU TEXH Principal business goodwill rate rate

AR¥T R
RMB'000
ENEE Guangzhou Wanning ~ ¥%EE Property management 12,821 (17.7%)-0% 21.87%
BILTE% Foshan Hetai MEER Property management 292 REAN/A REAN/A
BEMESR Qingyuan Rongtai MEEE Property management 2,543 0% 20.27%
BINRER Guangzhou Dongkang ~ ¥)% &2 Property management 19,068 3% 19.63%
BB Guangzhou Haoging ~ ¥%EE Property management 12,662 (11.4%)-0% 20.54%
BILBx Heshan Jianmei WEER Property management 3,046 0% 19.98%
RN BB Xuzhou Mengmu L ELg: Property management 199,987 13.1% 19.42%
B S E Chengdu Holytech MEERE Property management 234,766 5.0%-5.3% 18.49%
B R Zhuhai Yuanxing by ESBL Property management - (57.8%)-(28.0%) 24.27%
BRI Joan Flevator ERTEK Elevator installation and

K maintenance = (48.0%)-0% 21.74%
& 1238k Guangzhou Yaocheng  ¥%EE Property management - (16.1%)-0% 15.48%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. B & (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)

AERERNR (&)

7H2021%12A31H

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

BEz  FRAER/

RHEE (ZR) X% nRE
Annual
revenue
Carrying growth/
amount of (recession) Discount
ReEEBM  CcU TEEK Principal business goodwill rate rate
AREFT
RMB'000
ENEE Guangzhou Wanning ~ ¥%EE Property management 22,462 (9.0%)-0% 18.77%
LT ES Foshan Hetai MEER Property management 3,607 10.0% 16.32%
HEm R Zhuhai Yuanxing WEEIR Property management 2,429 (20.0%) 16.37%
BLEH Joan Elevator ERTERK Elevator installation and
ik maintenance 18,732 (36.6%)-0% 22.50%
BEMESR Qingyuan Rongtai MEER Property management 2,543 0% 18.06%
BINRER Guangzhou Dongkang ~ #1¥E1E Property management 19,068 0%-6.5% 18.39%
BN Guangzhou Haoging ~ #¥EE Property management 12,662 (9.8%)-0% 18.82%
=3 Guangzhou Yaocheng ~ #1¥E1E Property management 2,467 (90.0%)-0% 19.08%
RN B Xuzhou Mengmu MEER Property management 199,987 14.7% 18.00%
R GE Chengdu Holytech MEEE Property management 278,952 45% 16.75%

HE FuR2022F12A8318 K
2021F 12 A31 HIR S EEBNMIE
FAEEREFERARK EHEEARE
TEEREARAMEISEMNRS
EXBURSREMKENSHEE
THERJRWOT -

FRE-FAFTRXBBATTER
R WRRERBECABNEE
R o

FRAER (FR) E — RFHhH
HRAEFENRSELEUMNTE
AW R (FR) XTI ARGTE
EREEMNERERZ— -

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
the above mentioned CGUs for 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021. The following describes each key assumption
on which management had based its cash flow projections
of the respective CGUs to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth/(recession) rate — The predicted revenue
growth/(recession) rate of CGUs for the five years subsequent
to the date of assessment is one of the assumptions used in the
value-in-use calculations.
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BERENR (&

RIEA E WS A RE292,000TH
HBLUTATNREELBEMNZBE
HRREE B AKRK3,315,0007T
Hepa RSB R AR BERE
EXRAMETE - BRIFEATRESEA
R#247,587,000 cNEMEBE -
BLEH EMNBBEKHEEZ
AEMReELESENBRRERIE
AHARMET7,455,0007T - IR&
EEEUNlE S5 EN BB
VihEMKEREENHNEREER
HEMmMET - ARMEHERFEUK
B EMSBHES ZERGE
EEMNHBAEREERRBE SR
Lo FERRSEABMUMTESE
RIEMEAERD - At - A&
ERTFREIAREGESEARE
80,770,0007T (20214 : #&)

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

An impairment loss of RMB3,315,000 based on the recoverable
amount of RMB292,000 was recognised on goodwill in relation
to the CGU of Foshan Hetai, of which recoverable amount has
been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal. An
impairment loss in aggregate of RMB77,455,000 based on the
recoverable amount of RMB247,587,000 was recognised on
goodwill in relation to the CGUs of Guangzhou Wanning, Joan
Elevator, Guangzhou Yaocheng and Chengdu Holytech. The
recoverable amount of these CGUs has been determined based
on a value in use calculation assessed by the independent valuer
or the management. Due to the intense market competition and
cyclical fluctuations in the real estate market, revenue growth
rates for these CGUs decreased as compared to the budget,
which resulted in a corresponding decrease in the expected
future cash flows of the CGU. As a result, the Group recognised
an impairment loss in aggregate of RMB80,770,000 during the
year (2021: Nil).
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16. B& (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)

EmERENR (E) Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

AEEEEECHHERAENRSE Management of the Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis on

TEBRMDHN - TREFBINFAERME the impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth

EMmBERFIENBERTIER the hypothetical changes to discount rate or annual revenue

EHAR2022F12 A31 BEEKREIE growth rate that would, in isolation (with all other variables

WESELESMNITKESERS remained constant), have caused the recoverable amount of

REREENTRENRFRAER CGUs of which goodwill was not impaired to be equal to their

EH)RREE) - carrying amount as at 31 December 2022:

FWAEE
(REB)RRD
& R R i
Decrease/
increase in
annual
revenue
growth/
(recession) Increase in

REEEEN CGU rate  discount rate

BEM R Qingyuan Rongtai* N EAN/A AN iEFAN/A

M BB * Guangzhou Dongkang** 2.09% 1.17%

& N 5 B * Guangzhou Haoging* NEAN/A S EFRN/A

BSILERSE Heshan Jianmei* AN iEFAN/A TEAN/A

RN BR B x Xuzhou Mengmu** 0.97% 0.50%

* FREBFENEZERENENE @ Any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions of the
BRIt TS EUREAERAR value-in-use calculation would not cause the carrying amount to
SELEBARAIKE £ exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

**  JA20229F12A318 - A EIKE **  Details of the headroom measured by excess of the recoverable
FHREZEReEFEUREEN amount over the carrying amount of these CGUs as at 31
HATERFEFHBHIAT ¢ December 2022 are set out as follows:

20224

2022

AR® TR

RMB’000

BN R R Guangzhou Dongkang 2,416
RN B B Xuzhou Mengmu 15,466
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17. BB EE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NEEERRE
G REFBE BRAE BRRE 34 &t
Property
management
contracts and
customer Development Contract
Software  relationships costs costs Licences Total
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETr AR%Tn AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20225124318 31 December 2022
R202261A818 : At 1 January 2022:

KA Cost 44,441 221,271 46,254 1,422 6,830 320,218

ZiHEH Accumulated amortisation (19,464) (45,102) - (925) (1,034) (66,525)

REFE Net carrying amount 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 5,796 253,693
R202F18182 Cost at 1 January 2022, net of

KA - BB RS accumulated amortisation

B 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 5,796 253,693
e Additions 2,223 - 17,064 - - 19,287
WE—MHBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31)

(F3E31) - 1,238 - - - 1,238
44 Transfer 49,798 - (49,798) - - -
FREREH Amortisation provided during the year (13,508) (37,505) - (425) (683) (52,121)
FARE Impairment during the year - (776) - - - (776)
R2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 63,490 139,126 13,520 72 5113 221,321
R2022%12A318:  At31 December 2022:

KA Cost 96,462 222,509 13,520 1,422 6,830 340,743

S HERAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (32,972) (83,383) - (1,350) (1,717) (119,422)

REFE Net carrying amount 63,490 139,126 13,520 72 5113 221,321
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17. Rt ELEE ()

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

MEEELR
g REPEZ RN BREA R aEf
Property
management
contracts and
customer  Development Contract
Software  relationships costs costs Licences Total
ARBTT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20215124318 31 December 2021
20211818+ At 1 January 2021:
A Cost 37,290 92,097 5,954 1,422 6,830 143,593
REtEH Accumulated amortisation (11,052) (13,567) - (316) (351) (25,286)
FHFE Net carrying amount 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
202118182 Costat 1 January 2021, net of
A BHIBRES  accumulated amortisation
B 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
RE Additions 1,857 - 20,580 - - 22,437
RE - RPRE Additions - internal development - - 22,350 = = 22,350
WERB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries 2,664 129,174 = = = 131,838
2% Transfer 2,630 - (2,630) = = =
FRFHREH Amortisation provided during the year (8,412) (31,535) = (609) (683) (41,239)
2021512318 At 31 December 2021 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 57% 253,693
720216128318 ¢ At 31 December 2021:
A Cost 44,441 221,271 46,254 1,422 6,830 320,218
RETEH Accumulated amortisation (19,464) (45,102) - (925) (1,034) (66,525)
BREFE Net carrying amount 24,977 176,169 46,254 497 5,796 253,693
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17.

18.

HibBLEE (&

BH1E2022F12A318HILEE » 5t
MESEBENRTFPBEIREE
BEAR776,0007T (20214 -
/) HEENBRARSEEEN
B - ZRIRGEELFHRER
FHE LRSS ERZD - B ER
BEBRAZ  ARAEEESH
RESREBANGTEFEREETG
ZEBEEMARBSEAEAAR
#402,0007T - WHEBREEEDLR
BB ARKT776,0007T » B
WIRECELBNZEREBENMAR
BERAE—THBEERIE6 -

RBERNTRRE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment of
RMB776,000 (2021: Nil) were provided in respect of property
management contracts and customer relationships that were
related to CGU of Guangzhou Yaocheng. By taking into account
the fact that these assets would not be economically viable for
their remaining life and there was no identified alternative usage
for them, the directors of the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of these assets in aggregate was RMB402,000 based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections and
impairment provision of RMB776,000 were made on their
carrying values. Further details of key assumptions used in the
calculation of value in use for CGU of Guangzhou Yaocheng are
disclosed in note 16.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR®ET T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

EhEEFE Share of net assets 68,947 72,522

AREBHERHEERBFBOT ¢

Particulars of the Group’s material associate are as follows:

AEEEIGARE
18 R R 2t B BEADL FEEWR

Percentage of

ownership

Place of interest
registration attributable Principal
Name and business  to the Group activity
BMmRERRENEERRNHBR AR (EMNEED HE R E A, 30 W&
Guangzhou Times Rongxin Micro-credit Co., Ltd. PRC/ Money
(“Guangzhou Rongxin”) Mainland China 30 lending

BEMNBERANEENBRSER
B EFRERS - WERAEDA
N K

Guangzhou Rongxin is a strategic partner of the Group engaged
in money lending and is accounted for using the equity method.
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18. REEE RN AIMVIRE (&) 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

TERHABRMNBENYHERR
- ZFEHERSAHBER ZEM
ZRFELAR YD BEAVHR
REOFRHEEH R -

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Guangzhou Rongxin adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

20224 20214
2022 2021
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B EE Current assets 219,128 263,677
ERBEE Non-current assets 67 93
UEDN=Ni Current liabilities (2,526) (34,150)
BERE Net assets 216,669 229,620
HARE BRI E N AR Reconciliation to the Group's
interest in the associate:
REE LB R Proportion of the Group’s ownership 30% 30%
REBELEEAREEFE Group's share of net
assets of the associate 65,001 68,886
HERMEE Carrying amount of the investment 65,001 68,886
WA Revenue 2,081 31,180
FA(EE)/ FER2E (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
(&) W ALB5E (loss)/income for the year (12,950) 15,133

RGN (8 B I T B K 7R 5= B B
LRANELTBER

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBPREE QAR EMKREAE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the associates 3,946 3,636

HE2022FE K2021FE12 83181k
FE SEENETTEANAEE
B N AR EEIT TEKX o

The share of the losses of the Group's associates that are not
individually material for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 were not material.
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19.

ELEBHEERARS

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEHBEEE Deferred tax assets
RMERAMBELERIBEEEZ SN The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting
s period are as follows:
SEALAE Eitef
REEEN SHEE L RAR
REFE  AYBAR AEEERE  REEMA  THEREX LGt HEEE At
Unrealised  Provision for Accrued
profit  impairment  Unrealised liabilities and
arising from ~ losses on revenue future
Tax  intra-group financial  receivedin  deductible ~ Government Lease
losses ~ transactions assets advance expenses grants liabilities Total
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTr AR%TR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000
R20NF1R18 At 1 January 2021 612 - 3,854 3,860 12,618 53 5,588 26,585
WEHERE Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 717 = = = = 717
WA/ (RE)BED  Deferred tax credited/
&L (charged) to profit or
loss during the year % 291 1,839 (3,860) (1,731) (30) (6) (m)
R2NE12A31BR At 31 December 2021 and
022F1R1A 1 January 2022 708 2,921 6,410 = 10,887 23 5,582 26,531
ERFA/(BE)BES  Deferred tax credited/
i (charged) to profit or loss
during the year 5113 (1,527) 91,391 - (2,294) 23) (2,030) 90,630
R2022E12 83184 Gross deferred tax assets
BREWEEELS at 31 December 2022 5,821 1,39 97,801 - 8,593 - 3552 117,161
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19. EXEBRBEENERE 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(#&) (continued)
ELEHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities
RBEHANETEHIEAEE S The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting
i period are as follows:
e 1 PN FEKEAR
EREEER SIBMAR FABAE
HERETE BEAZ 2HE CHI
Fair value Taxes on
Right-of-use adjustment undistributed
assets and arising from profits of the
net investment acquisitions subsidiaries
in the lease of subsidiaries in the PRC Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
#2021%1 718 At 1 January 2021 5,588 19,452 3,000 28,040
WA Acquisitions of subsidiaries = 22,740 = 22,740
ER(GEA)/HBE  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to (6)
BRNETHE profit or loss during the year (6,385) 4,950 (1,441)
$2021412A318% At 31 December 2021
202F1818 and 1 January 2022 5,582 35,807 7,950 49,339
WA ER R Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) =
(Mt31) 331 - 331
FREABED Deferred tax credited to
BRHE profit or loss during the year (2,030) (5,757) (2,892) (10,679)
#2022 12 43184 Gross deferred tax liabilities
BIHAR GER at 31 December 2022 3,552 30,381 5,058 38,991
HEVNEHME - & TERERIEE For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
ERBRERUBARAKERE - T liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
KAASERMBREENMNEH The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
RIETRIBASER AT - Group for financial reporting purposes:
2022 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
RS B TSR R R R Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
EREREEETE consolidated statement of financial position 113,609 20,949
RS B TSR R R EER A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
BN EEETE consolidated statement of financial position 35,439 43,757
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19.

?(E;?)iﬁlﬁ‘ﬁ%&ﬁ%

REBRBEBEENTEBEAR
#19,364,000C (2021 : AR
#18,912,0007T) A] AR &R BRI
HEEBEBNQAMRKEZRRH
o R2022F12A31H » K&EH
RABEANEENE THREEBEA
R#7,257,0007T (20214 : AR
#3,720,00070) R —ERFANA]
AR AR ERFEFE o B K
BARIDAE —BREREESEEARE
SR T R 4 AT A AR 0 L 08 S
B MU ARRZEEEERRLS
HEEE o

Bt

pil

BRIBARECREMBRZE) R
B A 0 B 37 B SN R 38 B 1 FE M08 SN
WEESTRHBREBBKI10%TE
M - ZEEN2008FE1 184
o WiEAMN2007F12 A31 8%
BEF o WP B A EINEREE
FrE R R E B e FRIsIE4 - 8l
AREEBABINHRE - iAEE
mE - BAREAE5% (20214 :
10%) - AEBERAMEARZERFEH
Wb LRI B AR B B 2008 F 1
A1BELEEFFTIRE MRS B4
B -

R2022F12A31H @ siAEBRF
B A AR ST Y BT B A B FE SR AN TE N
T H9 R B 0 & F) A R ¥ 358,497,000
(20214 : AR®602,583,000
T0) MERTEIR M E - WARERE
AECERTE - EERE - ZEWE
AEEARBRETEDRABE
FJ o

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB19,364,000 (2021: RMB18,912,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group had certain
tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB7,257,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB3,720,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% (2021: 10%).
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB358,497,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB602,583,000) that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
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20. &

20. INVENTORIES

20224 20214
2022 2021
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
H Other materials 3,371 1,435
21. EWWE F1E 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARETT ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Rk 7 (MisE(a)) Related parties (note (a)) 669,064 761,565
E=7 (H:Eb)) Third parties (note (b)) 505,424 398,085
1,174,488 1,159,650
A Impairment (374,013) (19,654)
800,475 1,139,996
Bzt - Notes:

(a) RWEKTEZFTREEHINHR
BET—EARDIH -

(b) BYEREERBEHEKE S FHAT
5 AKERFESA B E
EEE  BAREZLASMERE
FHIN K o BLEMIRBHEKRE 5
REME  ARERESNHZ S K
REIBREE AEEHR—KR
=EAMA -

G K EAR R B E R Y B &Y FE
WiE - EEEEHNEEARE
e REBRKEZHENEES
LR 3 BRI B AS AR MY RE 3T B
WEHHBARTEE °

(a)  Trade receivables from related parties are due in twelve months
upon the issuance of demand notes.

(b)  For trade receivables from property management services, the
Group charges property management fees on a quarterly or
monthly basis and the payment is generally due upon the issuance
of demand notes. For trade receivables from other services, the
Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit and

the credit period is generally within three months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. The Group’s concentration of credit risk of trade
receivables is disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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21. EWWE FFIE (&)

RBESHRERNPEE A BRIT
BREBERENERE SFIEERERD
T -

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the demand note date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR®ETT AREETFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FE R Within 1 year 699,595 1,013,727
—EWF 1 to 2 years 67,272 119,164
ME=F 2 to 3 years 31,241 5,639
=ENF 3 to 4 years 2,167 1,256
MERF 4 to 5 years 200 210
800,475 1,139,996

B L B2 55 2K T (A 9 R 4
-

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

2022%F 20214

2022 2021

ARBT T ARKETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

F9) At beginning of year 19,654 11,974
ERERRBEEE (FizE7) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 358,345 10,832
HsH AT ] IR B 3KI8 Amount written off as uncollectible (3,986) (3,152)
FR At end of year 374,013 19,654

R RE B KRB BEEEEETR
B Ut EBRHMEEER - &
BEDERABEBUBEEANS
EEF > BAR MRk e B8
B (AREFBEMMRBER) -
ZAERRAARNELER B
REKNBEERAISNERBE
IR - B AR R R RAEE R TR
AR R A SEEER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on aging or days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., customer
type and service type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.
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21. EWWE FRIE (&) 21.

TXHINBRERREBREETED
AEEREEZRBEERRNE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

K
=5 (XH) =5 (B8) B¥5
Third parties - Related
not past due Third parties - past due parties
Y -Ehk -ZWME  WESF ZEME  MERE RENE fit
Less than 1t02 2103 3tod 4to5 Over
Current 1 year years years years years 5 years Total
20228128318 At 31 December 2022
Al EBRE Expected credit loss rate 0.10% 552%  2157%  4139%  58.18%  91.13%  100.00%  49.48%
SEAE(ARETT)  Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 182281 237,937 64428 11,120 5,182 2,265 2211 669,064 1,174,488
BEEERE Expected credit losses (RMB'000)
(ARBT7) (191)  (13927)  (17,763)  (4603) (3015  (2,084)  (211) (331,039 (374,013)
R2021E12A318 At 31 December 2021
REfEEERE Expected credit loss rate S 570%  12.94%  2845%  6219%  85.38%  100.00%  0.79%
BFEAE(ARETT)  Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 286299 80824 17,014 7,881 33 1,436 1309 761565 1,159,650
REEEEE Expected credit losses (RMB000)
(ARRTT) - (610 @) @24) @) (1226 (1309 (60000  (19654)
* ER0.01% *  Less than 0.01%
A — S
22. EREE 22. CONTRACT ASSETS
12H31H 1A1H
31 December 1 January
20224 20214 20214
2022 2021 2021
ARBTR AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BERBEENEREE Contract assets arising from
professional services 10,870 13,190 16,148
A Impairment (10,870) (3,012) (3,401)
- 10,178 12,747

EREETZHAEERSHRED
REBMERTITMARAEREETRER
BHRENER  ZHEBEEFKAE
Bt AREEFERERKES
HE - AEEHEREFHNZIERKL
FEEBRRBEERTEHRERMT21 -
ARIBENR2022F K2021 FHFTR
LTIBRRFRNEECREEMN -

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at the end of
each reporting period. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. The
Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements. The decrease
in contract assets in 2022 and 2021 was the result of the
settlement of contract assets during the years.
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22. SRIEE (%)
ARAEREFBABOZBIT

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

2022 2021

2022 2021

AR¥TR AR¥ETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

F4 At beginning of year 3,012 3,401
B, (B ) mEEE (7))  Impairment losses recognised/

(reversed) (note 7) 7,858 (389)

FR At end of year 10,870 3,012

RE&HmE B HIRA R EEREETH
Botf Ut EBRMEEER -5
ERREEFRHMEERENBEE
TERBREZRANEEER - R
RAREREEREYE ZFIATIIR
BHEREFE - AREEMNBER
TREABEUBEBERANZEE
F 7 SR 6 R U E 5 5OR R BR iR
B RHFE (R ME - Em
B/l BRPEMAFE - ERE

HEERBIEAZRESR D) o %
AERBREARMELER - S
BEERBREARASHEEBES
TR BRI B R SR AR {1 TR ORI
MEENASEER

TXEINARERBEERRETER
AEBEEREEFERRHER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses on the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables are
from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on aging or days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

2022F 20214

2022 2021

TEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 100.00% 22.84%
ERERE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 10,870 13,190
EHEEEE (ARBTT) Expected credit loss (RMB’000) 10,870 3,012
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23. AN HE - MEKHEME  23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
IE RECEIVABLES

2022 20214
2022 ,2021
ARBTR ARBEFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BRI Prepayments 19,552 17,213
REREFEHRNK Payments on behalf of property owners 49,914 32,379
e Deposits 22,782 27,178
MEREF8 (f3E15) Net investment in the lease (note 15) 5,485 7,424
H At JEURIE Other receivables 33,354 12,105
JRE Ut 2 B i 3R kIR Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders 176,061 157,771
JE Uk BE B 5 ZOE (BTsE34) Amounts due from related parties (note 34) 8,349 16,203
315,497 270,273
A (FFFE7) Impairment (note 7) (6,023) =
A Total 309,474 270,273
BIERED 5 Current portion 303,591 263,334
JERNERER Non-current portion 5,883 6,939
ast Total 309,474 270,273

TR FRIE - e K&HE MR W RIER The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of

EEERENESEESHNT prepayments, deposits and other receivables is as follow:

20225
2022
ARETR
RMB’000
F47 At beginning of year -
BRI ERSE (7)) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 6,023
FR At end of year 6,023

EHEEEERRALEAEEBERA
BBk A B R RE T »
EEREEREEREREDAENR
R B AT AR 5 Ko FE B AR SR AS AR R o
MN20224%12 A31 BRRERES
R T R B EARE
3,866,000t + HEEAREEAA
R¥8,349,0007C * A KMERIE RE
H bl s IB R AR 2,157,000
T EBRERNEREEEAARE
2,157,0007T ° B _Eait H 4 fE KGR IE

Sh o B HFRIR - B KE IR
R R B R B EEE RRE -

MA2022F12 8310 - BHEEKREF
BN bR FEAEERT T
SR NIREREE -

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.
The provision for impairment as at 31 December 2022 included
a provision for other receivables due from related parties of
RMB3,866,000 with a carrying amount before provision of
RMB8,349,000 and a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of RMB2,157,000 with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB2,157,000. Except for the aforementioned
other receivables, the loss allowance for the remaining balances
of prepayment, deposits and other receivables was assessed to
be minimal.

Except for the net investment in the lease, other receivables
were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand
as at 31 December 2022.
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24 HERBELEEBYRTPR 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

R TR RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e RIBTTH R Cash and bank balances 823,395 825,653
B ZRHIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits (13,036) (11,324)
ReRBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 810,359 814,329

B2022% 128318 ' AEBMUA
REFENRS RRITESLAA
K#819,410,0007C (2021412 A
318 : AR¥777,846,0007T) -
AT EHEMRAARYKA405,000
7T (2021F12A31H : AR
38,927,0007T) © mAZETLEHMER A
B ARM3,580,0007T (2021412
H31H : AR®8,880,0007T) ° A
REBTIERALBKEMEY - A
o AR P B A b CHMNEE B IR R 101 )
R(HE - EERMNESEHETE) -
B BB R EEITINE 3
BRRMITHARE L BAEME -

RITBVSBRIETHRITERNEEZ
FEAEREAE - RITERTFN
EEERI  ODHRARHTHEN
RIT

R2022% K2021F12 8318 %
BERTEREIEREEARLERE
PRBAOMIFRORITIRESER -

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB819,410,000
(31 December 2021: RMB777,846,000), denominated
in HKD amounted to RMB405,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB38,927,000) and denominated in USD amounted to
RMB3,580,000(31 December 2021: RMB8,880,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The restricted bank deposits mainly comprised of cash deposits
in the banks as security for issuance of performance bonds as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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31 December 2022

25. B E F1E

REFEHRERNZRHHANEN
B SRR

25. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR¥TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FUR Less than 1 year 393,294 495,195
—FE Over 1 year 167,142 74,252
560,436 569,447

ENESRIEBRIEENRORANE
ENENBEBTNENREAR
#54,498,0007T (20214 : AR
2,518,0007T) ° B RAFEN AR &Y
ENE ZRENE —FSFBHRNY
THERFTMI5E34 -

ENESFELSBEEAMETFE -
B@BRe0AHAREH -

Included in the trade payables are payables of RMB4,498,000
(2021: RMB2,518,000) due to related parties which are
repayable within 60 days. Further details of trade payables
due to related parties are included in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Trade payables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled based on terms of 60 days.

26. HEARIBEKRESTEE  26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2022F 20214
2022 2021
ARETRT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERTIE RBEH Payroll and welfare payables 164,863 174,238
B 49T R Other tax payables 18,338 22,110
REEEMES REBRKA Deposits and temporary receipts
from property owners 104,222 85,628
FEETIE B KR E M fE (I 3kIE Accruals and other payables 86,024 85,819
A BAESE 5 ZOA (MisE34) Amounts due to related parties (note 34) 3,300 3,749
376,747 371,544
MR2022F 20219 12831H ' & Other payables were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
hENRIBAEER  THERR repayable on demand as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

ERIEE -
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27.

I 2 IR A 2 2R B PR OA 1
ENEmEE

27. FINANCIAL LIABILITY FOR PUT OPTION
WRITTEN ON NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ARET T ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PLIEIERR e 2R B SRV B Y Financial liabilities for put option written
TRtAE on non-controlling interests 121,641 125,442

RIBWEKERESBEENRZ © K
HEENRRRERBEAIR2023F
12A31BEMEAARNRAEEH
EkE A ERI5520% BAER R E HA
e ZWBEBHNREDENKE S E
HZE2023F 12 A31 HILEEMNIMH
RIBET - MR HHERETHFE K
&= B8 45 HIl A BB A 4 100 % R B -

POFERES R EREMENE R
BENGBEERABRAEZTHINRR
EREZXEE - EATAIEEHA
BRETDNRE B EMATRE
MBI R RABEEEERED
—EMEEAERT R R g
FRENFEEEEE RMEAEAR
EEEBERAEENAFNRXE

j’_io

BIERBRA B DL DO SR
& ERHUTIWT :

Pursuant to the agreement for acquisition of Chengdu Holytech,
the original shareholders of Chengdu Holytech were guaranteed
a put option under which they can sell the remaining 20%
equity of Chengdu Holytech to the Group within 2 months
after 31 December 2023. The consideration of such acquisition
is based on Chengdu Holytech’s financial performance for the
year ending 31 December 2023. If the put option is exercised,
the Group would control 100% of equity interests in Chengdu
Holytech.

The valuation of the financial liabilities for the put option
written on non-controlling interests was determined using the
discounted cash flow method under the income approach. The
significant unobservable inputs are expected discount rate as at
the exit date which was determined by the probability-weighted
average of floating premiums under three financial projection
scenarios prepared by management, and the expected discount
rate which was determined using the capital asset pricing model.

The movement of the financial liabilities for the put option
written on non-controlling interests is set out below:

2022 20214

2022 2021

AR®TR ARKETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

®1H1H At 1 January 125,442 =
W BT B8 A R BRI Y Put option at initial recognition granted

IR TR I 7 3R B during the acquisition of subsidiaries - 125,442

FRAREBELZE (KI5E6) Fair value change during the year (note 6) (3,801) =

®12H31H At 31 December 121,641 125,442
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28. A 28. SHARE CAPITAL
20224 20214
2022 2021
JERE Authorised:
2,000,000,000 % 2,000,000,000 (2021: 2,000,000,000)
(20214 : 2,000,000,0000%) ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each 20,000,0007% 7T 20,000,000 7T,
FIREEOC.01E LA E B HKD20,000,000 HKD20,000,000
EEITREE Issued and fully paid:
985,672,747 f% 985,672,747 (2021: 985,672,747)
(20214 : 985,672,7470%) ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each 9,856,727 T 9,856,727 7T,
BREEO0.01 B T T @A HKD9,856,727 HKD9,856,727
HEER
Equivalent to AK%8,868,0007t ARMS8,868,0007T

RMBS,868,000 RMB8,868,000

29. AR EEFTEIFEMNIR 29. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD

o R & SCHEME AND RESERVES
TEERERMRBTFENHFES The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
EREZHSHHANGEERED for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
xo statement of changes in equity.
(a) K= E (a) Share premium
AEBRMDEEREEZERRRE The share premium of the Group represents the capital
HEE 5 (E o contribution premium from its then shareholders.
(b) &EOtEE (b) Merger reserve
& PR IR A A B FEAG BT The merger reserve represented the difference between
M@ AT B SR R AEEEAK the Company’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up
EEHETEABRAARIWER capital of a subsidiary acquired and the Company's cost of
NESE R N ol NI e 54 acquisition of a subsidiary under common control upon the
R2ZERERE - Reorganisation undergone by the Group.
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29. R R B ET B R AR
R ()

(c)

(d)

EEBBRARE

RIBEFBECRBE) REF BT
TR SZ B9 B B8 1% B RO 4B 4 = 72
AR REEARBREBRIRN
EREENBES 2 TIANEER
ERiEE - FEASREDEEM
BERANBEAZATH  AIRA
FIRER - AR BUER M
SEABSREARIFmESE TR
HERRT - XERBFEEA
FRIAT M EE - RERIE M
BRARMERA - EABERE
MESRT/IREFEMER
WBEDZ-1THh - ZHEETH
REE R B 8y 2 SNy E At B
e MMERREBREETS
i e

WA 4D SR B T &I K AR 40 B2
ERCESEEN: L)

R2020F 9 A23H ([HE#H A
1) NAREMEMARG 1
BhErEl ([ Rp RS - B
RAAETREREELHERIL
BT RERE - USRS
BRERBERAEE - k1R
BhET 8] B A B HAE 5T 1 4 BF
BE BRI -

RIER D B2 R AT B R R e £ 7
MRA E=grlERAE D2
BiIFRENERNSEBRA LS
HEA - ARABRD (REA
REEMNHE) BBHEL -
B0 # e B £0 2R Bt &1 69 B 3L
REATZREADRTH LR
ARERMESEE - WR
1R {7 B2 B ET & B0 (R SXA(E FE
TABERSEERS -

29. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Statutory surplus funds

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net
profits after tax to the statutory surplus reserves until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the Group,
the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase the share capital
of the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
them. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other than
those for which it is created and is not distributable as
cash dividends.

Shares held for share award scheme and share
award reserve

On 23 September 2020 (the “Adoption Date"”), the
Company announced to adopt the share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) with objectives to recognise
the contribution by certain employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and remain in force for a
term of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Subject to the terms of the Share Award Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the board of directors may at any time
make an offer to any eligible person it may at its absolute
discretion select to accept the grant of an award over
such number of shares as it may determine. Shares will be
acquired by the independent trustee (the “Trustee”) of
the Share Award Scheme on the market out of the funds
contributed by the Company and be held in trust for the
relevant participants in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Scheme.
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29. R R B ET B R AR
R ()

(d) BERDEREET 8RR DR

29. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Shares held for share award scheme and share

EREAE RS (&)

HE2020F12 8318 IE5F
B ERAAREBREHH
7.75% L (FHERARY6.63
T)MEHERRTEEA
3,350,000/%f% 1D - A& 5B A
25,967,0008 T (FHERAR
#22,198,0007T) ° # £2022
FR2021F12A3181IEE
E - ZRABERTHEE AR

ﬁo

R2020F 11 A13H
3,350,000 % & 10 2 AR IR AR 17
RBAERTETREIES
(BRES) - IRENRGE
BREREREMBA - &
B REMESAEENERM
BEFE o B E2022512A318
IEFE - BERGEEFE
BERNMERTETHRTRE
B(BEEH) BERkeH
400,0000% (20214 : 250,000
f%) S2ENA% 1D - 12022412 A
318 ' RERMDEEFE
KRR BITIEING BB RR D &
2,700,0000% (2021412 A 31
H :3,100,0000%) °

RAES (BEEFE)BHHOK
BME - BERRMDER20245F
SATABBRARA - A
FREARRAEKRD EEE
BN EESHEHME T RES
Fra] M A BB G (B
BRRAFMERBRREZR)
FA{ER -

MN2020F11 A13BKXFH
R EEAE7.86/8 T (18
EMARK6.997T) - AER
REE2022F12A831HIEF
E Bt AR 0 52 Bh 5+ &I #E R AR 17
HEFAS AR®3,409,000T
(20214 : AR¥5,537,000

) o

award reserve (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 3,350,000
shares were purchased by the Trustee from the market at
an average price of approximately HKD7.75 (equivalent
to RMB6.63) per share, with an aggregate amount of
HKD25,967,000 (equivalent to RMB22,198,000). No shares
were purchased by the Trustee from the market in the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

On 13 November 2020, 3,350,000 shares were granted
to selected current employees (including directors) under
the Share Award Scheme. The number of shares granted
is determined based on the selected employees’ position,
experience, performance and contribution to the Group.
No shares were granted to selected current employees
(including directors) and a total of 400,000 (2021:
250,000) award shares were forfeited under the Share
Award Scheme in the year ended 31 December 2022.
At 31 December 2022, the Company had 2,700,000 (31
December 2021: 3,100,000) award shares outstanding
under the Share Award Scheme.

For shares granted to employees (including directors),
the awarded shares will be vested to the grantees on 31
March 2024, provided that all vesting conditions (including
but not limited to all relevant performance targets) of the
Share Award Scheme or stipulated in the letter of award
received from the board of directors are satisfied by such
grantees.

The fair value of the shares granted on 13 November
2020 was HKD7.86 (equivalent to RMB6.99). The Group
recognised a share award expense of RMB3,409,000 (2021:
RMB5,537,000) during the year ended 31 December 2022
in relation to the Share Award Scheme.

7T
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30.

MR RBE EFENR
7 R & ()

(e) EHHE (e)

ARE REGINLE R BHI
RREBRET - NBEHR
ZEERNEERBBRRS
HARNRTEXBRESAR
% mMEBZARERS AR
TEXRONEXBRESAR
%o At MEEWERZER
H At 2 [ A T R X B 5 e
wR e

BEEARFERERNIE

29. SHARES HELD FOR THE SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND RESERVES (continued)

Exchange reserve

The functional currency of the Company and its overseas
subsidiaries is HKD. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve.

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EENBE LT MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
REBHEBEERFEERESON B Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
NAIFFBEEINOT - controlling interests are set out below:
20224 20214
2022 2021
RS PTIRER DL Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests:
EIgRET Shanghai Kejian 49% 49%
aEWME Holytech Property 20% 20%
2022F 20214
2022 2021
ARBTR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DEEEFERERNEE Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to
M (E8) non-controlling interests:
LR Shanghai Kejian 17,143 10,388
aEWME Holytech Property (2,784)* 3,114
B FEIERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests:
LERE Shanghai Kejian - 23,000
JEPERR eSS A SRS A B 251454 ¢ Accumulated balances of non-controlling
interests at the reporting date:
LERES Shanghai Kejian 41,414 24,271
BEWME Holytech Property 36,865 39,649
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30. BEEARFERBERNIFE
2ENBLE (&)

TR Lt BB A m e E B S
BF - IR EMNSBERTRERNA

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are

RIS before any inter-company eliminations:
LigRlE GEME
Shanghai Holytech
Kejian Property
AR® T ARBT T
20225 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000
ON Revenue 394,197 251,651
Fi> 4858 Total expenses (359,211) (238,230)
FENHE Profit for the year 34,986 13,421
FEXEMBAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 34,986 13,421
MENE E Current assets 164,446 275,481
EMBEE Non-current assets 44,990 94,458
nEBEE Current liabilities (89,676) (146,949)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (11,786) (11,325)
EESTEIE,(FA) IS REFE Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities 8,641 (349)
WEEBME (FTE) RS REF% Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities 235 (226)
B RBREEEWEM, Cad) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
R cash equivalents 8,876 (575)

236  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



30. BEEAFERBERNIE

31.

2ENBARE (&)

TRFAA Lt BB R m et E B S
AR - TRBENEBAR REMA
AEEH - ()

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-
company eliminations: (continued)

LEBRET BEME

Shanghai Holytech

Kejian Property

AR®ET T ARKET T

20214 2021 RMB'000 RMB’'000

WA Revenue 321,032 194,428

F> 4858 Total expenses (300,091) (178,856)

FEMNHE Profit for the year 20,941 15,572

FEXEMBALE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,941 15,572

MBEE Current assets 105,172 265,208

FEMENEE Non-current assets 54,300 111,519

D JR=NE Current liabilities (73,113) (163,391)

FERBEE Non-current liabilities (13,371) (15,089)
reEE S (FTA) Net cash flows from/(used in)

REREFRE operating activities 40,216 (28,089)
KREEBMEHESREFHE Net cash flows from investing activities 752 8,745
REEBARSREFE Net cash flows used in financing activities (43,065) =
Be kRS EEBYR A FE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,097) (19,344)
* IR HR AN 5 B B 5 3 W) 32 SRR AR AR 3R * Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement between the Group

RIS E S - AR EMER
£2022F12 A31 B ILFERF)B
DPREEVEERBIETAEEN
FERNME AtASEEEEZS
AEYM¥EET2022F128318 1
FERZIBF)E -

EBE

M2022F3 7 AREEBUE=
FEIIRES RGBS - AREA
R#¥3,600,000 CEEES ILERER
100% &4 - WEEE 7R 2022F 4 A 5%
Ko ZWBBEAREESNE — T
BYIEEIRER o

and the non-controlling shareholders of Holytech Property, as the
profit of Holytech Property for the year ended 31 December 2022
is less than the minimal profit that Holytech Property committed
to distribute to the Group, the Group is entitled to enjoy all the
profit of Holytech Property for the year ended 31 December 2022.

31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In March 2022, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Heshan Jianmei at a consideration
of RMB3,600,000. The acquisition has been completed in April
2022. The acquisition allows the Group for further business
expansion on property management business.
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31. RS0 (8)

BLUEXREBERRANAIRREE
RBENAREBEARDT

31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Heshan Jianmei, as at the date of acquisition, were as follows:

Uit B BRF B RERR

ARfEE

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

AR¥ETT

RMB'000

ME - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 176
HEtnmpEE Other intangible assets 1,238
TEATFRIE © e R H A EWGRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 50
FEWE 5 718 Trade receivables 7
ReRBEEFED Cash and bank balance 67
JEHE S 508 Trade payables (155)
EAh e RIB R FEETIR B Other payables and accruals (480)
JE AN 3R Tax payables (18)
RIERIEE & Deferred tax liabilities (331)
BWEBAHREEFEN A AAEE Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 554
Y By Y T Goodwill on acquisition 3,046
3,600

AR & A Satisfied by cash 3,600

HERKRERBENRERREFE
YmHEFE DTN

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

AR¥ETTT
RMB’000
BHeRE Cash consideration (3,600)
152022612 A318 2 Consideration to be paid subsequent to
BIANRE 31 December 2022 400
BUHER & RIRTTAER Cash and bank balance acquired 67
BREEREEHMARESMEFNES  Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
FEeEEYRLEE included in cash flows from investing activities (3,133)
BREEEEEHMARERERH Transaction costs of the acquisition
U HE 22 5 AN included in cash flows from operating activities (39)
(3,172)
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32.

. RBE 6 (&)

BLBRENERESHRIBREME
WRERKE BN AR EED R
ABARE7,000t R AR 41,000
JC o FEULE B RIE N H b fE U R IE
H&LBES R ABARE7,000T K
AR#E41,0007T °

AEBRABESUEIMELNR
ZRAER/ARE39,0007T - ZER
ZRABE X - Wt ABREEHER
MTTERRA S ©

EHMERZBERMABERME T
AR o

BUEELAZE - BILBREAKXEEE
E2022F 12 A31 B IEFEEHRA K
FEBEEN R ERAR4,926,000
TR AR 143,0007T -

HMABREZR2022512A31HILE
EVETT - QRSB REE2022F
12 A31BIEFEAMNKAKREEH
D AlAANR¥2,608,203,0007T M A
R #198,639,0007T °

RERETREBRME

(a) ERFRERS

REAR AEBREFRAE
MEELHD BIAEREEE
FHEEABETHNIERESRE
ABARM1,957,0007T (2021
#: AR¥11,106,0007T)
K AR®1,957,0007C (2021
& AR¥11,106,0007T) °

31.

32.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
of Heshan Jianmei as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB7,000 and RMB41,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables and other receivables were
RMB7,000 and RMB41,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB39,000 for the
acquisition of Heshan Jianmei. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Since the acquisition, Heshan Jianmei contributed RMB4,926,000
to the Group’s revenue and RMB143,000 to the consolidated
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2022, the revenue and the loss of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
RMB2,608,203,000 and RMB198,639,000, respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,957,000
(2021: RMB11,106,000) and RMB1,957,000 (2021:
RMB11,106,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles.
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32Z.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

N.GEEHEERERMTE
) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(%

(b) MEZBFELENAERE

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
20224 2022
H fth PE {4 7B HEEE
Other Lease
payables liabilities
AR®TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MW2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 - 22,327
MERESRELE Changes from financing cash flows (49,557) (9.640)
e New leases - 1,957
FEMXE Interest expense - 1,549
DA ERSRENEMFIE  Interest paid classified as operating
cash flows - (581)
TR AR E AT B ET Reassessment and revision of lease terms - (1,403)
BEEIRRE Dividend declared 49,557 -
72022912 A31H At 31 December 2022 - 14,209
20214 2021
o th &< 5RI8 HEaRE
Other Lease
payables liabilities
ARETIT AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
7202141818 At 1 January 2021 - 22,350
BERSRELE) Changes from financing cash flows (93,778) (12,128)
HHE New leases = 11,106
AR Interest expense = 2,095
DIEAKERERENEMFIE  Interest paid classified as operating
cash flows - (843)
REHBE AR Covid-19 Covid-19-related rent concessions
EEE SR from lessors = (253)
EEIREE Dividend declared 93,778 =
M2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 - 22,327
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.,.v-\?iﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬂ“ﬁi 32.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

(& STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
() HERSARLAT (c) Total cash outflow for leases
AR RERNEERSR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
RN of cash flows is as follows:
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LR A Within operating activities 18,892 16,978
BEEE A Within financing activities 9,640 12,128
28,532 29,106
. HRIE 33. COMMITMENTS
RIEBR - AEEHREFMER At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
AP o significant commitments.
BB RS 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
ERBRBE (a) Name and relationship
RAGHGREERRAAAERE The ultimate holding company of the Company is
B o BRAPBHEREREZES - E Renowned Brand. Times China is controlled by Renowned
MNEERASEN —HEE QA - Brand. Guangzhou Rongxin is an associate of the Group.
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2022912 H31H 31 December 2022

3. BB AR5 (&)

(b) EXBABLRS

REEA - BRI T ETIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related

TR5 : parties during the reporting period:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
L E=REN Y Property management services
— AR P BTG EE — Entities controlled by Times China 64,032 64,563
— BRAPENEE AT — Associates of Times China 1,426 579
—BRPEMNEEDRE — Joint ventures of Times China 8,898 10,901
74,356 76,043
X FIREBERD Value-added services to non-property
owners
— R BT HI A E 82 — Entities controlled by Times China 70,449 233,629
— BRI AL AT — Associates of Times China 10,073 22,946
—BRPRENEERSE - Joint ventures of Times China 23,005 54,938
103,527 311,513
[ 35 (8 AR 75 Community value-added services
— AR P BT NEE — Entities controlled by Times China 44,463 205,237
— B A B A — RSB = A A — An associate of Times China 1,294 16,315
—BRPBENEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 5,952 16,325
51,709 237,877
BER® Professional services
— HERPRZESAELE - Entities controlled by Times China 62,692 86,231
— B AR A —EEE AR — An associate of Times China 12,577 6,304
—BRPBEHEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 3,242 3,274
78,511 95,809
FIEHEARE Additions of lease liabilities
— AR BERNE - Entities controlled by Times China - 7,995

242  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



3. B AR 5 (18) 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) EXBELXS (&)

(b) Significant related party transactions

LT B R 52 5 R
TRIES $1% KRR T 6
HEE -

REEDEERPBIES E S
RN BAEERTEWENRE
Wi (&) - Rz mE -
&% A ARM350,000,0007T
MIZEEBRAEERHHEEXR
BEEXHFERFAE - ®B
20224912 A31 BRI IE:Z 13
EE ReBaERRPEBE
EEFAEER - R2022412
A318 - ZRBHIESEHE

= o
=

EaE TR R 5 IMEK L
MRAE14AAEFE R < BIE

(continued)

The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
were determined in accordance with terms mutually agreed
by the contract parties.

The Group entered into services agreements about sales of
specified properties with the entities controlled by Times
China (the “Agreements”). Pursuant to the Agreements,
deposits amounting to RMB350,000,000 were paid by
the Group to Times China after the effective date of each
agreement. Upon termination of the Agreements before 31
December 2022, the deposits were refunded to the Group
by Times China in full. The balance of deposits for the
services was nil as at 31 December 2022.

Certain of the above related party transactions also
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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34. Bt AR 5 (#&) 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) EERBAEE S MIREEBESEER (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE Z IR Trade receivables
— AR AP BTG EE — Entities controlled by Times China 558,301 621,383
— B A E A E QA — Associates of Times China 25,370 43,958
—BRPBENEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 85,393 96,224
669,064 761,565
RIE Impairment (331,039) (6,000)
338,025 755,565
B 2 B 5 WG IE R B EE The movements in the loss allowance for
BEZEHHT - impairment of trade receivables with
related parties are as follows:
F9) At beginning of year 6,000 =
EERBIEEE Impairment losses recognised 325,039 6,000
FR At end of year 331,039 6,000
FE A R K2 At FE YR IE Prepayments and other receivables
— ARRR BTN E S — Entities controlled by Times China 7,386 5,525
—RRPBENEERE — Joint ventures of Times China 325 299
— R R A — A E QT — An associate of Times China 611 919
— —[HEE AR — An associate 27 9,460
8,349 16,203
BUE Impairment (3,866) =
4,483 16,203
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3. A AR5 ()

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(o) EEEEHETRREEEER (B (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)
Eﬁ 5?\7‘7?2?551:}%,’&1,5#&%@}%1& The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
FIEREEEREESNT prepayments and other receivables with related parties are
as follows:
20224
2022
AR¥T T
RMB’000
F9) At beginning of year -
BRI EEE Impairment losses recognised 3,866
FR At end of year 3,866
BT EENE S FEWKGIE N The calculation of loss allowance for trade receivables and
R FAAT FRIA e H At BT RIA 2 prepayments and other receivables arising from related
BEBEHTE BB L ER parties was carried out by an independent valuer.
T o
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAR Lease liabilities
— B R ITESINERE — Entities controlled by Times China 3,778 7,822
eRAaE Contract liabilities
— AR P BRI TR — Entities controlled by Times China 6,028 1,577
—RRPBEHNEERE — Joint ventures of Times China 305 =
6,333 1,577
FERTE 5508 Trade payables
— AR AR RGN T — Entities controlled by Times China 2,257 154
- BRAEN—FHEELE — A joint venture of Times China 2,241 2,364
4,498 2,518
HAth FE T FRIE Other payables
— AP BEEGNE R — Entities controlled by Times China 3,066 3,617
—RRPBEMNEERE — Joint ventures of Times China 146 41
— R B A — B & Q) — An associate of Times China 88 91
3,300 3,749
REEaFEN L& AER Except for lease liabilities, the above balances are

PR A-—REE=E+_@
AR -

unsecured, interest-free and generally payable from three
to twelve months.

BARAEERAERAT /2022 £, 245



- Bt 7% 8 R MY &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 H31H 31 December 2022

3. B AR5 (1) 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
d AEETEEBAENH (d) Compensation of key management personnel of
A the Group:
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR®TRT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e FRREWEN Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,788 6,591
EMHE RS Performance related bonuses 3,775 4,589
VARG HE 48 B MO AR (0 B2 ED 7 =2 Equity-settled share award expense 2,525 2,525
RIRE T B Pension scheme contributions 374 365
13,462 14,070
BEHRESEWMEE—FHBEHN Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
SRR MIFE © note 9 to the financial statements.
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35.

RERESTWEMTE

SEABTARBEBROEHE
o

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBHERATENESREE Financial assets at amortised cost
FEW & 5518 Trade receivables 800,475 1,139,996
FTATENRUIE - e REM Financial assets included in prepayments,

RGBS REE deposits and other receivables 295,945 253,060
SRR EIRITIFER Restricted bank deposits 13,036 11,324
ReRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 810,359 814,329

1,919,815 2,218,709
2022 % 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REBERATTENSRERS Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B E 5308 Trade payables 560,436 569,447
ATAEAMEMRIEREFTEE RN Financial liabilities included in
TRtBE other payables and accruals 193,546 175,196
753,982 744,643
UAAEEFELFGABEN Financial liabilities at fair value

=R through profit or loss
PLIEIRRR A s 2R B SR UH B Y Financial liability for a put option written

SEBE on non-controlling interests 121,641 125,442
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36. e TEMAAREERK?.LY 36.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

REERER

MN2022F %2021 12 8310 » K
EENEREEREBREBENR R
BEEESEMNEREAEBEMES -

= EBEECHG ReRkBRFE

C XBRHRITER  BEE SR
CEFATENRE  me REME
WRENEREE  BNEZA
LA Re 5t A E A FE A 5R08 K FEET IR B
MERBENAABEREREE
HE RARELREARZSFTIA
B2 HASAR -

) F

HERENAAEEBBERR
TEABEEEGR - EERR RFH
AN EFBRARRKRER

= Ak
EATF °

FUTAEENRcELEMA [
W BRDAEBERDEKRAMNE
EUWBEEAAABEERANSE
=& o E—HHIBEENMIEE6 -

AN 55 B B I 12 AR R ok AR B AR UM A A
NeEMBENGFERABRAZETH
WHRBEESREEZEE - EATHAH
R ABIEAEE2023F12 A31
HIEFE K ERA E B 1T/ T8 5% 7
B REAEAEECTEEANETE
WTERTITIREETE - BIFERER
FRDHIARNCRBENRAAE
ENBAARBEERNE =R -

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets or financial liabilities approximated to
their respective carrying amounts.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of lease liabilities has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The recoverable amount of CGU of Foshan Hetai determined at
fair value less costs of disposal was categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Further details are contained in note 16.

The valuation of the Group’s financial liability for put option
written on non-controlling interests was determined using the
discounted cash flow method under the income approach.
The significant unobservable inputs are expected net profit of
Chengdu Holytech for the year ending 31 December 2023,
and the expected discount rate which was determined using
the capital asset pricing model. The fair value of the financial
liability for the put option written on non-controlling interests is
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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36. TRATEMNAAEBERD
REEEHR (&)

AT RM2022F 202112 A 31

BRI ERESF RO ENS
BEeEEHERMRANERTH
RGABB B EARSHERE
SaRiNE

20224

ERTTEEBAHE
Significant

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial liability for a put option written on non-
controlling interests together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

2022

gE AABEEHRARBNRRE

Sensitivity of fair

unobservable input

Range

value to the input

TERHDF A E

Expected net profit

ANR#44,950,0007T

RMB44,950,000

TEERFEFEE N, B 1%
BER AR EEEN,
S AR #E1,197,0007T

1% increase/decrease in expected net profit

would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by RMB1,197,000

TR R 4.41% LEE=IE N1 %
BB AR BERM,
B AR #1,374,0007T
Expected discount rate 4.41% 1% increase/decrease in rate would result
in increase/decrease in fair value
by RMB1,374,000

20214 2021
EXRTAEEG ARE & = NABEHBABBNSRAE
Significant Sensitivity of fair
unobservable input Range value to the input

TEHDF A

Expected net profit

LR

Expected discount rate

AR #50,003,0007T

RMB50,003,000

4.55%

4.55%

SRR M1 % B ER AR E
B, m AR #220,0007T

1% increase/decrease in expected net profit

would result in increase/decrease

in fair value by RMB220,000

LbEIg IR 1% BB B AR EE
®mn, m AR¥E2,740,0007T

1% increase/decrease in rate would result
in increase/decrease in fair value

by RMB2,740,000

HE2022F12A31BILFE -
WEEF —H2EATER mﬁﬁﬁi
o MEEASELEE =R -

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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37. MERREEBERBKEKX 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEESRMTAEENTIZARAS
EERRERBERR - —KRM
5 AREHERREERIURT
SRS o 7 7N 5 B T [ e B 5% 55
RARFF K - AN B EAE R
TERAEMTAEES RS - KK
BAFAERBITERZBENITE
ERMIE - ARFEFESRILMA
BEEEREERR - Effan T

(a) EERMR

R B R R W E B R
REMEKHRIE  GREE
Re RREFEWURZR G
RITERBENEERR -

AEEFEFRE LIRS EEY
PA B 52 PR Il SR 17 17 3R A N7
EXEERAR  RRAEREXR
ABOEFREFRITREMAK
A FTERTT o BEEETE S
" ERZERFUFENNR
XBREX

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables and other receivables, contract assets, cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that there
will be significant losses from non-performance of these
counterparties.
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37. i BAMEEEEREKE 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) EE=RB (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)

AEEEFEHERTREERYT
ME=-FETEE - FEEY
EREBBERF /XH5HFH
DITRETR - B2022F 12 8
318 » MR57.0% (20214 :
53.6%) MEWE FHRIEKRE
RARPBEEENS1.8% (2021
F : 84.8% ) K E b FE UK FIE
RE—RMEB R AR IEZE IR
RASEMNEESTRRE
Ko FEEREIFIEA o

REREEMORFERD KR

TRINREREAEBHEER
ENEEEEREERBNR
SEKMO  TEERAHRE
B (BRIEEMER AT R ES M
ERUBERAKE NHERT
ER) - B2 A31BHER
DEBNE - 2HcEAESR

BEMRE(EAR -

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by analysis by customer/counterparty. The Group had
significant concentrations of credit risk as 57.0% (2021:
53.6%) of the trade receivables were derived from
Times China Group and 81.8% (2021: 84.8%) of other
receivables were derived from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary as at 31 December 2022. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

RARMBERERAR /2022 5% 251



- Bt 7% 8 R MY &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 H31H 31 December 2022

37. i EMEEEEREE 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) EERMR (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)
ESRBHMORFERD R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(&) (continued)
7A2022%12A831H As at 31 December 2022
12 A EH
EEEE FENESHEEFE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
P ER — BE= BER= k(PR wst
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

JEW B 5 FRIE * Trade receivables* - - - 1,174,488 1,174,488
aREE" Contract assets* - - - 10,870 10,870
SPAFEMFUE « #€ K Financial assets included

HitEUWKTERN SR in prepayments, deposits

BE and other receivables

= ek oo — Normal** 285,439 8,349 2,157 - 295,945
SR EIRITIER Restricted bank deposits

— mARBH — Not yet past due 13,036 - - - 13,036
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents

— WA - Not yet past due 810,359 - - - 810,359

1,108,834 8,349 2,157 1,185,358 2,304,698
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(a)

37. E@%Ewﬁ%'fiﬁ Z RIBR

(#&)

=ERR (&)
EERBBORERD R

Max

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

imum exposure and year-end staging

(&) (continued)
72021512 A318 As at 31 December 2021
1218 A &8
FEER FEREREEBR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
PEER— EER— fEER = X Rz et
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBFTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JEW B 5 FRIE * Trade receivables* - - - 1,159,650 1,159,650
AREE* Contract assets* - - - 13,190 13,190
S AFERNFIE « 4 X Financial assets included
HipfEUFRIER SR in prepayments, deposits
BE and other receivables
— IEE** - Normal** 253,060 - - - 253,060
ZIRFIBITER Restricted bank deposits
— AR — Not yet past due 11,324 = = = 11,324
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— AR — Not yet past due 814,329 = = = 814,329
1,078,713 - - 1,172,840 2,251,553
Kist - Notes:

3 B S B P E R E B L
ENEWRE ZHRERERE
EmE  EREEEENHE
RREZEHBHREME21 &
22 HEE o

o ATBNRIE - e REM

BURFEHNESREENE

BEEER M ASHEER

BIEE] AW EER KA

BVBRERARZEREE

MNEERBRBEREEER -&

Bl ZeRMEEMNEELEE

WARATATEE]

*

* %

For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21 and
22 to these financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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20224512 A31H

31 December 2022

37. i EREEEERBERK

(&

(a)

(b)

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
EERR (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)
ESRBHMORFERD R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(&) (continued)
BRASERERB HHEEE Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
MEERRNE — T TEHIE exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
BER B MERMEE21 - disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
T B 4 L B (b) Liquidity risk
mBERERRANEEAESE Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
RiMEABITHBEEHR difficulty in meeting financial obligation due to shortage
%o AEBIHERAREMERR of funds. The Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises
FERBSREERABBENH primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
REEAC - AEBMWEEESRA assets and liabilities. The Group’s objective is to maintain
CHREREERBERHEE a balance between continuity of funding to finance its
BeH R EMBEEENERH working capital needs as well as capital expenditure in
TIRHESHESHENHNE respect of its development projects, and flexibility through
a2 ERIE T - the use of stand-by credit facilities.
TRAMBIES HRTBARK The tables below analyse the maturity profile of the
BR - AEERFERRNE Group's financial liabilities and lease liabilities as at the
BeErEEB GRS - end of the reporting period, which is based on contractual
undiscounted payments.
20224F 2022
DA PR—F —FERF AEHULE At
On Less than 1to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
AR¥TRT AR%BTn AR¥®Tr AR%Tn AR¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ERE 5HE Trade payables 383,513 176,923 - - 560,436
HERE Lease liabilities - 7,505 8,335 19 15,859
STAEMEMNFKIER  Financial liabilities
[EtBERMEMAR  included in other
payables and accruals 193,546 - - - 193,546
TIFERAEZR %R Financial liability for a put
RN eRaE option written on
non-controlling interests - - 125,559 - 125,559
577,059 184,428 133,894 19 895,400
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37. i EREEEERBEK
(#E)

(b) REMEREER (F)

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

20214 2021
ENE IPR—F —FERF RENE At
On Less than 1 to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[ERE 5HE Trade payables 244,580 324,867 = = 569,447
HEAR Lease liabilities - 9,753 14,099 31 23,883
FEAEMFE R FRIE K Financial liabilities
FEETIE B HY included in other
CRIBE payables and acc 175,196 = = = 175,196
TIFERAEZ F %R Financial liability for a put
RN ERAE option written on
non-controlling interests - - 143,797 - 143,797
419,776 334,620 157,896 31 912,323

(c) EXRERE

REBEKREE 2 BIZ AR
REBEETEBISREAILFE
g H BRI E  FRBA
BlEB R ERGEH  BRE
HRERNEDR - AEBREE
20226 % 202112 A31 81k
FEMEEREERSTE -

AEBEERBELE (EHF
BBEABEARINER F8) BEiE
BAKE - B FREREEN
B5HRIA ~ B RIA K&
FHIEE  HEARBNMIFER
RaZERLHNENEREA
B BRAERREFEY - &
RIGHE s o

(c)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital structure using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade payables, other payables and accruals,
lease liabilities and financial liability for a put option
written on non-controlling interests less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents total equity.
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31%%@@%@5%&&%
IIE

() BEXRERE (&)

AEEERETE BRI EAR
B XEEEAKAREZE
BEARMERORR - ABBIK
B BITHRIARBEITHES
KBEERBEY - FEHELER

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Capital management (continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically and considers the costs of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debts or

BARGERE - the redemption of existing debts.
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JERT 8 5 FIA Trade payables 560,436 569,447
Hfth FES 5B R FEETIE B Other payables and accruals 376,747 371,544
HEBE Lease liabilities 14,209 22,327

FLIFTRAR S 2R B UE HAMEAY  Financial liability for a put option written

CREE on non-controlling interests 121,641 125,442
W BERBEeEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (810,359) (814,329)
B Net debt 262,674 274,431
=N Capital 1,689,988 1,933,369
BRKMERFHE Capital and net debt 1,952,662 2,207,800
BELE Gearing ratio 13% 12%
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38. KA R IR &R

BBRARARBERRTBARRE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BERmT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
20225 20214
2022 2021
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 7 9
FREAE Right-of-use assets 2,494 3,250
NG SRS Investments in subsidiaries 9,688 6,279
IERBEE EERE Total non-current assets 12,189 9,538
MENEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERRIR - e REMEWEIR Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 1,221,497 1,137,241
ReRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,643 38,161
MBEERRE Total current assets 1,223,140 1,175,402
mEN A& CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAbpE I R FEETIR B Other payables and accruals 1,178 2,236
HEAE Lease liabilities 840 665
mEBERRE Total current liabilities 2,018 2,901
MEEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,221,122 1,172,501
BEBBRABAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,233,311 1,182,039
ERBAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,747 2,587
BEFRE Net assets 1,231,564 1,179,452
ez EQUITY
N Share capital 8,868 8,868
TR B AT 835 A MR (D Shares held for the share award scheme (22,198) (22,198)
it (5 Reserves (note) 1,244,894 1,192,782
MR Total equity 1,231,564 1,179,452
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022512 A31H

38. A BB AR R I (&)

39.

31 December 2022

THE COMPANY (continued)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

Bt Note:
RARFEEBAMET - A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
BiDRE IR RERFE B S A RitERE &t
Share
Share award Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%TT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M2021F1 108 At 1 January 2021 1,399,826 742 (94,771) (7,773) 1,298,024
FAEEEGIBERE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (35,455) (5,341) (40,796)
IARRHE A E BV AR 1D Equity-settled share award
RT3 scheme - 5,537 - - 5,537
EEIK2020F RHAME  Final 2020 dividend declared (69,983) - - - (69,983)
2021412 H831HK At 31 December 2021 and
20221 A1H 1 January 2022 1,329,843 6,279 (130,226) (13,114) 1,192,782
FAZMH Total comprehensive
WA (E18) 5 income/(loss) for the year = = 106,043 (11,013) 95,030
AR EAE E 8RR 1 Equity-settled share award
RN T & scheme = 3,409 = = 3,409
EER2021FAREAAE S Final 2021 dividend declared (46,327) = = = (46,327)
7202212 A31H At 31 December 2022 1,283,516 9,688 (24,183) (24,127) 1,244,894

HE R RS AR

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

BRI 2023FE3 4200 EE

EEHERRRETIE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2023.
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LTFEHBERE
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T X E AR B R BT U E B B R A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity
BUAREE  BERESHEEZ (BHELK of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
B TEMEK - the audited financial statements, is set out below:

BZE12A31HLFE
Year ended 31 December

20225 20214 20204 20195 20184
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTRE ARETT ARBTT ARBTIT ARETRT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

E RESULTS
WA REVENUE 2,606,042 2,719,747 1,758,427 1,081,341 695,752
SHE KA Cost of sales (2,050,148) (1,977,687) (1,227,379)  (776,044)  (505,254)
ER Gross profit 555,894 742,060 531,048 305,297 190,498
Ha WA RS Other income and gains 28,181 38,108 23,546 6,078 2,055
HERMISHERERKA  Selling and marketing costs (30,746) (20,561) (46,885) (10,380) (8,466)
TR X Administrative expenses 341,740 (279,224) (180,274) (124,945) (89,717)
EBMAREERE  Net impairment losses on

BB financial and contract assets (372,226) (10,443) (2,154) (3,473) (1,714)
Hif > Other expenses (82,748) (28,281) (2,322) (26,893) (4,901)
BE KA FE Finance costs, net (1,076) (3,348) (8,321) (13,539) (4,606)
SRS AR ER Share of profits and losses of

associates (3,885) 5,482 2,101 3,393 3,437

BrBiAT (B538),  AE (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (248,346) 443,793 316,739 135,538 86,586

i8R %,”  Income tax credit/(expense)

(%) 48,751 (109,656) (79,865) (40,214) (22,422)
F£E (FE)FE  (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (199,595) 334,137 236,874 95,324 64,164
T BB : Attributable to:

ISUNSIEZEPN Owners of the parent (213,627) 308,000 232,606 96,313 63,524

R Non-controlling interests 14,032 26,137 4,268 (989) 640

(199,595) 334,137 236,874 95,324 64,164
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EFFHERE
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE  BERER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

®12A31A
As at 31 December

20225 20214 20204 2019% 20184
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTRE ARETT ARBTET ARBTIT ARETRT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

EERE TOTAL ASSETS 2,928,883 3,268,735 2,648,951 1,500,942 3,646,410
EEHEE TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,238,895) (1,335,366)  (887,254)  (601,711) (3,538,964)
AR TOTAL EQUITY 1,689,988 1,933,369 1,761,697 899,231 107,446
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